SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
Regd. Off.:- A-7, 1ST FLOOR, GEETANJALI ENCLAVE, NEW DELHI- 110 017
CIN:U74899DL1977PLC008B455 Website- www hotaimetdelhi.com
PHONE # (91 11) 41515250  e-mail: sunairhotels@gmail.com
NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 46th Annual General Meeting of the Members of Sunair Hotels Limited will be
held through through Video Conferencing ("VC") / Other Audio Visual Means ("CAVM™ | on Saturday 30th
September, 2023 at 11.30 A, vig zoom meetings link
hitps:f/u302web.zoom.us/j/84315997608?pwd=amFkaNWeUtHeWIucVEZcmNGWnBrdZOQ in  accordance
with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA General Circular No. 10/2022,
0272022, No. 02/2021, 20/2020, 14/2020 and 17/2020 dated 2&th December, 2022, 5th May, 2022, 13th

January, 2021, 5th May, 2020, 8th April, 2020 and 13th April, 2020 respectively, to transact the foltowing
businesses:-

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1. To receive, consider and adopt :
a. The Audited Financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2023,
together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon; and

b. The Audited Consolidated Financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended on 31st
March, 2023, together with the Report of the Auditors thereon.and in this regard, pass the following
resolutions as Ordinary Resclutions:

{a) "RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended March
31, 2023 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon laid before this meeting, be and
are hereby considered and adopted.”

(b) "RESOLVED THAT the audited consolidated financia statement of the Company for the financial year
ended March 31, 2023 and the report of Auditors thereon laid before this meeting, be and are hereby
considered and adopted.”

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Kaveen Gupta (Din-00204605 ), who retires by rotation and being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment and in this regard, pass the foliowing resoclution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Kaveen
Gupta (Din-00204605 ), who retires by rotation at this meeting and being eligible has offered himself for re-
appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.”

3. To ratify the appointment of auditors of the Company, and to fix their remuneration and to pass the
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution thereof:
"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 139,and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and the Rules made thereunder, pursuant fo the resolution passed by members at the 45th AGM heid on
14ih September, 2022,approved the appointment of M/s Anil Sood & AsscciatescChartered Accountant
{firm registration no. 004985 N) having Registered office at S-316,Greater Kailash-1, New Delhi-110048,
as Statutory Auditors of the Company to held office till the 50th Annual General Meeting , be and is hereby
ratified and that the Board of Directors be and are hereby authorized to fix the remuneration payable fo
them for the financial year ending March 31, 2024."

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

i)

(Neha Rajput)
Place ; New Delhi Company Secretary
Dated : 02/09/2023 A {Membership No -A-26116}
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in view of the continuing Covid-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") has vide its circular dated
28th December, 2022, May 5th, 2022, December 14th, 2021, December 8th, 2021, January 13th, 2021, May 5, 2020
read with circulars dated April 8, 2020 and April 13, 2020 (collectively referred to as "MCA Circulars’) permitted the
holding of the Annual General Meeting ("AGM?) through VC / OAVM, withou! the physical presence of the Members
at a common venue. in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act™, and MCA Circuiars, the
AGM of the Company is being held through VC / QAVM.

. Purstant to the provisions of the Act, a Member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a proxy

to attend and vole on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a Member of the Company. Singe this AGM is being
heid pursuant to the MCA Circulars through VG / QAVM, physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with.
Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available for the AGM and hence the
Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice.

Corperate members intending to authorize their representatives to attend the Meeting are requested to send a
scanned certified copy of the board resolution {pdfijpeg format) authorizing their representative to attend and vote on
their behaif af the Meeting. The said Resolution/Authorization shall be sent by email through #s registered email
address to sunairhotels@gmail.com.

Members seeking any information with regard to the accounts or any matter to be placed at the AGM, are requested
to write to the Company on or before AGM through email on sunairhotels@gmail.com.

In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 2022-23 is being
sent through electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses are found by the Company/directors.
Although the physical copies of the financial statements for the financial year 31.03.2023 is also being sent by
courier to ail the members specifying the detait of scheduled AGM by VC / OAVM. Members may note that the notice
and Annual Report 2022-23 will also be available on the Company's website www.hotelmetdelhi.com. Further the
link will be available on the website of the company at www.hoteimetdelhi. com shorily and also will be sent on the
emall ids/addresses of the shareholders whose addresses are available.

Members attending the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the guorum under
Section 103 of the Act.

since the AGM will be held through VC 7 OAVM, the Route Map is not annexad in this Notice.

In case of jeint holder attending the Meeting, whose name appears as the first holder in the order of names will be
entitied to vote.

To provide the fair chance to participate in the AGM by VC / OAVM, Members are advised to notify the Company
their email ids / change in email ids and Phone No's and any change in address to the company as soon as
possibie.

The Meeting shall be deemed o be held af the Registered office of the Company at A-7. 1st Floor, Geetanjali
Enclave, New Delhi-110017.

Members can send their requests, if any, to sunairhotels@gmail.com.

Voting if demanded by the members will be online at the email address of the company during the meeting

Facitity of joining the AGM through VC / OAVM shall open 15 minutes before the time scheduled for the AGM,
Further shareholders will be required o switch on the video facility and use internet connection with a good speed to
avoid any disturbance during the Meeting,

All grievances connected with the facility for voting during the meeting means may be addressed to Sunair Hotels
Limited and send an email to sunairhotels@gmail.com and further can call on 011-41515250.other details will be
posted on www hotelmetdethi.com.

Shareholders can update their mobile numbers and e-mail IDs (which may be used for sending fuiure
communication(s)) by writing to sunairhotels@gmail.com.
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SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
Regd. Off.;- A-7, 18T FLOOR, GEETANJALI ENCLAVE, NEW DELHI- 110 017

CIN:LI74899DL1G77P1.C008485

Website- www hotelmetdelhi com

PHONE # (91 11) 41515250  e-mail; sunairhotels@armail.com

Details of Directors Seeking Appointment / Re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting

TEM NO; 2

Name of Director

Mr. Kaveen Gupta

PAN no. AACPGEB454C
Date of Birth 26/05/1965
Date of Appointment 25/08/1994
Qualification MBA

Experience in functional area

Having experience about 31 years

Director in other Company Excluding Sunair
Hotels Limited

Sun Aero Limited
Columbia Trading Co. Ltd.
Pushpanjali Trexim (P) Ltd.

Membership in various committees In other
Board excluding Sunair Hotels Limited

NIL

Chairmanship in the Committees of other Boards

None

No. of shares heid in the Company

3291000 (as on date )

Detail of Remuneration last Drawn

21,006,000

Mr. S.P.Gupta - father

Relationship with other Directors and KMP

Mr. Vipul Gupta —-brother

Number of Board Meeting Aftended during the year




CIN:U74898DL1977PLCO08495
PHONE # (91 11) 41515250

SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
Regd. Off.:- A-7, 1ST FLOOR, GEETANJALI ENCLAVE, NEW DELHI- 110 017
Website- www.hotelmetdethi.com
e-mail: sunairhotels@gamail.com

To,

DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Members

The Directors of your company have pleasure in presenting the 46th Annual Report of the Company and itg
financial accounts for the year ended on 31st March, 2023.

1.
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FINANCIAL RESULTS
The Company's financial perfermance for the year under review along with previous years figures are
given hereunder :

CURRENT PREVIOUS

YEAR (Rs.) YEAR (Rs.)

31/03/2023 31/03/2022
Net Sales / Income from;
a) Business Operations £62,74,26,535 297245772
b) Other Income 3,16,49 838 2,58,08,079
Totat Income 65,90,76,373 32.30,53,850
Profit / {Loss) before Interest & Depreciation 17,10,03,658 4,99.79,156
Less:  Finance cost including Bank Charges 59,299 1,43,155
Profit / (Loss) before Depreciation 17,09,44,359 4,98,36,001
Less:  Depreciation 34775791 3,57,27.677
Profit / {Loss) after Depreciation but before Tax 13,61,68,568 1,.41,08,324
Less:  Tax (Saving} f Expense

a) Current income-tax 1,79,85,165 -

b) Earlier year{s) Adjustment of Income-tax - 93,120

cy Deferred Tax 1,83,70,268 1.40,18,698
Net Profit/ (Loss) after Tax 9,98,13,135 (3,484)
Less:  Appropriations:

a) Dividend (including Interim, if any, and Final) - -
Net Profit/ {Loss) after Dividend & Tax 9,98,13,135 (3,494)
Amount transferred to General Reserve - -
Balance carried to Balance Sheet 9,98,13,135 (3,494)
Earning per share (Basic) 2.51 -0.01
Earning per share (Dilutad) 2.51 -G.01
DIVIDENDS

With a view to conserve funds, the Directors do not recommend any dividend for the financial year
2022-23.

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

The provisions of section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply as there was no dividend
deciared and paid by the Company .

RESERVES

The Board of Directors do not propose any amount to be carried to any reserve,

{
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STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS AND FUTURE QUTLOOK
The Company is engaged in the business of Hotel Running and Financial / Portfolio Management.

The highlights of the Company's performance are as under:

Revenue from operations for the year stood at Rs. 62.74 crores turnover as compared to Rs.29.72
Crores for the previous year. Turnover has increased incredibily compared with previous year. Profit
before tax for the year stood at Rs 13.61 Crore as compared t0 Rs.1.41 Crore in the previous year.
Profit after tax for the year also stood at Rs. 9.98 crore for the year as compared 1o loss of Rs. 3,494 in
the previous year. Further Earning per Equity Share {EPS) of the Company has alsc increased during
the period under review for the year was Rs. 2.51/- as compared to Rs. -0.01 (loss) for the previous
year. The giobal economy witnessed a recovery in 2022 following two years of a pandemic-inflicted
environment. The International Monetary Fund (IMF) in their report of April 2023 estimates growth in
gichal Real Gross Domestic Product {(GDP) for 2022 to increase by 3.4% on the back of a 6.3%
increase in 2021, A higher-than-usuat growth in 2021 was due to a low-base effect of 2020 as a result
of the global pandemic during which GDP contracted by 2.8%.The outiook for FY 2023-24 is
optimistic. The outlook for the Indian hospitality industry during 2023 remains positive. The upsides
working in favour of the hospitality industry in India are good macroeconomic environment. The
Company succeeded in executing its plans during 2022 -2023. Now the Company focused on
exceeding its pre-pandemic fevels of financial performance.

Moreover, the industry has learnt to work with volatility and adopt leaner cost structures thus
contributing to higher profitability. Growth in the industry is largely expected from domestic demand
which is expected to remain strong through FY 2023-24 even as international travel has shown greean
shoots of recovery and provides scope for further growth in demand. Additionally, the India’s G20
Presidency and an opportunity to host international events, incfuding the ICC Men’s World Cup, is
expected to increase demand for hotels in the cities hosting the events. Growth in India’s service sector
and higher disposable income of people working in it, referred to in HSBC's Economic Research paper
above is also expected to increase demand for corporate travel and holidays. All segments of leisure,
weddings, conferences events, airline crew layovers and corporate travet are expected to grow further
during the year.

Sustenance of domestic leisure trave!, higher bookings from meetings, incentives,conferences, and
exhibitons (MICE), and business travel, along with an increase in foretourist arrivals {FTAs), would
support revenues, estimated the ratings agency. The Indian hospitality industry is also likely to benefit
from specific events like the G20 summit an 1CC World Cup 2023 Sharing a positive outlook on the
growth of indian hospitality industry, leading ratings and credit agency ICRA said that sustained
demand momentum will help the Indian hotel industry to register a double digit growth in revenue in FY
2024, Sharing its projection, the rating agency said that the Indian hotel industry to report a 13-15 per
cent revenue growth in FY2024, notwithstanding the potential impact on demand with further Covid
waves, if any, Anticipating the demand to continue rising in FY 2024 on the back of strong reccvery in
last one year, ICRA said sustenance of domestic leisure travel, higher bookings from meetings,
incentives, conferences, and exhibitions (MICE), and business travel, along with an increase in foreign
tourist arrivals (FTAs), would support revenues for hotels.

Based on UNWTO's forward-looking scenarios for 2023, international fourist arrivals could reach 80%
to 95% of pre-pandemic levels this year, depending on the extent of the economic slowdown, the
ongoing recovery of trave! in Asia and the Pacific and the evolution of the Russian. Ukraine issues
among other factors.

oy
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CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS

There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company during the financia year under
review.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT, IF ANY, AEFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO WHICH THESE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company, which
have occurred between the end of the financial year to which these financial staiements relate and the
date of this report,

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR
COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY'S
OPERATIONS IN FUTURE

Applications filed by the Company and VLS Finance Ltd (a registered sharcholder of the Company) u/s
34 of the Arbitration and Reconciliation Act 1998, chalienging the Award therein given are pending for
disposal since the year 2015 by the Hon'ble Delhi High Court as on the date of signing of these annual
financial statements, Similarly, the second petition for enforcement of the said Award filed by VLS
Finance Ltd in the Hor'ble Deihi High Court is also pending adjudication as an undertaking has been
given by VLS Finance Ltd not to press the execution till the original cross petition are decided. The
earlier such petition filed by VLS Finance Ltd was dismissed by the Hon'ble Deihi Migh Court on
16/08/2017. The award contained directions to the Company / its directors to refurd to VLS Finance
Lid the forfeited security deposit of Rs. 8 Crores in terms of the MOU dated 11/03/1995 with due
interest. However, as per legal opinion received by the Company no such amount is refundable
particularly when the Hon'ble Company Law Board vide its order dated 04/09/2012 fhas dismissed fhe
Company Peliliun of VLS Finance Ltd and decided in favour ot the Company.

SFO has filed a petition u/s 241(2) along with sections 248 and 339 of the Companies Act, 2013
before the Honble NCLT against the Company and others which is also pending adjudication,
Similarly, SFIO has also filed a complaint on the same subject as is before the Hon'ble NCLT in the
court of the learned ASJ (Special Court) Dwarka New Delhi, also still pending as on this date.

In the FIRs filed by the State on the complaints of VLS Finance Lid. against the Company and others,
charges have been framed by the learned Trial Court where proceedings including revisions are still
pending at different stages.

The Company Petitons No. CP-35(ND)2010 and CP-38(ND)2016 filed against the Company and
others have been withdrawn by the Petitioners after reaching a settlement before the Hon’ble NCLT,
resulting into their closure.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS
AND OUTGO

The information pertaining to conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange
garnings and outgo as required under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule
8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is furnished in 'Annexure-A' altached to this report.

STATEMENT CONCERNING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICY OF THE COMPANY

The Company does not have any risk management policy as the elements of risk threatening the
Company's existence are quite minimat. £
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DETAILS OF POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON ITS
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES

The Company is covered under the provisions of Corporate Social Responsibility pursuant to the
provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore the company has spent the funds
through "Abhinandan Jan Kalyan Saociety " which have used the fund for Charitable Diagnositic
Services and working for reducing inequalities faced by socially and economically backward groups.
Disclosures as per Rule 9 of Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 has been
given by way of an Annexure to this Report.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS. GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION 186 COF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The Company has not given any loans to any person or other body corporate or given any guarantee in
connection with any loan to any bedy Corporate or person or acquired by way of subscription, purchase
or otherwise, the securities of any other body corporate during the financial year 2022-2023 covered
under the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES
There were no fresh contracts or arrangements made with related parties as defined under Section 188
of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year under review.

EXPLANATION QR COMMENTS ON QUALIFICATIONS, RESERVATIONS OR ADVERSE

REMARKS OR DISCLAIMERS MADE BY THE AUDITORS AND THE PRACTICING COMPANY
SECRETARY IN THEIR REPORTS

There were no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by the Auditors in their report. The
provisions relating to submission of Secretarial Audit Report are not applicable to the Company,

COMPANY’'S POLICY RELATING TO DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT, PAYMENT OF
REMUNERATION AND DISCHARGE OF THEIR DUTIES

A) Changes in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

a) Al the ensuing Annual General Meeting Mr. Kaveen Gupta {DIN-00204605) ,Executive Director of
the Comapny retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for reappointment, Mr. Kaveen Gupta
shall continue to hold his office of Executive Director, and the reappointment as such director shai! not
be deemed to constitute a break in his office of Executive Director detail regarding Mr.Kaveen Gupta
are Annexed with the Notice Calling AGM.

C) Declaration by an Independent Director(s) and re- appointment, if any
As at present there is no independent Directors in the company. Further the Company is searching for
the suitable person to join as Independent Director in the Company to fulfill the requirement.

B} Formal Annual Evaluation

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of the performance of Board Committees
and Company Secretary, CFO of the Company pursuant to the provisions of Companies Act, 2013. The
performance of the Commitiees was evaluated by the Board on the basis of the criteria such as the
ceordination and effectiveness of Committee meetings, etc.

Performance of the Independent Directors was can not evaluated by the Board as there is no
indipendent director in the company during the year under review .Further the Company is searching
for the suitable persons to join as Independent Director in the Company to fulfill the requirement,
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The performance of the entire Board was evailuated on the basis of the criteria such as the Board
composition, fulfillment of responsibility, effectiveness of Board processes, functioning, etc. The
performance of the Executive Directors (individaally) including Chairman and Non-executive Directors
(individually), was evaluated by the Directors of the Companyon the basis of the criteria such as
Presence in the meetings, Strategic planning, Compliance, compietion of duties, etc,
Web Link of Annual Return.:-
The reporting of extract of Annual Return in Form no. MGT-9 had been done away with pursuant to
amendment in Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12 of Companias
{(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 w.e.f. 28/08/2020. Hence, the reporting of extract of
Annuat Return has not been made in this report. The Annual Return is now required to be placed on the
website of the Company, if any, in terms of Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the Act and link
thereof is required to be given in the Board's Report. The Annual Return for the Financial Year 2022.23
is available on web link https:/iwww.hotelmetdelhi.com/Draft_annual_return23.pdf

ANNUAL RETURN

The reporting of extract of Annual Return in Form no. MGT-9 had been done away with pursuant to
amendment in Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12 of Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 w.ef. 28/08/2020. Hence, the reporting of extract of
Annual Return has not been made in this report. The Annual Return is now required to be placed on the
website of the Company, if any, in terms of Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the Act and link
therect is required to be given in the Board's Report. The Annual Return for the Financial Year 2022-23
is available on web link hitps://www.hotelmetdelhi.com/Draft_annual_return23.pdf

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS CONDUCTED DURING THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW
The meeting of the Board of Directors were heid four (4) times 04/05/2022, 03/08/2022, 28/11/2022,
G6/03/2023 during the financial year 01/04/2022 to 31/03/2023.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In terms of Section 134(3) read with Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your directors confirm

as under:

a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed
along with proper explanation relating to material depariures:

b) The directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistentiy and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the company for
that pericd,

¢) The directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

e) The Company being uniisted, sub clause (e) of section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013
pertaining to laying down internal financial controls is not applicable to the company,

f) The Direciors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Statement about the subsidiary company, M/s Sun Aero Limited has been enclosed with the Directors

Report.

PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL POSITION OF EACH OF THE SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES

AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES INCLUDED IN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

The Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 together with Reports of

Directors and Auditors thereon of its, a wholly owned Subsidiary Company, together with the statement

as required under Section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013, a statement containing salient features of

the Financial Statements of the Company's subsidiary in form AOC-1 is attached herewith, No effect
in the books of account of the Company has bee?}taken for the profit of the Subsidiary Company.,
t
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DEPOSITS
The Company has neither accepied nor renewed any deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act,
2013 during the year under review. Although the company has fited the Return of deposit form (Annual)
pursuant to the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

DIRECTORS

Mr. Kaveen Gupta (DIN-002046805) ,Exscutive Director of the Comapny retires by rotation and being
eligible offers himself for reappointment, but it shall not be deemed to constitute a break in his office of
Executive Director as he was re -appointed as an Executive Director of the Company at the Annual
General Meeting held on 14/09/2022 for a period of three year from 01/04/2022 to 31/03/2025. Further
the post of Independent Director is stili vacant and the Company is searching for the suitable person
to join as Independent Director in the Company to fulfili the requirement.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s Anil Scod & Associates Chartered Accountant (firm registration no. 004985N) New Delhi, the
Statutory Auditor of the Company were appointed as the Auditors of the Company at the 45th Annual
genaral Meeting of the Company held on 14th September, 2022 pursuant to section 139 and 142 and
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act , 2013, and the Rules made hereunder, as amended
from time to time, for period of five years till the conclusion of the 50th Annual General Meeling |
subject to the ratification by the shareholders at every Annual General Meeting.

DISCLOSURE OF COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE AND PROVIDING VIGIL MECHANISM
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act 2013 (corresponding Section 2924 of
the Companies Act, 1958), the Audit Committee meeting was held four (4) times during the year on
04/06/2022, 03/08/2022, 28/11/2022, 06/03/2023 which were attended by all the Committee members.
The Committee reviewed all the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2023. During the
Financial Year 31st March 2023 as the post of Independent Director is still vacant Audit commitiee had
three members which includes Mr. S.P.Gupta, Mr.Vipul Gupta and Mr. Kaveen Gupta who attended the
aforesaid meetings. Provisions Related with the Vigil Mechanism is not applicable on Company.

SHARES

a}) DEFFERENTIAL RIGHTS
The Company has not issued any share with differential rights, as provided in rule 4 (4) of
Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 during the year.

D) SWEAT EQUITY
The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares during the year under review. The
Company has not issued any sweat equity shares as provided in rule 8 (13) of Companies (Share
Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 during the year.

c) BONUS SHARES
The Company has not issued any share related with any scheme where the voting rights are not
exercised directly by the employees, as provided in rule 16 (4) of Companies {Share Capital and
Debentures) Rules, 2014,

d) EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION PLAN
The Company has not issued any Employee Stock Options as provided in rule 12 (9) of Companies
(Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 during the financial year.

AUDITORS’ REPORT
The Directors are of the view that the notes appended fo the accounts and referred to by the auditors in
their report are seff-explanatory and do not require any elucidation.

b
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NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The policy formulated by nomination and remuneration committee is enclosed. During the year no
nomination and remuneration Commitiee meeting was held during the year.

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR)

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee meeting was held one (1) times during the year on
06/03/2023, which were attended by all the Committee members. As the post of independent Director
are still vacant CSR committee had three members which includes Mr. S.P.Gupta, Mr.Vipul Gupta and
Mr. Kaveen Gupta who attended the aforesaid meetings.

MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION:

The information required pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1)
of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is also enclosed
as Annexure - i to this Report. The information pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Rule 5(2) & 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 pertaining to the top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn and their
other particulars also form part of this report. However, the report and the accounts are being sent to
the members excluding the aforesaid annexure. In terms of Section 1368 of the Companies Act, 2013,
the said annexure is open for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company. Any shareholder
interested in obtaining a copy of the same may write to the Company Secretary.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CERTIFICATE
Not Applicable.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
Not applicable.

MAINTENANCE OF CQST RECORDS
Maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Centrai Government under sub-section (1)
of section 148 of tha Companies Act, 2013.

SEXUAL HARRASMENT OF WOMEN AT WORK PLACE

Company promote the positive workplace environment for everyone, free from harassment of any
nature. And no complaint was received by the Company from any women empioyee during the year
2022-2023.

COMPLIANCE OF SECRETARIAL STANDARD ISSUED BY ICS|

Company has complied with the Secretarial Standard issued by ICSI.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS;

Adequate Internal Financial Conirol system and checks are in place commensurate with the size of the
company and nature of its business.

DETAILS OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SUB-SECTION (12) OF SECTION 143
During the year under review, the statutory auditors has not reported to the audit committee, under
section 143(12) of the companies Act, 2013, any instance of fraud committed against the company by
its officers or employees, the detail of which would need to be mentioned in the Director's Report.

Disclosure under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code (IBC), 2016
there is no proceeding which is pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptey Code (IBC}, 2016 during
the financial yearunder review. Lo
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39. Befails of Difference between Valuation Amount on One Time Settlement and Valuation while
During the year under review there has been no one time setilement of Loans taken from Fiznks and
Finangial Institutions,

40. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
Your Directors place on record their sincere thanks to bankers, business associates, consultants,
various Government Authorities, employeas and shareholders for their continued suppoert extended to
vour Company's activities during the year under review,

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

(S.P. GUPTA) (KAVEEN GUPTA)
Place : New Dethi {DIN-00204504) (DIN-00204605)

Dated : 02/09/2023 Chairman Executive Director



ANNEXURE-A
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING
AND CUTGO FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31/03/2023

Information on conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Quigo
required to be disclosed under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014 are provided hereunder:

{A} Conservation of Energy:
{i) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy.

Company is making all Efforts to improve energy usage efficiencies and increase the share of
renewable energy and reuse of natural recourses. The Company has a process fo identify and
evaluate energy risks and opportunities, taking into account future plans, evelving regulatory
frameworks and other aspects. Further Your Company has implemented various guidance
issued by The Ministry of Envircnment and Forests (MoEF) and cther applicable laws to make
hotels more environment friendly.

Company has complied and would comply with the requirements of the Government in this
regard. Your company has continuously being acquiring the ecofriendly methoeds and
environment friendly technologies and other necessary measures to achieve eccnomy in
consumption of energy. The company is already having following systems in place for
conservation of energy.

Using of 4 stage dimmer system.

In guest rooms energy key card system.

Building automation system for all equipmenis.

Various speed pumps.

VED operated Alc plant with eco- Friendly system.

Most of the equipments are PNG operated.

PNG operated boiters

In guest rooms insulated windows.

Eco-friendly laundry equipments.

Company has already replaced device in Air condition plants with energy saving devices
Company has already replaced alf ighting with LED

Company is using natural pipe gas for boilers & Kitchen equipments.

m Replacement of guest Elevator

n  Replacement of Air Condition plant no.3 with VFD operated ECO- friendly system

o Charcoal base Tandcor replaced with PNG Tandoor.

TERTTS@ M0 000

a.  No fresh investment and upgradation in energy conservation system in the year 2022-23

(i) The steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of
energy. ¢ Rs. Nil
a. Natural Gas
b. Solar Energy

(iiiy The capital investment on energy conservation equipments. : Rs. Nil

(B} Technology Absorption:
(i} Company has already taken steps towards technology absorption in the last few vears and
some of them are listed below:
Upgradation in STP Plant for recycling of water,
Organic Waste Converter.
Upgradation in Rain Water Harvesting System.
Company has already Built Automation System 12
Company is conducted Water & Energy Audit every year.
Company is already having has LED System

~® 00T



(C)

{iii}

L2
¢ Online Monitoring System of Sewage Treatment Plant and Air Monitoring System
h. 100% Reusing of waste water after treatment
i.  Charcoal base Tandoor reptaced with PNG Tandoor.
During the previous year the none efforts taken towards technology absorption.

the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product
development or import substitution.
a. Cost Reduction
D, Product Improvement
in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years
reckoned from the beginning of the financial year).
the details of technology imported
Washer extractor

{p) the year of import; ¢ FUY 2018-2020
{(c) whether the technology been fully absorbed : Yes
(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, : Not Applicable

and the reasons thereof,

(iv) the expenditure incurred on Research and Development, . Not Applicable

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Qutao:

Particulars 31°'March 2023 31%"March 2022
Earnings 11,54,22 872 3,009,871
Outgo / Expenses 51,02,744 2204875

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

SR s

A IR

(S.P. GUPTA) (KAVEEN GUPTA)
{DIN-00204504) (DIN-00204805)
Chairman Executive Director

o 4 SR
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(VIPIN JAIN) (NEHA RAJPUT)

Place : New Delhi Chief Financial OfficerCompany Secretary
Dated : 02/09/2023 M.No.-FCS 8984 {M.no. A-26116)



Form No. AQC-1
(Pursuant lo first proviso to sub-section {3) of section 128 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014) for the year ended on 31st March, 2023

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/ associate
companies/ joint ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

{Information in respect of subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Hundreds )
1. 8l No. -1
2. Name of the subsidiary- Sun Aero Limited

3 the date since when subsidiary was acquired- 22/10/1993

4. Reporting pericd for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the holding company’s reporting
period 01/04/2022 to 31/03/2023.

5. Reporling currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the relevant Financial year in the case
of foreign subsidiaries. ~N.A.

8. Share capital —Authorized Share Capital — 1000000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each and paid up
share capital- 70000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each.

7.  Reserves & surplus : 27,76,11,053
8. Total assets : 27.,84.32.053
9. Total Liahilities : 1,21,000

10, Investments : ~

1. Turnover : 4,61,00,646
12.  Profit before taxation : 21,28.900
13, Provision for taxation : 3.85,744
4. Profit after taxation : 17,43,156

15, Proposed Dividend : -
16. % of shareholding : 100%

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:
1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet o commence operations —=N.A.
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year. — N.A.

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures
Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies
and Jeoint Ventures Name of Associates/Joint Veniures

Name of Associates/Joint Ventures
1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date Ty N A
2 Date on which the Assaciate or Joint Venture was associated or acquired- N.A.



P2
3. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the company on
the year end
iy No.
iy Amount of investment in Associates/Joint Venture
iy Extend of Holding %

4. Description of how there is significant influence

Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated

6. Net worth atiributable to Shareholding as per latest audited
Balance Sheet

7. Profit/ Loss for the year
i.} Considered in Consolidation
ii.} Not Considered in Consclidation

N.A.
N.A,
N.A,
N.A,
N.A.

N.A.

NA,

N.A.
N.A.

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations — N.A.
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year- N A

AUDITORS' REPORT
As per our report of even date

For ANIL. SOOD & ASSOCIATES St -
Chartered Accountants (S.P. GUPTA)
Firm Regn, No.004885N (DIN-G0204504)
Chairman
) < (9 j -
(ANIL SO0D) {(VIPIN JAIN)
FPlace : New Delhi Partner Chief Financial Officer

Dated : 02/09/2023 Membership No. 83839 M No.-FCS 8984

Cal }o
(KAVEEN GUPTA)

(DIN~-00204605)
Executive Director

Celf -
(NEHA RAJPUT)
Company Secretary
(M.No. A-26116)



ANNEXURE-B
FORM NO. AQC-2
[Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Compariies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014] for the year ended on 31st March, 2023

FORM FOR DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS / ARRANGEMENTS ENTERED
INTO BY THE COMPANY WITH RELATED PARTIES REFERRED TO IN SUB-SECTION {1} OF
SECTION 188 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 INCLUDING CERTAIN ARMS LENGTH
TRANSACTION UNDER THIRD PROVISO THERETO

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transaction not at Arm’s Length basis:

Sl. No. Particulars Details
(@)  Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship : NiL
{b)  Nature of contracts / arrangements / transaction : NiL
(¢}  Duration of the contracts / arrangements / transaction : NIL
{d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction - NIL

including the value, if any
(e}  Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or : NIL
transaction
(f)  Date of approval by the Board : NIL
(9) Amount paid as advances, if any : NIL.
(hy Date on which the special resolution was passed in General NiL

meeting as required under first proviso o section 188

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transaction at Arm’s Length basis:

Si. No. Particulars Details
(a) Name(s) of the related party & nature of relationship : NIL
(b)  Nature of contracts / arrangements / transaction : NIL
(¢)  Duration of the contracts / arrangements / transaction : NIL
(dy Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction NIL

including the value, if any
(e} Date of approval by the Board : NIL.
(fy  Amount paid as advances, if any : NIL

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

/- /-
{(S.P. GUPTA) (KAVEEN GUPTA)
Place: New Delhi {DIN-00204504) (DIN-00204605)
Dated : 02/69/2023 Chairman Executive Director



ANNEXURE TO DIRECTOR REPORT

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION POLICY

INTROBUCTION

In an endeavor to safeguard the interest of public at large, the Cempanies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) provides that the
performance of the board of directors of listed companies and prescribed class of companies must be
reviewed regularly against appropriate measures, For this purpese, the Nomination and Rernuneration
Committee of a company is required under Section 178 of the Act to formulate a policy for recommending it to
the Board of directors of the company, setting the criteria, based on which the performance of each and every
director including the performance of the Board as & whole shall be assessed by the Board of Directors of the
Company. Based on such performance evaluation, remuneration of directors, key managerial personnel and
other senior management shall be determined. such an evaluation procedure will provide a fine system of
checks and balances on the performance of the directors and will ensure that they exercise their powers in a
rational manner.

This policy aims at establishing a procedure for conducting periodical evaluation of directors’ performance and
formulating the criteria for determining quafification, positive attribute and independence of each and every
director of the Company in order to effectively determine issues refating o remuneration of every director, key
managerial personnel and other employees of the Company. This policy further aims at ensuring thal the
committees {o which the Board of Directors has delegated specific responsibilities are performing efficiently in
conformity with the prescribed functions and duties. For this purpose, the Nomination and Remuneraiion
Committee shail be responsible to identify the persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be
appointed in the senior management of the Company and recommend to the Board their appointment and
removal.

In addition, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall carry out the evaluation of performance of
every director, key managerial personnel and other employees in accordance with the criteria contained
herein, based on which their remuneration shall be determined.

RESPONSIBILITY OF BOARD

it shall be the duty of the Chairman of the Board, who shall be supported by the Company Secretary o
organize the evaluation process and accordingly conclude the steps required to be taken. The evaluation
process will be used constructively as a system to improve the directors’ and committees’ effectiveness, to
maximize their strength and to tackle their shortcomings.

The Board of Directors shall undertake the following activities on an annual basis:
{.  The Chairman of the Company shall meet with each and every director individually to discuss his / her
performance throughout the year,

. Review performance evaluation reports submitted by the Chairperson of various commitiees along with
their suggestions on improving the effectiveness of the committee. Also, the reguirement of establishing
any new committees shall be reviewed by the Board on an annual basis.

I, Review the various sirategies of the Company and accordingly set the performance chjectives for
direclors, in consistency with varying nature and requirements of Company's business.

IV. The Board as a whole shall discuss and analyze its own performance during the year together with
suggestions for improvement thereon, pursuant to the performance objectives.

In conformity with the requirement of the Act, the performance evaluation of independent directors shall be
dene by the entire Board of Directors, excluding tgw%director being evaluated.



RESPONSIBILTY OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Independent Directors shaii evaluate the performance of non - independent directors and board as a whole,
The independent directors of the Company shall hold at least one meeting in a year {0 review the performance
of the non- independent directors, performance of chairperson of the Company and Board as a whole, taking
into account the views of executive directors and non-executive directors.

EVALUATION FACTORS

The Board of Directors shail pay regards to the following parameters for the purpose of evaluating the
perfermance of a particular director:

In respect of each of the evaluation factors, various aspects have been provided fo assist with the evaluation
process in respect of performance of independent directors, non- independent directors, other employees of
the Company and committees of directors separately, as, such evaluation factors may vary in accordance with
their respective functicns and duties.

Rating Scale
Scale Performance

Exceptionally good
Good

Satistactory

Needs improvement
Unacceptable

= Wb G

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS Overall Rating:

-_|Compliance with Articles of Association, Companies Act & other Laws

- |Compliance with ethical standards

- |Rendering independent, unbiased opinion

- |Atiendance & presence in meetings of Board & committees

- _{Attendance & presence in general meetings

- iLeadership qualities

- |Qualifications

- |Disclosure of independence, and disclosure of interest

-_lindependent view on key appeiniments & strategy formulation

- 10Ohjective evaluation of Board's performance

- Review of integrity of financial information

- iSafeguard of stakeholders’ interests

- |Appointment & removal of KMPs

- |Determination of level of remuneration of KMPs

- |Updation of skills and knowledge

- |Punciuality

- |Information regarding external environment

- 1Seeking expert opinion, when required

- iRaising of concerns to the Board

- [Reporting of frauds, violation etc,

- |Team work attributes

- |Safeguard of confidential information




NON — INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS / NON — EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS/! EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS/CMD

Overall Rating:

-_|Compliance with Article of Association, Companies Act & other laws

- I8trategic planning- financial & business

- _Operational performance of the Company

- (Monitoring performance against plans

- |Steps initiated towards Business Development

-_|Steps initiated towards Branding of the Company

- [Compliance with ethical standards

- |Exercising duties diligently

- |Quatifications

- |Punctuality

- {Disclosura of interest

- |Leadership skills

- |Maotivating employees, providing assistance & directions

- |Establishment of internal control processes

- |Communication skills

- |Attendance & presence in meetings of Board & committees

- jAltendance of general meetings

- {Tean work attributes

- [Monitoring policies, encouraging suggestions

- |Supervising & fraining the staff members

- |Safeguard of confidential information

COMMITTEES OF BOARD
The Board has constituted the following committees:

Audit Commitiee;

Nomination and Remuneration Committee:;
Corporate Social Responsibifities Committee
Share Transfer Committee

BN -

For avatuating the performance of each committee, the Board of Directors shall pay regards to the following
aspects:
Overall Rating:

- _|Compliance with Article of Association, Companies Act & other laws
- 1Complance with its charter documents 8127
- iCompiiance with ethical standards& code of conduct of Company

- _[Committee’s accomplishments w.r.t. performance objectives
- |Redressal of complaints & grievances

- |Coordination with other committees and Board of Directors

- |Fulfilment of roles & responsibilities B132
- |Adherence to Company’s policies and internal procedures




ENTIRE BOARD Overall Rating: _

Is the composition of the board appropriate with the right mix of Knowledge and skills
-_jrequired to drive organizational performance in the Light of future sirateqy?

- _|Members of the board meet all applicable independence requirements.

The Beard of Directors is effective in establishing a corporate environment that
promotes timely and effective disclosure, fiscal accountability, high ethical standards
- land compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

The Board of Directors is effective in deveioping a good corporate governance
- jpractice that allows and encourages the Board to fulfill its Responsibilities.

The Board is provided with sufficient information about maierial risks and proeblems
- |that affects the Company's business and prospects.

The Board receives regular financial updates and takes ail necessary steps to
ensure the operations of the organization are sound and reviews the organization's
performance in carrying out the stated mission on a regular basis.

Are sufficient numbers of board meetings, of appropriate length, being held to enabie
- |proper consideration of issuas?

The information provided to directors prior to Board meetings meets expectations in
- terms of length and leve! of detail

Board mesatings are conducted in 2 manner that encourages open Communication,
- |meaningful participation, and timely resolution of issues.

The Chairman of the Board effectively and appropriately leads and facilitates the
- _|Board meetings and the policy and governance work of the Board.

Nomination and appointment of Board members and their Remuneration follow
clearly established procedures laid down by the Nomination and Remuneration
- |Committee.

COMPANY SECRETARY Qverall Rating:

- iCompliance with Article of Association, Companies Act & other laws

-_{Compliance with ethical standards & code of conduct of Company

-_|Reporting to the Board about compliance with applicable laws

~_{Ensuring compliance with secretarial standards

- |Assistance {o the board of directors

- |Discharge of duties assigned by Board

- _isuccess of mestings convenad

- iPreparation of minutes

Attendance & presence in meeting of board, committees of Board and general
- |meeting

- |Assistance in obtaining required approvals form Board, shareholders, Government

-_|Representation before various regulators on behalf of the company

- |Advising Board on corporate governance and compliance there under

- jPunctuality

OTHER KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND SENIOR EMPLOYEES

Overall Rating:

- |Compliance with Article of Association, Companies Act & other laws

- _|Compliance with ethical standards & code of conduct of Company

- |Fuliiiment of roles and responsibifities granted to them

- _[Achievement of target fixed

- {Punctuality and other personality related aspects

R



:5:
REMUNERATION
The Company aspires to pay performance linked remuneration to its directors, key managerial personnet and
other senior employees. For this reason, based on the fore-stated criteria of evaluation of performance of
directors, Company Secretary and other Key Manageriai Personnel and senior employees, their remuneration
shall be determined and reviewed from time to fime by the Chairman & Managing Director. '

REVIEW

Subject to the approval of Board of Directors, the “Nomination and Remuneration Committee” reserves s
right to review and amend this Policy, if required, to ascertain its appropriateness as per the needs of the
Company. The Policy may be amended by passing a resolution at a meeting of the Nomination and
Remuneration Commitiee.

DISCLOSURE

In accordance with the requirement under the Companies Act, 2013, Rules made thereunder, disclosures will
be made in the Board Report regarding the manner in which the performance evaluation has been done by
the Board of Directors of its own performance, performance of various Committees of Directors and individual
Directors.

) - S &
S.P. Gupta (KAVEEN GUPTA)
Place: New Delhi Director {DIN-G0204805)
Dated : 02/09/2023 {DIN-00204504) Executive Director
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7.

ANNEXURE-3
Annual report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activities
For the Financial Year 2022-2023

[Pursuant to clause (o) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule ¢ of the Companies (Corporate
Sccial Responsihility) Rules, 2014)

Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company: The Board of Diractors, on the recommendation of the CSR

Committee, had formulated a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy ("CSR"). As per the Policy Statement,
the Company's CSR policy will focus on addressing the critical social economic issues.

Composition of CSR Committee:

Name Cesignation No. of Meeting of CSR No. of Meeting of CSR
Committee held during the  Commitiee attend during
year the year
(i  Sh.S.P.Gupta (DIN: Chairman (Chairman
Cum Managing 1 1
00204504) Director )
(iy  Sh.Vipul Gupta (DIN:  Member (Whole Time ’ 1
00204638) Director)
{iiy Sh. Kaveen Gupta(DIN: Member {Whole Time 1 ’
00204605 ) Directon

Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the
board are disclosed on the website of the company: Not Applicable

Frovide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of
the Companies (Corporate Sccial responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report): Not
Applicable

Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rute 7 of the Companies {(Corporate
Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount reauired for set off for the financial year, if any: Nil

Sl Financiat Year Amount available for set off from Amount Required fo be set off for the
No preceding financial year financial year, if any
1 NIL

Total |

Average net profit of the company for last three financial years -Rs. 4,03,06,750/-.

a. Two Percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) -Rs. 8,06,135/-.

b.  Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years: Nil
c. Ameoeunt required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil

d.  Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c). -Rs. 8,06,135/-.

2



D2
8. {a). CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Total Amount Spent for

the Financial Year. (in

Total Amount transferred to
unspent CSR Account as per

Total Amount transferred to any fund

section 135(6)

specified under schedule VI| as per

Rs.) second proviso to section 135(5)
Date of Name of the Date of
Amount transfer Fund Amount transfer
8,086,200 NH N.A Nii
(b}. Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:
4y, {2) (4) {5) {6) {7) (8)
Amount
Preojects or spent on the
programs projects or
(1) Local area or programs
Sector other Sub - heads:
in (2) Specify the State (1) Direct Amount
which and district where expenditure | Cumulative [spent : Direct
C8R the projects or Amount outlay} on projects | expenditure | or through
S.§ projector Project programs was {budget) or programs | upto to the | implementin
No| activity |is covered undertaken project or {2) reporting g agency”
identified programs wise| Qverheads period
(c) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial yvear is detailed below.
(in Rs.)
(1} (2) (3} 4 (5) {8) {7) {8)
Amount
Projects or spent on the
programs projects or
(1) Local area or programs
Sector other Sub ~ heads:
in (2) Specily the State (1} Direct Amount
which and district where expenditure | Cumulative {spent : Direct
CSR the projects or Amount outlay] on projects | expenditure | or through
5. | project or Project programs was (budget) or programs ; upto to the | implementin
No| activity |is covered undertaken project or (2) reporting g agency”
identified programs wise| Qverheads period
For Charitable
As per . . )
Diagnositic services
Clause Il and working for .
Abhinandan of reducing inequalities Abhinandan
4 | Jan Kalyan | scheduie ) 8.06,200 8,06,200 8,06,200( Jan Kalyan
Society | Vil of the faced by soc_:lally Society
. and economically
Companie .
s act 2013, backward groups in
Delhi
TOTAL 8,06,200 8.08,200 8,086,200

{d) Amcunt spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil

{e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicabie: NA




{f} Total amount spent for the Financial Year {8h+8c+8d+8e): Rs. 8,06,200/-

{g) Excess ameunt for set off, if any:

Si. No, Particular Amount {in Rs.)
{i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 8.06,135
135(5)
(i) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 8,086,200
{iii) Excess amount spent for the financial vear [{ii)-(i))] -65
{iv}) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities
of the previous financial years, if any -
(v} Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)]

9. {a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: NA
{b) Detalls of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s): NA

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created
or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year: The Company has not created or acquired any
capital assets through CSR spent in the Financial Year 2022-23.

Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as
per section 135(5): The Company had undertaken to spend an amount of 8,06,135/- during the financial
year 2022-23 as per mandatory requirement and no CSR amount left unspent.

Q@f" Gd /-
(5.P. GUPTA) (KAVEEN GUPTA)
Place: New Delhi (DIN-00204504} (DIN-00204605)

Dated : 02/09/2023 Chairman Executive Director

IS
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Independent Auditor's Report
To the Members of Sunair Hotels Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have auwdited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Sunair Hotels Limited ("the Company™),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31{st March, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow
Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information{ herein referred as "the Financial Statements™).

In our opinion and 1o the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act®) in the manner
so required and give & true and fair view in conformity with the Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133
of the Act read with the( Accoutning Standards) Ruies 2021("AS") and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the slate of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, its profit and cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted owr audit of the standalone Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
{5As) specified under section 143{10} of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Audifor's Responsibifities for the Audit of tfre Standalone Financial Stalements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accerdance with the Code of Ethics (CoE) issued by the Institute of Charterad
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial
Statements under the provisions of the Act and Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfiled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAYsCode of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Standalone
Financial Statements.

Information Other than the standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsibie for the preparation and presentation of its report (herginafter
called as "Board Report”} which comprises various informations required under section 134(3) of the Companies
Act 2013 hut dees not include the Standalone Financial Statements and our auditor's report therson.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statement does not cover the Board Report and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with cur audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the Board Report
and in doing so, consider whether the Board Report is materially inconsistent with the Standalone Financial
Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or ctherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conciude that there is & material misstatement of this Board Report,
we are required to report that fact, we have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to
the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the AS and other accounting principies
generally accepted in India . This responsibilify atso includes maintenance of adequate accounting records i
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial conirols, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of theStandatone financial statement that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as & going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so. P



The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's standalone financiai reporting process
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reascnable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud

or error and are considered material ¥, individually or in the aggregate, they couid reasonably be expected to
nfiuence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We alsc:

a)  ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
issufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstalement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resuiting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

b)  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant o the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the operative
effectiveness of Company's interal control systems.

¢)  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reascnableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

d)  Conciude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going cencern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence oblained, whether a materiat uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
castsignificant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going cencem. If we conclude that a material
unceriainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
standatone Financia! Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify cur opinion. Qur
conciusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
avents or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a geing concern.

e}  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Financial Statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in @ manner that achieves fairpresentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone Financial Statements that, individually aggregate,
makes it probable that the econemic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone Financial
Statements maybe influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and gualitative factors in (i) planning the scope
of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our wark; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal controt that we
identify during our audit.

We alsc provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reascnably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, retated safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. This report as per annexure -A include a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 & 4 of the
Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 issued by the Central Government in terms of sub-section (11) of

saction 143 of the Act, to the extent applicable to the Company.

2. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:



(d)

{e}

)

We have sought and obtained ail the information and 'explanations which {o the bést of cur knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinien proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books:

The Standzlone Balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss and the statement of cash flows dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Acceunting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the  Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2023 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2023 from heing
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such contrels, refer {0 our separate report in “Annexure B", and

{a) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(18) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according o the explanations given to us, the
managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2023, has been paid/provided by the Company
to its directors is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of cur
information and according to the explanations given to us:

() ~The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone financial statements-Refer Note No. 38 and 3% o the standalone financial statements.

(il The Company did not have any material foreseeable logses on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts.

(iiy There were no amounts required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Company,

(iv) &) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds)} by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including
foreign entities (Intermediaries), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
{Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

The Management has represenied thai, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (Funding
Parties), with the understanding, whether recorded in wiiting or otherwise, that the Company
shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and



e

¢) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(e), as provided under {a} and (b),
contain any material misstatement.

{v) a) The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

by The Board of Directors of the Company have not proposed any dividend for the year.

For ANIL SOCD & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountanis
Firm Regn. No.004885N

(ANIL SCOD)

$-316, Greater Kailash-1 Partner
New Delhi -110 048 Membership No. 83939 o
Dated: 02/08/2023 UDIN: 2408 GG A Cor i A 865 5




ANNEXLUIRE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regutatory Reguirements’ section of our report to the
Members of Sunair Hotels Limited of even date)

i}

{ii)

(i)

{iv)

)

(vi)

{vii)

In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment:
{&) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particuiars, inciuding quantitative details and
situation of property, plant and equipment. The company does not have any intangible assets.

(b) The Company has a program of verification to cover ail the items of property, plant and equipment in a
phased manner which, in our opinion, is reasonabie having regard Lo fhe size of the Company and the
nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, property, plant and equipment were physically verified by
the management during the year. According to the information and explanations given to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

{c)  According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us, we report
that, the title deeds, comprising all the immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

d)  The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment (including Right of Use assets)
during the year.

e}  According fo the information and explanations given fo us, no proceedings have been initiated during
the year or pending against the Company as at March 31, 2023, for holding any benami property under
the Benami Transactions {Prohibition} Act, 1988 (as amended in 2018) and rules made thereunder.

{8) The inventory includes food, Beverage, Operating Equipment, spares were physically verified by the
management at reasonabie intervals during the year. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification
of inventory as compared to book records were not material and have been properly dealt with in the
books of account.

{b)  The Company has not availed /been sanctioned any working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in
aggregate, from Banks on the basis of security of current assets, therefore no requiremant to fila
quarterly returns/statements by the Company with such banks .

During the year, the Company has not made investments | provided any guarantee(s) or security(ies) or
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans Secured or Unsecured to companies, firms, limited
fiability parinerships or any parties hence clause 3(ii)(a) to 3(ii§) (f} s not applicable to the company.

In cur opinion and according to the information and exptanations given to us, the Company has complied with
the provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of loans granted, investments made and
guarantees and securities provided, as applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has neither accepted any amounts
which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of Section 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules made
thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not
applicabte to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, maintenance of cost records has
not been specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act,
2013,

According to the information and expianations given fo us, in respect of statutory dues:

{a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues including goods
and service tax, provident fund., employees’ state insurance, income tax, duty of customs, duty of
excise, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities except for a few
instances of delay in deposits.

According to the information and explanations given, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
above statutory dues were outstanding as at March 31, 2023, for a pericd of more than six months from
the date they become payable.

o



(b)

The dues in respect of service tax, value added tax, income tax and excise duty which have not been

deposited as at March 31, 2023, on account of dispute are given betow:
Name of the Amount (in Rs Period to which the Forum where dispute is
statuie Nature of dues Lacs} amount relates pending

Income-tax Income-tax Nil AY 2001-02 High Couirt, New Delhi
Income-tax Income-tax Nit AY 2002-03 High Court, New Delhi
fncome-tax Income-tax Nil AY 2003-04 High Court, New Delhi
Income-tax Income-iax Nil AY 2004-05 High Court, New Delhi
Income-tax income-tax Nif AY 2005-06 High Court, New Delhi
Income-tax Income-tax Nil AY 20068-07 ITAT, New Delhi

Income-tax Income-tax Nil AY 2007-08 High Court, New Delhi
income-tax income-tax Nil AY 2008-09 High Court, New Delhi
Income-tax Income-{ax Nil AY 2009-10 High Court, New Dethi
Income-tax Income-tax Nit AY 2010-11 High Court, New Deihi
Income-tax Income-tax N AY 201112 High Court, New Delhi

*

Amounts are net of payments made and without considering interest for the overdue period, i any, as
may be levied if demand as raised is upheld.
# Excluding interest and additional tax

(viti) According to the information and explanations given to us,the company has not surrendered or disclosed any
transactions, previously unrecorded in the books of account, in the tax assessments under Income Tax Act
as income during the year.

(ix)

)

()

(@)
(b}

(e)

"

&

(b)

{a)

The company has not taken any term loan /borrowed money during the year.

The Company has not been declared wiliful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority,

The Company has neither borrowed any funds from financial institution or bank, nor issued
debenturesand does not have loans or borrowings from government. Accordingly, no comments
are called for on defaults in repayment of such dues.

On an overall examinaticn of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short-term
basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the Company.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken
any funds from any entity or person en account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiary during
the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedurss performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in the
subsidiary.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial pubfic offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) during the year. Hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x} (a} of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allofment or private placement of fully or partially or
convertible debentures during the year under audit.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by
the Company or any fraud on the Company has been noticad or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under section 143(12) of the Act
has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, with the Ceniral Government.




(i)

(xiii)

{xiv)

{(xv)

(xvi)

(¢} According to the information and explanations given 10 us, there are no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year,

The Company is not a nidhi company as per the provisions of the Act. Therefore, the requirement to report on
clauses 3(xii} (a), (b) and (¢) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on cur examination of the records of the
Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where
applicable and details of such transactions have been disciosed in the standalone financial statements as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

{a) Inour cpinion, the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and the
nature of its business

(B)  We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for
the period under audit,

In our opinion, the Cempany has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence, requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

(8) The Company s not required to be registered under section 45-14 of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable.

{b)  Inour opinicn, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core nvestment
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2018) and accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvi} (d) of the
Order is not applicable.

{xvii} The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year under our audit and in the immediately

preceding financial year,

{(xviii} There has been no resignation by the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly, requirement to report

{XixX)

{xx)

on clause 3(xviii} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of reaiisation of financial assets and payment
of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come o our attenticn, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty
exisis as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is nct capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities faliing due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(a) There are no unspant ameunts towards Corporate Social Responsibility {CSR) or other than ongoing
projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VIl fo the Act in compliance with second
proviso to sub-section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3{xx) (a) is not applicable
for the year.

{b)  There are no unspent ameunts in respect of ongoing projects that are required 1o be transferred to a
special account in compliance of provision of Section 135(8) of the Act.

For ANIL SO0D & ASSQCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.004985N

ot |
$-316, Greater Kailash-1 “ {ANIL S00D)
New Delhi ~110 048 3 Partner
Dated: 02/09/2023 Membership No. 83938

UDIN: 2208398 A0n e nsey =




ANNEXURE "B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph (f) under ‘Repert on Other tegai and Regulatory Requirements’ section of cur report to
the Members of Sunair Hotefs Limited of even date)

Report on the internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

YWe have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Sunair Hotels Limited ("the Company”) as
of March 31, 2023, in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internai financial controls
based on the internal controt over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Qver Financial
Reporting (the "Guidance Mote) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accourtants of Indis {ICAl}). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting recerds, and the timely preparation of reliable financia infermation,
as required under the Act,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note issued by the ICAl and the
Standards on auditing prescribed under Section 143{10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we compiy with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adeguate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Gur audit of interna! financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exisis, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the audifor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audi
opinicn on the internal financial controls system over financial reporing of the Gompany.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controis Over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed fo provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for externa!
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company’s internal financiat control over
financial reporting Includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company.; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and
{3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financia; statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
coliusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadeguate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the poiicies or procedures may



Opinion

In our opinicn, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in al
material respects, an adequate internal financial conirols system over financial reporiing and such infernal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

in our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the expianations given to us, the Company has, in all
matertal respects, an adequate internal financial controls syslem over linancial reporting and such internal financiat
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, basad on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For ANIL SO0D & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.004985N

(ANIL SOOD)
5-316, Greater Kailash-1 Pariner

New Dethi -110 048 Membership No. 83839
Dated: 02/09/2023 3y
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e-mail; sunairhotels@gmail.com

SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
CIN: U74899DL1977PLC008495

REGI) OFFICE: A-7, ist F1 OOR, GEETANJALI ENCLAVE, NEW DELHI - 110 017

Website- www.hotelmetdelhi.com

R
No. Particulars

I EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2023

{All amounts in thousand of &, uniess otherwise stated)

{1} Shareholders' Funds
(a) Share capitaf
(b} Reserves and surplus

(2) Non-current Liabilities
{a} Deferred tax labilities (net)
{b} Other long-term fiabilities
{c} Long-term provisions

(3

et

. ASSETS

(1) Nen-current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment
(i} Tangibie assets

(b} Non-current investments
{c) Long-term loans and advances
{d) Other non-current assets

—
N

Significant Accounting Policies

Current Liahilities

(a) Trade payables

() Other Current Liabilities
{c) Short-term provisions

Current Assets

(a) Invenicries

(b)Y Trade receivables

(c} Cash and bank balances

{d) Short-term loans and advances
{e) Other current assets

The accompanying notes are an integrat part of the financial statements.

Place-New Dalhi

Dated: 02/09/2023

Chartered Accountanis
Firm Regn. No.G04985N

Membership No. 83939
UDIN : 220 B35 3FH G 27 6%, MNo.-FCS 8984

Chairman

G- g
(ANIL SOOD) e,

Partner (VIPIN JAIN)
Chief Financial Officer

(DIN-D0204504)

AS AT AS AT
Note 31/03/2023 31/03/2022
No. Amount Amount
3 3,87,500.00 3,97,500.00
4 12,76,371.39 16,73,871.39 11.89,63517 15,87,135.17
5 1,58,169.02 1,39,798.75
6 90,415.00 91,131.00
7 16,5652.10 2,85,136.12 1587731 2.46.807.08
8 2462393 15,170.90
9 96,089.64 8351148
10 13.418.40 1,36,231.97 8,561.82 1,07,244 18
TOTAL 20,74,235.47 19.41,186 41
11 12,17,581.95 12,22,227 .53
12 6,10,966.18 4,68 511.58
13 30,628.89 28,912.32
14 12,753.38 6,54,248 53 15,351.38 5,12,875.26
15 72,547.32 70,546.67
16 31,788.68 18,203.91
17 40,921.43 32,5650.85
18 53,566.65 78,840.60
18 3,684.91 2,02,408.00 7,841.60 2,06,083.63
TOTAL 20,74,239.47 19,41 186G.41
2 0 o
AUBDITORS' REPORT Y o / .
As per our report of even date F-:‘.{.%‘ I S
For ANIL SOOD & ASSOCIATES (S5.P.GUPTA} (KAVEEN GUPTA)

Executive Director
{DIN-00204805)

sl

(NEHA RAJPUT)
Company Secretary
(M No. A-26116)



SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
CIN: U74899DL.1977#LC0O08485

REGD OFFICE: A-7, ist FLOOR, GEETANJALI ENCLAVE, NEW DELHI - 110 017

a-mail: sunairhotels@gmail.com

Website- www.hotelmetdelhi.com

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023

(All amounts in thousand of ¥ unless otherwise stated}

3L Note 31/03/2023 31/03/2022
No Particulars No. Amount Amount
. Revenue
{(a) Income from operaticns 20 6,27,426.54 2.97,245.77
(h) Other Income 21 31,649.84 25,808.08
iI. Total Revenue 6,58,076.37 3,23.053.85
. Expenses
(a) Cost of materials consumed 22 38,543.38 13.735.36
{(b) Cost of wiilities and hospitality services 23 903.41 491.65
(d) Employee benefit expenses 24 92,481.08 50.383.64
{2) Other expenses 25 3,55,338.64 2,086,780 74
{f) Finance costs 26 59.30 143.15
(9) Depreciation and amortization expenses 27 3477579 35,727.68
(h) Expenditure on CSR Activity 28 808.20 1,683.30
V. Total Expenses 5,22,907.81 3,08,945.53
V. Profit/ (loss) before exceptional item and tax (i - IV) 1,36,168.57 14,108.32
Less | Exceptional item - -
Vi Profit/ (loss) before tax (IV - V) 1,36,168.57 14,108.32
Vil Tax expense/{saving)
(a) Current tax 17,985.18 -
(b} Deferred tax 18,370.27 14,018.70
c) Earlier Years Taxes - 36,355.43 83.12 14,111.82
VI Profit / (loss) for the year (V - VI) 99,813.13 -3.49
IX. Prior peried adjustments - -
X. Profit / (loss) fransferred to Balance Sheet (Vi - VIID 99,813.13 -3.49
Xl. Earnings per equity share (EPS) 29
(a) Basic (in Rs.) 2.51 (0.01}
{b) Diluted {in Rs.) 2.51 (c.on
Significant Accounting Policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
AUDITORS' REPORT . b .
Bre / o} J o~

Place-New Deihi
Dated: 02/09/2023

As per our report of even date
For ANIL SOCD & ASSOCIATES {S.P.GUPTA)

Chartered Accountants Chairman
Firm Regn. No.0D4885N (DIN-00204504)
(ANIL SCOD) Gy o
Partner {(VIPIN JAIN)
Membership No. 83939 Chief Financial Officer

UDIN - 23568 37730 Bem2 8 NG s. M-No.-FCS 8984
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023

(All amounts in thousand of Z, unless otherwise stated)

No. Particulars

A,

CASH FLOW FROM QPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net profit /(loss) before tax and after prior period expenses
Adjustments for:

- Interest Income

- Dividend Received

- Depreciation

- Profit (Loss} on sale of Assets

Operating (loss) before working capital changes
Movement in working capital:

-increase / (Decrease) in inventories

-Increase / (Decrease) in Debtors

-Increase / {Decrease) in Short Term Loans & Advances
-Increase / (Decrease) in Other Current assets

-Increase / (Decrease) in Other Non Current assets
-Increase / (Decrease) in Trade payables
)
)
)
)

-increase / (Decrease) in Other long-term liabilities

-increase / (Decrease) in Long-term provisions

-Increase / {Decrease) in Long-term loans and advances

-Increase / (Decrease) in Sundry Liabifities

-Increase / (Decrease) in Other Provisions

Cash (used in} operations

Direct taxes {paid)

Net cash {used in) operating activities (A)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Investments
Purchase of Fixed Assets

Sale of Assets
Dividend received
Net cash (used in} investing activities (B)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Interest Income

Increase / (Repayment) of Term [.oan

Net cash from financing activities (C)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash eguivalents (A+B+C)

31/03/2023 3110312022
Amount Amount
1,23,091.66 13,794 .83

-40.24 -145 59
-2.30 -87.43
3477578 35,727.68
-58.29 -513.05
1,67,766.62 48 776.43
-2,000.65 -4 41057
-15,584.78 -10,482.94
25 373.95 -5,038.80
4 256.69 -2.523.90C
2,598.02 0.00
8,653.02 8,485.30
-716.00 250.00
674.79 79.51
-1.616.67 1,444 98
13,478.18 3,113.07
4 856.58 2.418.12
1,88,739.75 42.115.21
17,985.16 -
1,80,754.58 42,115.21
-1,42,354.72 -18,479.76
-30,371.83 -16,639.28
300.00 1,882.04
2.30 87.43
-1,72,424.24 -33,149.57
40.24 145 .59
40.24 145.59
8,370.58 9,111.23




CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023
(All amounts in thousand of £, unless otherwise stated)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (D)

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {E-D)

COMPONENTS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash in Hand
FDORs with Banks
Balances with Banks

Significant Accounting Palicies: Note Na, 2

AUDITORS' REPORT
As per our report of even date
For ANIL SOOD & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.004985N

o 1
L‘;(';“J“
(ANIL SO0OD)
Parther
Membership No. 83938

Ptace-New Delhi
Dated: 02/09/2023

—

32.550.85 23,439.62
(E) 40,921.43 32,550.85
8,370.58 9,111.23
31/03/2023 31/03/2022

2,548.08 2.645.38
- 831.29
38,373.35 29,074.18
40,921.43 32,550.85
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SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
REGD QFFICE: A-7, Ist FLOOR, GEETANJAL] ENCLAVE, NEW DELHI - 110 017

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO ACCOUNTS
FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023

1. ACCOUNTING CONVENTIONS
a}) The Standalore financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP) to comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Companies
(Accounting Standards) Rules 2021 and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the
2013 Act") as applicable.

b) The Standalone financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost
convention basis. The accounting policies adopted in preparation of the financial statements are
consistent with those followed in the previous year.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A. Use of Estimates :
The preparation of Standalone financial statements requires estimates and assumptions to be made
that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities on the date of the financia! statements and the
reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Difference between the
actual results and estimates are recognised in the period in which the results are known /
materialised.

B. Tangible Property, Plant and Equipment:
a) Own Property, Plant and Equipment:

{iy Tangible Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost. Cost includes amounts added on
revaluation, less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. All costs, including
expenditures and levies directly attributable to bringing the assets to their working condition for
the intended use. Net charges on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from
exchange rate variations attributable to the Property, Plant and Equipment are capitalised.

(i) Land is stated at original cost of acquisition.
(i) Capital work-in-progress is stated at amount spent upto the date of Balance Sheet.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of Property, Plant and Equipments are measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets, and are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

b) Leased Assets:
(i} Operating Leases: Rentals are expensed with reference to lease terms and other
(i} Finance Leases: The lower of the fair value of the assets and present value of the minimum
lease rentals is capitalised as Property, Plant and Equipments with corresponding amount
shown as lease liability. The principai component in the lease rental is adjusted against the
lease fiability and the interest component is charged to the statement of profit and loss.

(iif) However, rentals referred to in (i) or (i) above and the interest component referred to in (i)
above pertaining to the period upto the date of commissioning of the assets are capitalized.

(iv) All assets given on finance lease are shown as receivables at an amount equal to net
investment in the lease. Initial direct costs in respect of lease are expensed in the year in
which such costs are incwrred. Income from lease assets is accounted by applying the
interest rate implicit in the lease to the net investment.

Fal



C.

intangible Assets 8 Amortisation:

Intangible Assets are recognised as per the criteria specified in Accounting Standard (AS-26) on
“Intangible Assets” and are amortised over the useful life of the underlying assets as follows:

a) Leasehold land: over the period of lease.

b) Lump sum fees for technical know-how: over a period of six years in case of foreign technology
and three years in case of indigenous technology.

Gaing or losses arising from derecognition of Property, Plant and Equipments are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets, and are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

Depreciation and amortization:

a) Depreciation on tangible Property, Plant and Equipments is caiculated on Straight Line Method
pursuant to the requirements of Schedule-ll of the Companies Act, 2013 with effect from April 01,
2014, by using the rates prescribed therein over the estimated useful lives of the Property, Plant
and Equipments as specified in Part 'C', while fixing the residual values of the Property, Plant and
Equipments at 5% of their original cost, in respect of assets which are used for full period in the
year and on prorata basis for assets acquired & put to use during the year.

b) intangible Property, Plant and Equipments are amortized on a straight-iine basis over the
estimated usefut economic life in respect of assets which are used for full period in the year, and
on prorata basis for assets acquired / recognized and put to use during the year. If there is a
significant change from previous estimates in the expected pattern of economic benefits from the
asset, the amortization period and method are changed accordingly to reflect the changed pattern,
However, no amortization expense is provided on intangible assets derecegnized during the year.

Impairment of Tangible and [ntangible Assets:
An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of assets exceeds its recoverable value. An
impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit and loss in the year in which an asset is
identified as impaired. The impairment loss recognized in prior accounting pericd is reversed if there
has been a change in the estimate of recoverable amount.

Borrowing Costs :

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are
capitalised as part of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that takes necessarily
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to
revenue in the period in which they are incurred.

. Valuation of Investment;

a) Trade investments are the investments made to enhance the Company's business interests,
Investments are either classified as current or long-term based on Management's intention at the
time of purchase.

by Current investments are carried at the lower of cost and fair market value of each investment
individuaily.

c) Long term investments are carried at cost tess provisions recorded to recognize any diminution,
other than temporary, in the carrying vaiue of each investment,

d) Cost for overseas investments comprises the Indian Rupee value of the consideration paid for the
mvestment translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of investment.
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investment Property:
An investment in fand or building, which is not intended to be occupied substantially for use by, or in
the operations of, the Company, is classified as an investment property. Investment properties are
stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation on building component of investment property is caiculated on a Straight Line Method
basis using the rates and useful lives prescribed in Schedute 1l to the Companies Act, 2013 in respect
of such investment properties which are used for full pericd in the year, and on prorata basis for
assets acquired and put to use during the year. However, no depreciation is provided on the
investment properties sold during the year, but on disposal, the difference hetween its carrying
amount and the net disposal proceeds is charged or credited to the statement of profit and loss.

Valuation of Inventory:
Inventories are stated at lower of cost or net realisable value wherever applicable. Cost is determined
on weighted average basis.

Revenue Recognition:

All incomes and expenses are accounted for on accrual and prudent basis. Revenue in respect of
insurance / other claims, interest, commission, etc. is recognised only when it is reasonably certain
that the ultimate collection will be made. Expenses incurred for which benefit will accrue in the
subsequent years are declared in the balance sheet as deferred revenue expenses and amortised
over the pericd in which the benefit is expected to accrue.

Foreign Currency Transactions:

a} In accordance with the Accounting Standard AS-11 on "Effects of changes in foreign exchange
rate” as prescribed by the ICAI, year-end balance of foreign currency transactions is {ransiated at
the year-end rates and the corresponding effect is given in the respective accounts. Transactions
denominated in foreign currency are recorded at exchange rate prevailing at the time of
transaction. However, transactions completed during the year are adjusted on actual basis.

b) In case of items which are covered by forward exchange contracts, the difference between the
year end rate and rate on the date of the contract is recognized as exchange difference and the
premium paid on forward contracts is recognized over the iife of the contract.

c} Non-monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost.

d) Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on translation is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss except in cases where they relate to acouisition of
Property, Plant and Equipments, in which case they are adjusted to the carrying cost of such
assets.

e} Difference in outstanding value of term loan in foreign currency as at the year end vis-a-vis the
date of obtaining loan is recorded in the books of account in a separate account called '‘Exchange
Difference (FC Loan) Account to be approprited at the conciusion of the said term loan.

f) Difference in foreign exchange forward contracts is recognised as income / loss in the books of
account by spreading the same proportionately over the effective life of the contract.

Employee Benefits :

a) All short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for services rendered by the
employees during the year are recognised, at the undiscounted amount, as habifity (accrued
expense), after deducting any amount already paid. Where the amount already paid exceeds the
undiscounted amount of the benefits, such excess is recognised as an asset (prepaid expense).

LE [
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b) Company's contribution to Provident Fund, which is a defined contribution plan, is charged to the
statement of profit and loss.

c) Gratuity liahility is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial
valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of each financial year.

d) Long term compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation. The actuarial
valuation is done as per projected unit method,

e) Actuarial gainsfiosses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not

deferred.
f} Termination benefits are recognised as a liability immediately on incurrence of any such obligation.

. Provision for Current and Deferred Tax :

Provision for current tax is made after taking into consideration benefits admissible under the
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Deferred tax resulting from ‘timing differences' between
taxable and accounting income is accounted for using the tax rates and laws that are enacted or
substantively enacted as on the balance sheet date. The deferred tax asset is recognised and carried
forward only to the extent that there is a virtual certainty that the asset will be realised in future.

. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets :
a) Provisions are recognised for liabilities that can only be measured by using a substantial degree of
estimation, if;

(i) the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event,
(i) a probable outflow of resources is sxpected to settle the obligation, and
(iii} the amount of obligation can reliably be estimated.

Reimbursement expected in respect of expenditure reguired to settle a provision is recognised
only when it is virtually certain that the reimbursement wil ultimately be received.
by Contingent Liability is disclosed in case of:
{i) a present obligation arising on past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
(iiy a present obligation, when no reliable estimate is possible, and
(i) a possible obliation arising from past events, where the probability of outflow of resources is
not remote,
c) Contingent Assets are neither recognised nor disclosed.
d) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

. Prior Period {tems :

Prior Period items are disclosed separately in the statement of profit and loss for the year, keeping in
view their materiality and the past method of accounting.

Exceptional and Extra-ordinary ltems:
Exceptional and extra-ordinary items of the Company during the period are disclosed separately in the
statement of profit and loss for the year, as part of net profit.




SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023 (Contd...)
{All amounts in thousand of &, unless otherwise stated)

3. SHARE CAPITAL

31/03/2023 31/03/2022
Number Amount Number Amount
Authorised and issued share capital:
Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 4,00,00,000 4,60,000.00 4,00,00,000 4,00,000.00

Subscribed and paid-up share capital:

Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid-up 3,97,50,000 3,97,500.00 3,97.50,000
Totai 3,97,50,000 3,97,500.00 3,97.50,000

,87.500.00
.87,500.00

|

Reconciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting
period:

31/03/2023 31/03/2022
Number Amount Number Amount

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 3,87,50,000 3,97,500.00 3,97,50,000 3,97,500.00

Shares outstanding at the end of the year 3,97,50,000 3,97,600.00 3,67,50,000 3,87.500.00

Terms [ rights attached to equity shares:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/~ per share. Each holder of
equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company deciares and pays dividends in Indian rupees.
The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing
Annual General Meeting.

During the year ended 31st March, 2023 the amount of per share dividend recognized as distributions to
equity shareholders was Rs. Nil (PY Rs. Nil).

In the event of liguidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining
assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to

the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the Company:

As on Date 31/03/2022
No. of No. of
Shares % of Shares % of
held Holding held Helding

Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid-up
a. Columbia Trading Co. Lid. 22,80,178 573% 22,80,176 573%
b. Kaveen Gupta 32,91,000 8.28% 32,41,000 8.15%
c. S.P.Gupta 92,59,780 23.30% 61,40,020 15.45%
d. Star Light Credit india Lid. 42.57,500 10.71% 42 .57,500 10.71%
2. Vipul Gupta 29,891,000 7.53% 28.,16,000 7.34%
f. VLS Finance Limited* 95,94 824 24.14% 95,94,824 24.14%

(* Under dispute}

Lo



Details of shares held by promoters in the Company

Name of the shareholder
Ananya Gupta & Kaveen Gupta
Mrs. Babita Gupta

Mr. Kaveen Gupta

Kaveen Gupta (HUF)

Mrs. Monisha Gupta

Mr. 5. Gupta

Mrs. Sheel Gupta

S.P. Gupta (HUF)

Mr. 5.P. Gupta & Sheel Gupta
Mr. Vipul Gupta

Columbia Trading Co. Ltd.

As on date
Shares % of
held Holding
5,30,000 1.34%
17,80,000 4.48%
32,91,000 8.28%
4.65,000 1.17%
14,15,000 3.56%
92,589,790 23.30%
17,06,150 4.29%
16,31,600 4.10%
5,22,600 1.32%
29,81,000 7.53%
22,80,178 573%

31st March, 2022

Shares

held
4,80,000
17,30,000
32.41,000
4,685,000
13,40,000
61,40,020
16,17,500
16,31,600
5,22 600
28,16,000
22,800,176

“ of

Holding
1.21%
4.35%
8.15%
1.17%
3.37%
15.45%
4.07%
4.10%
1.32%
7.34%
573%



SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023 {Contd..))
(All amounts in thousand of &, unless otherwise stated)

4, RESERVES & SURPLUS

31/03/2023 31/03/2022

A. Capital Reserves Amount Amount

Opening Balance 80,000.00 80,000.00

Closing Balance (A} 80,000.00 80,000.00
B. Other Reserves

General Reserve

Opening Balance 30.0C 30.00

Closing Balance (B) 30.00 30.00
C. Surplus / (deficit) in the statement of profit and loss

QOpening Balance 11,09,605.17 11,09,829.04

Add 1 Net Profit / (Net Loss) for the current year 99,813.13 -3.49

Amount available for Appropriations 12,09,418.30 11,09,825.54

Less: Appropriations 13,076.81 220.38

Closing Balance (C) 11.96,341.39 11,09,605.17
Total {A+B+C) 12,76,371.39 11,89,635.17

5. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)
In line with the method recommended by the Accounting Standard AS-22 on "Acounting for Taxes on Income”
compaonents of deferred tax assets and fabilities as on 1st April, 2022 and 31st March, 2023 are given as
under:

01/04/2022 Forthe Year Reversing 31/03/2023
A. Deferred Tax Assets

a. Gratuity Provision 489567 1,054 .61 - 5,950.28

b, Prov. For iLeave Encashment 1,117.15 414.54 291,158 1,240 .54

c. Prov. For Bonus (Goed work reward) 369.94 975.03 505.63 839.34

d. Unabsored Depreciation 9.132.01 - 9,132.01 -

e. Unabsored Business |Losses 7,989.29 ~ - 7,989.28
Total (A) 23,504.06 2,444 17 9,928.79 16,016.44
B. Deferred Tax Liahilities

a. Depreciation 1,63,302.81 10,885.66 - 1,74,188.46
Total (B) 1,63,302.81 10,885.66 - 1,74,188 .46
Net Deferred Tax Liabilities (B-A) 1,39,798.75 8441 .48 -9,928.79 1,68,169.02

Deferred tax asset has been recognised and carried forward since there is a reasonable certainty that sufficient
future taxable income shall be available against which the same can be realised.

6. OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES

31/03/2023 31103712022
Others Amount Amount
Security Deposit
a. Security Deposits 90,415.00 91,131.00

90,415.00 91,131.00

! .
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SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023 (Contd...)

(All amounts in thousand of & unless otherwise stated)

7. LONG TERM PROVISIONS

31/03/2023 31/03/2022
Provision for Employee Benefits Amount Amount
a. Gratuity 12,828.62 12,291.68
b. Leave Encashment 3,722 48 3,585.63
16,552.10 15,877.31
8. TRADE PAYABLES
Particulars 31/03/2023 31/03/2022
Amount Amount
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - 34.85
(refer note below)
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 2482393 15,136.05
small enterprises (refer note 41)
24,823.93 15,170.90
Particulars(Outstanding from invoice date 31/03/2023 31/03/12022
Amount Amount
(iy MSME
Less than 1 year - 34.85
1-2 years - -
2-3 years - -
More than 3 years - -
- 34.85
{iiy Others
l.ess than 1 year 24,726.71 14,896.85
1.2 years 356.31 5.00
2-3 years - 234.20
More than 3 years 80.91 -
24,823.93 15,136.05
{iiiy Disputed dues-MSME
Less than 1 year - -
1-2 years - -
2-3 years - -
More than 3 years - -
{iv) Disputed dues-Ofhers
Less than 1 year - -
1-2 years - -
2-3 years - -
More than 3 years - "
24,823.93 15,170.90
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SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 21st MARCH, 2023 (Contd...)
(All amounts in thousand of & unless otherwise stated)

9. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

a. Duties & Taxes Payables
b. Advance Sub-License fee
¢. Other Payables

10.8HORT TERM PROVISIONS

Totai

A. Provision for Emplovee Benefits

O 0T W

. Salary & Wages Payable
. LTA payable

Good-work Reward payable
Provision for Gratuity

Provision for Leave Encashment

Total

31/03/2023
Amount
8,786.55
81,809.64
6,393 .45
96,983 64
31/03/2023
Amount
5,626.73
3,348.31
3,671.21
872.16 13,418.40
13,418.40

(Thix space bhas been intentionally lef? blank)

31/03/2022
Amount
5,193.13
73,636.76
478157
83,511.48
31/03/2022
Amount
3,951.45
13.71%
1,736.37
2,295.02
565 28 8,561.82
8,561.82
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SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARGH, 2023 (Contd...)

{All amounts in thousand of &, unless otherwise stated)

13. LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

A. Capital Advances
Unsecured, considered good
a. Greater Noida Industrial Development Authority

B. Other Loans & Advances
Unsecured, considered good
a. Income Tax Refundable
h. Cash Seized by I.T. Department
¢. Other Advances

Total (A)

Total (B)

Total (A+C)

Details of ioans & advances to directors or other officers, etc.

Other Officers of the Company

14. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

A. Security Deposits
Unsecured, considered good
a. Security deposit to service providers
b. Security deposit for let-out properties

Total

¢. Security deposit with Government Agencies for utilities

8. Others
a. Commitment Charges {(Recoverable)
b. Financial Charges (Recoverable)

15. INVENTORIES

A. Raw Materials & Components (Valued at cost)
Food
Beverage
Tobacco
Operating Equipments

Total

Total (A)

{(Fhis space bas been infenttonally foft blank)

ity

31/03/2023 31/03/2022
Amount Amount
550.00 550.00
550.00 550.00
23,143.90 21527.32
3,000.0C 3.000.00
3,835 .00 3,835.00
29,978.99 28,362.32
30,528.99 28,912.32
31/03/2023 31/03/2022
Amount Amount
2.4086.05 2.406.05
3,120.00 3,120.00
7.227.31 7.227.31
- 2,043.86
- 554,16
12,753.36 15,351.37
31/03/2023 31/03/2022
Amount Amount
1,466.27 702.29
3,065.89 3,642.80
£68,015.16 66,201.58
72,547 .32 70,546 .67




SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023 (Contd...)
{All anmounts in thousand of & unless otherwise stated)

16. TRADE RECE|VABLES

31/03/2023 31/03/2022
Amount Amount
a} Undisputed trade receivables
- considered good 31,788.68 16,203.94
- which have significant increase in credit risk - -
- which are credit impaired - -
b} Disputed trade receivables
- considered good - -
- which have significant increase in credit risk - -
- which are credit impaired -
31,788.68 16,203.94
Below table represents the trade receivables ageing:
Particulars
(i) Undisputed trade receivables - considered good
Less than 6 months 30,531.03 16,148.60
6 months - 1 year 1,257.65 9.17
1-2 years - 1.02
2-3 years - 4515
More than 3 years - -
31,788.68 16,203.94
(ii) Undisputed trade receivables - considered doubtful
less than 8 months - -
6 months - 1 year - -
1-2 years - -
2-3 years - -
More than 3 years - -
31,788.68 16,203.94

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severaily or
jointly with any other person.

(This spesce Bts Becn sntentionadly il blankj



SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
NOQTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023 (Contd...)
{All amounts in thoysand of &,_unless otherwise stated)

17. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks

Current Account with Scheduled Banks

There are no Earmarked Balances, Margin Money, Security
against borrowings, Guarantees and Other Commitmenis
included in the halances above {PY Nil)

Cheques, drafts on hand
Cash on hand {including imprest)
Total{A)
Other bank balances
a. Bank deposits with originai maturity of more than 12
months but within 12 manths from balance sheet date

b. Bank deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months
but less than 12 months
Total(B)

Total (A+B)

. SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

unsecured, considered good

Other Loans & Advances

oowe

Advance License Fees (NDMC}) (Prepaid)
Advance (Staff & Consultants)

Prepaid Expenses (Hotel) (Licence fee L3 & 1.5)
Advance for assefs

Details of loans & advances to directors or other officers, etc. : NIL (P.Y. NiL)

19. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

A.

Other Taxes Recoverable
i GST Input
ii. Export Incentive

{(Thix space has beetr intentfonally ift blank)

31/03/2023 31/03/2022
Amount Amount
38,373.35 29.074.18
2.548.08 2.645.38
40,921.43 31.719.56
- 831.29
- 831.29
40,621.43 32 550.85
31/03/2023 31/03/2022
Amount Amount
17,172.40 16,354 .66
815.00 805.00
10,113.95 3,221.5%
25,465.30 58,558.36
53,566.65 78,940.62
31/03/2023 31/03/2022
Amount Amount
3,584 .61 3.910.16
- 3,031.49
3,584.91 7,841.65




SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023 {Contd...)
(Al amounts in thousand of Z, unless otherwise stated)

20, INCOME FROM CPERATIONS

21.

A

Sale of Services

Facilties and Services Charges for Hotel Compiex

Rooms

Food & Beverage

Food

Beverage

Tobacco

Banguet Fees

Other Operating Departments
Services Charges Received
Sub License Fees

Income from Operations (Gross)
Less: Excise Duly
Income from Operations (Net)

OTHER INCOME

CARSTIOIAMOOW ®

interest from Bank Deposits

. Scrap sale

. income From Travel Desk

. Guest Transport Charges & Tour
. Capital Gain on Sale of Mutual Funds

. Dividends received on share / Mutual Funds
. Profit on Sale Of Fixed Assets
. Gain / (Loss) on Foreign Exchange Curr. Fluctuation

Misceltaneous Income
Sale of Duty Credit

. Interest on Income tax refund
. Other Charges Recovered

31/03/2023 31/03/2022
Amount Amount Amount Amount
4,16,393.32 1,61,671.22

76,741.73 28,205.28
17,829.66 5.671.97
- 5.04
5618.26 806.57
10,099.07 863.49
1,329.81 2,162.95

99,414.69 6,27 426.54 97,859.26 2.97.245.77

b 6,27.426.54 29724577

6,27,426.54 2,97,245.77

31/03/2023 31/03/2022

Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.)

40.24 145.59

361.52 54 .24

600.00 .

1,651.00 217.94

14,588.32 9,673.89

2.30 87.43

58.29 513.05

17.07 5.40

13,729.74 9,964 .51

- 3,931.49

601.37 820.54

- 393.99

Total 31,649.84 7 25,808.08

(This space s beatr Imientionally lejl dauk)



SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023 (Contd...)

(Al amounts in thousand of &, unless otherwise stated)

22. COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

31/03/2023
Amount
Materials Consumed
Inventory at the beginning of the year 4,345.09
Add : Purchases 38,730.45
43,075.54
Less: Inventory af the end of the year 4,532.18
Cost of Raw Material Consumed 38,543.38
Details of Materials Consumed
A. Food 35,052.14
B. Beverages 3,491.24
C. Tabacoo -
38,543.38
* Cost of operating eguipments consumed is
directly booked as an expense under its relevant
expenditure head,
23. COST OF UTILITIES AND HOSPITALITY SERVICES
31/03/2023
Amount
A. Laundry Cost 773.84
B. Heaith Club 12047
903.41
24. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
31/03/2023
Amount Amount
A. Salaries, wages and bonus 72,801.26
B. Directors Remuneration 5,400.00
C. Contributions to:
a. Provident Fund 4,161.47
b, ESi 690.31
¢. Other Funds 1,443.55 6,295.33
D. Gratuity Fund Contributions 3,621.59
E. Staff Welfare Expenses 4,234.51
F. Exgratia Paid 128.40

92,481.09

(This space bes been intenitonally feft blank)

31/03/2022
Amount

4 544 94
1353552
18,080.45
4 345 0%

 13.735.36

12,299.28
1.433.75
.23
13,735.36

31/03/2022
Amount
491.65

31/03/2022
Amount Amount

37,133.76
£,900.00

2,300.73
438.57
618.40 3,367.70
1,380.83
1,508.85
92.50
50,383.64




SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023 (Contd...)

(Al amounts in thousand of &, unless otherwise stated)

25. OTHER EXPENSES

LU PDINDNEXECTNTOVOSI X TE e
TQQ ™SO o0 Dm0 = : : = -

RURC

Power & Fuel

Rent

Repairs & Maintenance

i. Piant & Machinery

ii. Buildings

iii. Others

Insurance

Advertising & Sales Promotion
Communication Cost
Prirting & Stationery
Legal & Professional Fees
Payment to Auditors
Licence fee

Internet Expense

Banguet Expenses

Guest Supply & Relation Expenses
lLinen

Flowers & Decoration
Laundry & Dry Cleaning
Uniform

Guest Supplies
Commission on Rooms
Cleaning Supply

Music & Entertainment
Kitchen Utensils

31/03/2023

Amount

15,590.81
27.394.16
34,596.43

Local Transportation & Vehicle Maintenance
Guests Entertainment & Business Promotion

Credit Card Charges

. Security Services

. STT Paid

. AGM & Conference Charges

. Membership Fees & Subscription
. Misc Expenses

Director Traveling

. RO.C. Fee
. Manpower Outsourced
. Sitting Fees

Postage/Courier/Telegram
Rate & Taxes
Total

Defails of Payment to Auditors

As Auditor:
- Audit Fee
- Tax Audit Fee

Total

Amount
87 ,556.15
2.496.00

77,581.41
2.621.38
1,165.42

535.23
2,798.11
85,378.30
403.65

26,680.33
1,024.20
2,853.11
8,433.58

980.24
36.18
193.49
339.98
9,418.83

31,724 .41

1,319.14

420.00
2067
2,341.64
766.82
1,808.32
3,757.66

13.64
40.55
3,131.77
8,243.66
93.04
10,751.88

50.57
160.31

3,55,338.64

325.00
78.65
403.65

31/03/2022

Amount

15,124.30
13,592.46

10,043.42

Amount
41,538.13
3,132.00

38.760.17
2,369.48
181.67
482.50
883.78
56,148.27
403.65
2295229
880 .42
779.55
4.550.53
249.29
6.00
122.41
67.75
3,807.70
16.613.37
730.40
312.50
0.75
597.23
217.15
715.04
3,389.10
13.63
13.15
64.30

508 12
2,822.33
34.12
242817
170.00
52.06
7682.73
2,06,780.74

—————————_——

325.00
78.65
403.65



31/03/2023

Amount Amount
26. FINANCE COST
31/03/2023
Amount
a. Interest on Taxes -
k. Bank Charges 59.30
Total 59.30
27. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSES
31/03/2023
Amount
Depreciation on Assets 3477579
Total

34,775.79

(Fhis spece bas beer intentionalfy kg1 blank

31/03/2022

Amount

Amount

3110312022
Amount
8363

58.53
143.15

31/03/2022
Amount
35727.68
3572768




SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023 (Contd...)
(All amounts in thousand of & unless otherwise stated)

28. DETAILS OF EXPENDITURE ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Year Ended March 31, Year Ended March 31,

2023 2022
{a) Gross Amount required to be spent by the
company during the year 806.13 1,683.30
806.13 1,683.30
Yet to be Yet to be
{h) Amount spent during the year on: In Cash paidincash InCash paidin cash
{iy On purposes other than (i) above
- Contribution for Medical Relief to poor
- Abhinandan Jan Kalyan Society 806.20 1,683.30
Total (A): 806.2¢ - 1,683.30 -
(c) Contribution paid to trust controlied by the related party
- N.A N.A - N.A -

Total (B): - - - -

Total (A+B): 806.20 - 1,683.30 -

(Thiis space bag been iteytisnalfy lefl blank)



SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023 (Contd...)
(All amounts in thousand of &, unless otherwise stated)

29. EARNING PER SHARE (EPS)

30.

3. Fairvalue of plan assets

31/03/2023
Amount

Total operations for the year
Profit/ (loss) after tax 99,813.13
Less: Dividends & dividend tax on other than equity shares -
Net profit / {loss) for cateulation of Basic EPS 9981313
Net profit as above 88 813.13
Add : Dividends & dividend tax on other than equity shares -
Add : Adjustments for the effects of dilutive potential equity shares -
Net profit / (loss) for caiculation of Diluted EPS 99,813.13
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating Basic EPS  3,87,50.000

Effect of dilution:

Convertible preference shares (numbers) -
Convertible bonds (numbers) -
Stock option granted under ESCP -

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating Diluted 3,97,50,000

{a} Basic
{b) Diiuted

2.5M
2.5M

Gratuity & Other Post-employment Benefits

31/03/2022
Amount

3,97,50,000

3,97,50,000

(0.009}
(0.009)

The Company does not have a defined benefit gratuity plan. However, every employee who has completed five years
or more of service gets gratuity on departure at 15 days’ salary (last drawn basic satary) for each completed year of

service or part thereof in excess of six months on projected unit method.

The foliowing tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognised in the profit and loss account and

amounts recognized in the balance sheet.

i, Gratuity

1. Change in present value of obligation
a) Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the period
b} Acguisition adjustment
¢} Interest cost
d) Past service cost
e) Current service cost
fy Curtaiiment cost/ (Credit)
g} Settelement cost / (Credit)
h} Benefit paid
i) Actuarial (gain) / Losgs on obligation
i) Present value of chligation as at the end of the period

2. Changes in fair value of plan assets

a) Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the period
b) Acquisition adjustment

c} Expected return on plan assets

d) Contribution

&) Benefits paid

fy Actuarial gain / {loss) on plan assets

g} Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period

a) Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the period

31/0312023 3110372022
Amount Amount
14,686.70 14,390.81
1,042 .21 963.50
1,411.C0 1,279.00
-538.08 -2,046 61
16,500.83 14,686.70




b} Acquistion adjustment

¢) Actual return on plan assets

d) Conitributions

&) Benefits paid

f) Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period

Q) Funded status

h) Excess of actual over estimated return on plan assets

4. Actuarial gain / losses recognized

a) Actuarial gain / {loss) for the period- obligation

B} Actuarial (gain}/ loss for the period- plan assets

¢) Total (gain) / loss for the period

d) Actuarial {gain) / loss recognized in the period

&) Unrecognized actuarial (gains) losses at the end of the period

) Experience Adjustment on Present Vaiue of Obligation-Loss/(Gain)

5. The amounts to be recognized in the balance sheet and related analysis

&) Present value of obligation as at the end of the period
b} Fair Value of plan assets at the end of the Period

¢} Funded status / Difference

d) Excess of actual over estimated

e} Unrecognized actuarial (gains) / losses

f) Netassets / (lability) recognized in balance sheet

6. Expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss
a) Current service cost
b) Past service cost

) Interest cost

) Expected return on plan assets

) Curtailment cost / (Credit)

) Settiement cost/ (credit)

)} Net actuarial (gain) / loss recognized in the pericd

) Expenses recognized in the statement of profit & losses

@© Q. O

—+

g
h

7. Recongciliation statement of epenses in the statement of profit & loss
a} Present value of obligation as at the end of the period
b} Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the period
¢) Benefit paid
d) Actual return on plan assets
2) Acguisition adjustment
f) Expenses recognized in the statement of profit & losses

8. Amount for the current period
a) Present value of cbligation as at the end of the period
b} Fair value of plan assets
c) Surpius / (Deficit)
¢} Experience adjustment on plan liabilities (loss) / gain
e) Experience adjustment on pian assets (loss) / gain

9. Movement in the liability recognized in the balance sheet
a} Opening net Hability
b} Expense as above
¢} Benefits paid
d} Actual return on plan assets
e} Acguisition adjustment
f} Closing net liability

10. Major cateqories of plan assets (as percentage of {otal plan assets)
a) Government of india Securities o
b State Government Securities
c) High guality corporate bonds

2

(

-16,500.83

539.08

-5639.08
-539.08

-201.55

16,500.83

-16,500.83

-16,500.83

1,411.00

1,042.21

-539.08
1,914.13

16,500.83
14,5686.70

1.914.13

16.500.83

-16,600.83
539.08

15,111.18

-14,686.70

2,048.61

-2.046.61
-2,046.61

-1,554.77

14,686.70

-14,586.70

-14,586.7C

1,279.00

963.50

-2.046.61
195.89

14,586.70
14,390.81

195.8¢
14,586.70

-14,586.70
2,046 81

13,001.17
196.89

13,187.06



d) Equity shares of listed companies
} Property
f) Special deposite scheme
) Funds managed by insurer
) Bank balance (For Gratuity)
Total

11. The principal assumption used in determining gratuity obligation for r the Company's plans are shown

below:

a) Discount rate
b} Rate of return on Plan Assets
c} Salary Escalation
**-2% P.A for FY 2022-23 and 4% P.A. thereafter

Leave Encashment

) Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the period
)y Acguisition adjustment
c) Interest cost
) Past service cost
) Current service cost
) Curtailment cost / (Credit)
g) Seitelement cost/ {Credit)
1) Benefit paid
i} Actuaria (gain} / Loss on obligation
)} Present value of obligation as at the end of the period

Changes in fair value of plan assets

a) Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the period
b) Acquisition adjustment

¢} Expected return on plan assets

d) Contribution

e} Benefits paid

fy Actuarial gain / (foss) on plan assets

g) Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period

Fair value of plan assets

a) Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the period
D) Acquistion adjustment
c) Actual return on plan assets
d) Contributions
e} Benefits paid
fy Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period
) Funded status
} Excess of actual over estimated return on pian assets

4. Actuarial gain / losses recognized

a) Actuarial gain / {loss) for the period- obligation

b) Actuarial (gain) / loss for the period- plan assets

¢}y Total {gain) / ioss for the period

d) Actuarial (gain} / loss recognized in the period

&) Unrecognized actuarial (gains) losses at the end of the period
)

Experience Adjustment on Present Vaiue of Obligation-Loss/(Gain)
55

31/03/2023 31/03/2022
Amount Amount
7.45 7.16
0.00 0.00
405> 2%*
31/03/2023 310312022
Amount Amount
4,150.91 4.267.26
296.58 28570
584 .44 767.88
~437.29 -1,169.84
4,594 64 4,150.91
-4 594 G4 -4, 150 .91
-437.29 -1,169.94
-437.2% -1 169 94
~437 28 -1,169 54
-337.14 «1.014.21



4
5. The amounts to he recognized in the balance sheet and related analysis
a) Present value of obligation as ai the end of the period
b} Fair Value of plan assets at the end of the Period
¢} Funded status / Difference
d) Excess of actual over esfimated
&) Unrecognized actuarial (gains) / iosses
f} Net assets / (liability) recognized in balance sheet
6. Expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss
a) Current service cost
b} Past service cost
) Interest cost
) Expected return on plan assets
2) Curtailment cost / (Credit)
) Seitlernent cost / (credit)
g} Net actuarial (gain) / foss recognized in the period
h) Expenses recognized in the statement of profit & losses

7. Reconciliation statement of epenses in the statement of profit & loss
a) Present vaiue of obligation as at the end of the period
b) Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the period
¢} Benefit paid
d} Actual return on plan assets
2} Acquisition adjustment
f} Expenses recognized in the statement of profit & losses

8. Amount for the current period
a} Present value of obligation as at the end of the pericd
b} Fair value of plan asseisas at the end of the period
¢) Surplus / {Deficit)
d) Experience adjustment on plan liabilities (loss) / gain
@) Experience adjustment on plan assets (loss) / gain

9. Movement in the liability recognized in the balance sheet
a) Opening net liability
) Expense as above
c) Benefits paid
d) Actual return on plan assets
e) Acquisiticn adjustment
Ty Closing net liability
10. Major categories of plan assets {as percentage of total plan assets)
a) Government of India Securities
b) State Government Securities
¢) High quality corporate bonds
d) Equity shares of listed companies
&) Property
f) Special deposite scheme
g} Funds managed by insurer
h} Bank balance {For Gratuity)

4,594.64 4,150.91
4,594 84 4.150.91
4,594.64 4,150.91
584.44 767.88
296.58 285.70
-437.29 -1,169.94
44373 11636
4,594.64 4,150.91
4,150.91 4,267.26
443.73 ~116.36
4,594 64 4,150.91
-4,504.64 -4,150.91
437.29 1,169.94
4,150.91 4,267 26
443.73 ~116.36
4,594.64 4,150.91

11. The principal assumption used in determining leave encashment obligation for the Company's plans are

shown below:

z) Discount rate
b} Rate of return on Plan Assets
¢} Salary Escalation
" 2% PLA for FY 2022-23 and 4% P.A. thereafter Lo

3110372023
Amount
7.55

4%

31/03/2022
Amount
7.15

2%

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority,
promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment markel Previous year

figures have not been given since those are not fully available.



SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023 {Contd...)
(All amounts in thousand of €, unless otherwise stated)

31. Segment Reporting

The business segments of the Company have been identified in line with the Accounting Standard AS-17 on "Segment
Reporting” issued by the Institule of Chartered Accountants of India, taking into account the organisational structure and
different risk and return of these segments. The Company's reportable business segments consists of the following:

aj
I}
)

Hotel Business
Commercial Centre
Portfolic Management

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the following additionai policies for segment
reporting

a) Revenue and expenses have been identified to a segment on the basis of relationship to operating business activities
of the segment. Revenue and expenses, which relate to enterprise as a whole that cannot be allocated to a segment
on reasonable basis, have been disciosed separately under the column “unaliocable”.
Segment assets and liabitities represent assets and lizbilities in respective segments. Assets and liabilities that cannot
be allocated to a segment on reasonable basis have been disclosed under the column “unaliocable”.

b)

Particulars
Segment Revenue
- Revenue including other income
Net Sales / Income from Cperations {A)
Segment Expenses
Allocable Expenses
-Consumption of Storas, Provisions
& Beverages and Purchase of Mutual Funds
-Employee benefit expenses
-Operating / Administration Expenses
-Finance Cost
-Expenditure on CSR Activity

Segment Resuit

Less . Depreciation

Profit before Taxation

Less: Tax Expense for the year
Profit after Taxation

Segment Assets (including Misc.
expenditure and debhit balance of

Profit & Loss Alc)

Segment Liabilities (including long
term liabilities)

Totai Carrying Amount of fixed assets

Total Depreciation on fixed assets

Hotel Commercial  Portfolio
Business Business Management Total Amount
545 071.086 99,414.69 14,590.62 B6.58.076.37
5,45 071.06 99,414 69 14,590.62 6,589,078 37
30,4485.79 - - 39,446.79
92.481.09 - - 92,481.09
3,565,338.64 - - 3,55,338.64
59,30 - - 59.30
806.20 - - 806.20
4,88,132.01 - - 4,88.132.01
56,933.05 99.414.89 14,590.62 1,70,944 36
34,775.79
1,36,168.57
36,355.43
98,813.13
20,65,111.17 9,128.31 - 20,74,238.47
3,14,238.08 86,130.00 - 4.00,368.08
12,17.581.85 - - 12,17.581.85
34,559.81 215.98 - 34,775.79

The business segments of the Company viz., hotel business and commerciai centre are both located at one
geographical place only and accordingly the geographical segment is not applicable to the company.

{y



SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023 {Contd...)

{All amounts in thousand of & unless otherwise stated)

32. Related Party Disclosure

Related Party disciosure in accordance with the Accounting Standard AS-18 on “Related Party
Disclosures” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India is given as under in respect of

related parties with whom transactions have taken place:

a) Related parties and their relationshp
1} Subsidiary Companies

2)  Associate Companies / Firms

3) Key Management Personnel
- Mr. S, P. Gupta
- Mr. Kaveen Gupta
- Mr. Vipui Gupta

4) Relatives of Key Management Personnel
S.P Gupta (HUF)
Kaveen Gupta (HUF)
Vipul Gupta {HUF)
Mrs. Monisha Gupta

: Sun Aero Limited

: Pushpanjali Trexim Pvt. Limited
: Urban LifeStyie Pvt. [td.
: Unigue LifeStyle Pyt Ltd.

: Chairman
: Whole Time Director
: Whole Time Director

: Mr. 8.°P Gupta is Karta of HUF

: Mr. Kaveen Gupta is Karta of HUF
: Mr. Vipul Gupta is Karta of HUF

: Wife of Mr. Vipui Gupta

Key
Associate Managemen Relative of
Particulars Companies tPersonnel KMP Total
a) Rent -CY 72.00 2,424.00 - 2,496.00
-PY 72.00 3,080.00 - 3,132.00
b) Directors’ Remuneration ~CY - 5,400.00 - 5,400.00
-PY - 6,800.00 - 6,800.00

Balance outstanding on March 31, 2023
Amount Payable -CY -
“PY -

(This space has beew fatentivially lfl bk
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SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023 (Contd...)
{All amounts in thousand of ¥_unless otherwise stated)

33. Ratio
As at As at o,
S. No, Particulars Measures! 31 March |31 March Variz:nce Reason for variance
2023 2022

1 |Current Ratio Times 1.50 1.92 -22% | The ratic is decreased during the current
year due to Increase in payment of advance
sub - licensing fee and other current liabilities
during the year as compared io previous
year.

2 1Debt-Equity Ratio Times NA. MN.A. 0%|The ratic is not! applicable since no
borrowings during the current year and
previous year.

3 {Debt service| Times N.A. N.A. The change in ratio is mainly due to the

coverage ratio following reasons:
a. The profits available for debt service has
increased in the current year as compared to
previous year,
h. There has been a decrease in the amount
of debt in the current year as compared to
previous year due o the repayments of debt
in the current year.

4 |Return on equity ratio |Percentag 0.08 -0.60 100% | The ratio is increased during the current year

e due o increase in the profil sarned during
the year as compared to previous year.

5 |inventory turnover;Times 0.54 0.20 168%|This ratio has increased due to increase in

"Iratio fhe cost of goods sold during the year. This
increase is in consistent with the increase in
the revenue earned during the year.

6 |Trade receivables| Times 26.15 2711 -4%iThe ratio is decreased during the current

turnover ratio year due to decreased in the credit sales
during the year as compared to previous
year.

7 |Trade payables|Times 1.94 1.24 -68%|The ratio has decreased due to jow

turnover ratio purchases made in credit by the Company in
the current year, This increase in purchases
in consistent with the increase in revenue.

8 INet capital turnover|Times 9.34 3.01 211%|The ratio is in line with previous comparative

ratio year.

9 [Net profit ratio Percentag 0.16 -0.00 100% | The ratio is increased during the current year

e due to increase in the profit earned during
the year as compared to previous year,

10 |Return  on  capital{Percentag 0.07 0.01 822%iThis ratio has increased due to increase in

employed e the profits earned by the company in the
current year.

11 |Return on investment |Percentag 0% 0% NA|Since there are no investments, this ratio is

e not applicable.
S. No Ratios Numerator Denominator

1 |Current ratio Current assets Current liabilities

2 1Debt-equity ratio Total debt = long term borrowings + {Shareholder's equity ]

. (Debt serviceiEarning for debt service = Net profit] Debt service = Interest payments + principal repayments

N coverage ratio before taxes + non-cash operating

4 Return on equity ratic {Net profits after taxes — preference|Average shareholder's equity

dividend (if any)

5 Inventory turnoveriCost of goods soid Average inventory = (Opening + closing balance 7 2)

ratio




6 Trade receivablesiNet credit sales Average accounis receivables
turnover ratio

7 Trade payables|Net credit purchases Average trade payabies
furneover ratio

8 Net capital turnover|Net sales Average working capital (e total current assets less
ratio total current liabilities}

8 [Net profi{ ratio Net profit Net sales

10 Return  on  capitaliEarning before interest and taxes|Capital employed = Tangible net worth + fotal debt +
employed (EBITY deferred tax liability

11 Return on investment |Income generated from investments |Time weighted average invesiments

FCaRN

‘\‘{



SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023 {Contd...)
(Al amounts in thousand of & uniess otherwise stated)

34.

35,

386.

37.

38.

Income-tax provision has been made in the books of account as per fegal advice received by the Company
for assessment of various incomings and outgoings.

Sundry Debtors / Creditors, if any, are not reconciled due to non-receipt of corresponding statements of
account from them. Necessary adjustments, if any, in the books of account will be made at the time of
reconciliation of the same.

In terms of Schedule |It of the Companies Act, 2013 and notification number GSR 719(e}, the company
had requested its various suppliers, who may be registered under the Micro. Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2008, to furnish the relevant registration certificate under that Act and confirmation
regards them being under the said category. From the date of receipt of confirmed details and information
from the said parties the outstanding on account purchase made/services obtained from such suppliers
inciuding the disputed amounts due to them, were ascertained and reflected in the financials as due to
Micro & Small Enterprises. The details in respect of the parties that could be identified as Micro and Smail
enterprises as per the MSMED Act on the basis of the information avaitable with the management are given
below:

31/03/2023 31/03/2022
Amount Amount

(i} The principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown
separately) remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of
each accounting year.
-Principal amount due to micro and smalf enterprises - 34.85
-Interest due on above - -

(i) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16
of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the payment
made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each
accounting year, - -

(i) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the
appcinted day during the year) but without adding the interest
specified under the MSMED Act 2006. - -

(iv} The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even
in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues
as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose
of disaliowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of
the MSMED Act 20086, - -

EXCEPTIONAL AND EXTRA-ORDINARY ITEMS
No exceptional or extra-ordinary items of revenue nature occurred during the year (PY Nil). Hence no
disclosure of the same has been made in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Applications filed by the Company and VLS Finance L.td (a registered sharehotder of the Company) u/s 34
of the Arbitration and Reconciliation Act 1996, challenging the Award therein given are pending for disposal
since the year 2015 by the Hon'ble Delhi High Court as on the date of signing of these annual financial
statements. Simiarly, the second petition for enforcement of the said Award filed by VLS Finance Ltd in the
Hon'bie Delhi High Court is also pending adjudication as an undertaking has been given by VLS Finance
Ltd not to press the execution till the original cross petition are decided. The earlier such petition filed by
VLS Finance Lid was dismissed by the Hon'ble Delhi High Court on 16/08/2017. The award contained
directions to the Company / its directors to refund to VLS Finance Ltd the forfeited security deposit of Rs, 8
Crores in terms of the MOU dated 11/03/1995 with due interest. However, as per legal opinion received by
the Company no such amount is refundable particularly when the Hon'ble Company Law Board vide its
order dated (4/08/2013 has dismissed the Compiny Petition of VIS Finance Ltd and decided in favour of



39.

40.

41.

42,

the Company.

SFIO has filed a petition u/s 241(2) along with sections 246 and 339 of the Companies Act, 2013 before the
Hon'bie NCLT against the Company and others which is also pending adjudication. Simifarly, SFIO has
also filed & complaint on the same subject as is before the Hon'ble NCLT in the court of the learned ASJ
{Speciai Court) Dwarka New Delhi, also still pending as on this date.

In the FiRs filed by the State on the complaints of VIS Finance Ltd. against the Company and others,
charges have been framed by the learned Trial Court where proceedings including revisions are stil}
pending at different stages.

The Company Petitions No. CP-35(ND)2010 and CP-38(ND)2016 filed against the Company and others
have been withdrawn by the Petitioners after reaching a settiement before the Hon'ble NCLT, resulling into
their closure.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES & CONMMITMENTS (to the extent not provided for)
31/03/2023 31/03/2022
Amount Amount
() Centingent Liabilities
A. Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts Nil Nil
B. Guarantees N Nil
C. Bills of exchange discounted with banks N Nil
D. Tax demand disputed in appeals Nil Nil
. Others (%) 80,000 (M 80,000 (%)
(") The amount represents forfeitable security deposit, which
is not due as per the legal opinion received by the
Company. OMP and Enflc) have been filed in the
maiter.Refer to Note No. 37 as above.
{(iy Commitments
A Estimated amount of confracts remaining to be executed on 1.500.00 3,800.00
capitat accounts and not provided for
B. Uncalled liability on shares and other investments partly paid Nil Nil
C. Other commitments Nit N

The Code on Social Security, 2020, {Code) refating to employees benefits during employment and post-
employment benefits received President assent in September, 2020. The Code has been published in the
Gazette of India. However, the data on which the Code will come into effect has not been notified and the
final rules/interpretation have not yet been isstied. The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it
comes into effect and will record any refated impact in the period the Code becomes effective,

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees.

PREVIOUS YEAR FIGURES
Previous figures have been regrouped / recast wherever considered necessary.

For ANIL SCOD & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No.004985N ??.:mc'f’;‘/ ’ Qa(’/,.
(S.P.GUPTA) (KAVEEN GUPTA)
Chairman Executive Director
Sl ) (DIN-00204504) (DIN-00204605)
(ANIL SO0D)
Partner
Membership No. 8393¢ o by ‘
“aet / . Q:/ /-
Place : New Dethi (VIPIN JAIN) (NEHA RAIPUT)
Dated: 02/09/2023 £ [, Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

UDIN : 230830395 G el 2 8T e0 M.No.-FCS 8984 {M No. A-26116)




SUN AERO LIMITED

CIN : U74899DL1993PLCO5S5759

PHONE # (91 11) 41515250 e-mail: sunairhotels@gmail.com

Regd. Off: A-7, FIRST FLOOR, GEETANJAL] ENCLAVE, NEW DELHI-110 017

To,

DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Members

The Directors of your company have pleasure in presenting the 30th Annual Report of the Company and

its financial accounts for the year ended on 31st March, 2023.

1.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Company's financial performance for the year under review along with previous years figures are

given hereunder :

Net Sales / Income from:
a) Business Operations
by Other income

Total Income

Profit / (Loss) before Interest & Depreciation
Less: Finance cost (Interest)
Profit / (L.oss) before Depreciation
Less: Depreciation
Profit/ (Loss) after Depreciation but before Tax
Less: Tax Saving !/ (Expense)
a) Current income-tax
by Earlier year(s) Adjustment of Income-tax
c) Deferred Tax
Net Profit/ (Loss) after Tax
Dividend (including Interim, if any, and Final)
Net Profit/ (L.oss) after Dividend & Tax
Amount transferred to General Reserve
Balance carried to Balance Sheet

Earning per share (Basic)
Earning per share (Diluted)

BIVIDENDS

Curr.Year Prev.Year
31/03/2023 31/03/2022
451,93 519 56.78,399
8,07 127 2,27.803
4.61,00,648 59,068,202
28,08,057 (4,40,308)

- 3,730
28,08,057 -4.44 038
B6,79,157 3,74.002
21,28,800 -8.18,039
1,33,503 {7,485)
18,95,397 (8,10,555)
19,95,397 (8,10,555)
19,95,357 (8,10,555)
24 .90 (11.58)

24 90 (11.58)

With a view to conserve funds, the Directors do not recommend any dividend for the financial year

2022-23

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

The provisions of section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply as there was no dividend

declared and paid by the Company .

RESERVES

The Board of Directors do not propose any amount to be carried to any reserve.

&



10.

11.

STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS AND FUTURE QUTLOOK

The Company is engaged in the business of Portfolio Activities and Project development.
The highlights of the Company's performance are as under:

a) Revenue from operations has Increased from Rs. 56,78, 389/- to Rs.4,51,93 519/
b) Profit before Tax for the year has increased from Rs.-8,18 039/~ to Rs. 21,28,900/-
c) Eaming per share have Increased from Rs.-12/- to Rs. 25/-

The global economy witnessed a recovery in 2022 following two years of a pandemic-inflicted
environment. The International Monetary Fund (IMF) in their report of April 2023 estimates growth in
global Real Gross Domestic Product (GDP) for 2022 to increase by 3.4% on the back of a 6.3%
increase in 2021. A higher-than-usual growth in 2021 was due to a low-base effect of 2020 as a result
of the global pandemic during which GDP contracted by 2.8%.The outlook for FY 2023-24 is
optimistic. The outiock for the Indian business during 2023 remains positive. The Company
succeseded in executing its pfans during 2022 -2023 now the Company is trying on exceeding its pre-
pandemic levels of financial performance, establishing its new avenues through a meaningful
contributions through new businesses ideas.

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS
There has been no change in the business of the Company during the financial year under review.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO WHICH THESE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred
between the end of the financial year to which these financial statements relate and the date of this
report,

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS ORrR
COURTS QR TRIBUNALS [MPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY'S
OPERATIONS IN FUTURE

No such orders have been passed by any authority. Further the Company had made an application
to Reserve Bank of India for voluntary surrender of NBFC Certificate No. N-14-03086 dated
16/12/2005 issued by Reserve bank of India, Delhi , the application is under still under process and
till date no Material order has been received in this regard.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND QUTGO

The information pertaining to conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange
earnings and outgo as required under Section 134(3}(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule
8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is furnished in 'Annexure-A' attached to this report.

STATEMENT CONCERNING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT

POLICY OF THE COMPANY
The Company does not have any risk management policy as the elements of risk threatening the
Company's existence are quite minimal.

DETAILS OF POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON ITS
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES

The Company has not developed and implemented any Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives as
the said provisions are not applicable.

£y
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14,

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

- PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION 186 OF

THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
There were no loans, guarantees or investments made by the Company under Section 188 of the
Companies Acl, 2013 during the year under review and hence the said provision is not applicabie.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES

There were one contracts or arrangements made with related parties as defined under Section 188 of
the Companies Act, 2013 during the year under review at Arm's Length basis. In this regard Form
no. AQC-2 is attached as ‘Annexure-B' to this report.

EXPLANATION OR COMMENTS ON QUALIFICATIONS, RESERVATIONS OR ADVERSE
REMARKS OR DISCLAIMERS MADE BY THE AUDITORS AND THE PRACTICING COMPANY
SECRETARY IN THEIR REPORTS

There were no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by the Auditors in their report.
The provisions relating to submission of Secretarial Audit Report in not applicable to the Company.

COMPANY’S POLICY RELATING TO DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT, PAYMENT OF
REMUNERATION AND DISCHARGE OF THEIR DUTIES

The provisions of Section 178(1) relating to constitution of Nomination and Remuneration Commiittee
are not applicable to the Company and hence the Company has not devised any policy refating to
appointment of Directors, payment of Managerial remuneration, Directors qualifications, positive
attributes, independence of Directors and other related matters as provided under Section 178(3) of
the Companies Act, 2013,

Web Link of Annual Return, If Any.:-

The reporting of extract of Annual Return in Form no. MGT-9 had been done away with pursuant to
amendment in Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Ruie 12 of Companies
{(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 w.e.{. 28/08/2020. Hence, the reporting of extract of
Annual Return has not been made in this report. The Annual Return is now required to be placed on
the website of the Company, if any, in terms of Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the Act
and fink thereof is required to be given in the Board's Report. As the Company doesn’t having any
website. Therefore, no need to of publication of Annual Return.

ANNUAL RETURN

The reporting of extract of Annuai Return in Form no. MGT-9 had been done away with pursuant to
amendment in Section $2(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12 of Companies
(Management and Administration) Ruies, 2014 w.e.f. 28/08/2020. Hence, the reporting of extract of
Annual Return has not been made in this report. The Annual Return is now required to be placed on
the website of the Company, if any, in terms of Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3){a) of the Act
and link thereof is required to be given in the Board’s Report. As the Company doesn't having any
website. Therefore, no need to of publication of Annual Return.

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS CONDUCTED DURING THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW

The Company had 4 (Four) Board meetings dated 04/05/2022, 02/08/2022, 28/11/2022, 06/03/2023

during the financial year under review,

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In terms of Section 134(3) read with Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your directors

confirm as under;

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures:

b) the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the loss of the company for
that period: 24




20.

21,

22.

23.

24,

25.

28.

27.

c) the directbrs haVe téken'p'r'ober and s.uf'fici

ent care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

e) The Company being unlisted, sub clause (e) of section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013
pertaining to laying down internal financial controls is not applicable to the company.

f) the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
Company doesn't have any subsidiary, Joint Venture and Associate Company.

BEPOSITS

The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act,
2013 during the year under review.

DIRECTORS
Mr. Vipul Gupta retire at this Annual General Meeting and being eligible offer himself for re-election.
Further Mrs. Sheel Gupta Director of the company has resigned from the Directorship of the
Company w.e.f, 04.05.2022.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

Mis Anit Sood & Associates Chartered Accountant (firm registration no. 004985 N) New Delhi, the
Statutory Auditor of the Company were appointed as the Auditors of the Company at the 20TH
Annual general Meeting of the Company held on 10th September, 2023 pursuant to section 139 and
142 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act , 2013, and the Rules made hereunder, as
amended from time io time, for period of five years till the conclusion of the 34th Annuat General
Meeting , subject to the ratification by the shareholders at every Annual General Meeting.

DISCLOSURE OF COMPQSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE AND PROVIDING VIGIL MECHANISM
The provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules 6 and 7 of the Companies
(Meetings of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 is not applicable to the Company,

SHARES
a) BUY BACK OF SECURITIES
The Company has not bought back any of its securities during the year under review.
b) SWEAT EQUITY
The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares during the year under review.
¢) BONUS SHARES
The Company has not issued any Bonus Shares during the year under review.
d) EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION PLAN
The Company has not provided any Stock Option scheme to the employees during the year
under review.

DETAILS OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SUB-SECTION (12) OF SECTION 143
OTHER THAN THOSE WHICH ARE REPORTABLE TO THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT

During the year under review, the statutory auditors has not reported, any instance of fraud
committed against the company by its officers or employees, under section 143(12) of the companies
Act, 2013 the detail of which would need to be mentioned in the Director's Report.

SEXUAL HARRASMENT OF WOMEN AT WORK PLACE

Company promote the positive workpiace environment for everyone. free from harassment of any
nature. And no complaint was received by the Company from any employee during the financial year
2022-2023. 1
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28.
29.

30

DETAIL OF Extra Ordinary General Meeting

There is no Extra Ordinary Generai meeting held during the financial year under review.

COMPLIANCE OF SECRETARIAL STANDARD ISSUED BY ICSI
Company has complied with the Secretarial Standard issued by ICS!.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CERTIEICATE
Not Applicable.

31. SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
Not applicable.

32. MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS
Maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under sub-section N
of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.

33. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:
Adequate Internal Financial Control system and checks are in place commensurate with the size of
the company and nature of its business.

34, Disclosure ynder the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code {IBC), 2016
There is no proceeding which is pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code {IBC), 20186
during the financial yearunder review.

35. Details of Difference between Valuation Amount on One Time Settlement and Valuation while
avaijling Loan from Banks and Financial institutions.
During the year under review there has been no one time settiement of Loans taken from Banks and
Financial Institutions.

36 ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
Your Directors place on record their sincere thanks to bankers, business associates, consultanis,
various government authorities, empioyees and shareholders for their continued support extended to
your Company's activities during the yvear under review.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
k"(ff - (\‘ (."f/‘: }"
(S.P.GUPTA) (KAVEEN GUPTA)
Place: New Delh {DIN-00204504) {DIN-00204605)

Dated : 01/09/2023 Director Director



SUN AERO LIMITED

CIN 1 UT4893D1.1993PLC055758

Regd. Off: A-7, FIRST FLOOR, GEETANJALI ENCLAVE, NEW DELHI-110 017

PHONE # (91 11) 41515250 _e-mail; sunairhotels@gmail.com

ANNEXURE--A

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING

AND QUTGO for the vear ended on 31st March, 2023.

information on conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and
OCutgo required to be disclosed under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014 are provided hereunder:

(A)

Piace: New Deihi
Dated : 01/08/2023

Conservation of Energy:

({0)
{if)

{iif)

The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy.
The steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy.

The capital investment on energy conservation equipments.

Technology Absorption:

(i)
(ii)

(iif)

the efforts made {owards technology absorption.

the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product
development or import substitution.

in case of imported technolegy (imported during the last three years
reckoned from the beginning of the financial year).

{a) the details of technology imported

{b) the year of import;

{c) whether the technology been fully absorbed

{d)

dy if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place,
and the reasons thereof.

{iv) the expenditure incurred on Research and Development.

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Qutgo:

: Not Applicable
: Not Applicable

: Not Applicable
1 Not Applicable
: Not Applicable

: Not Applicable

: Not Applicable

Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars 31%March 2023 31*'March 2022
Earnings NIL NIL
Outgoe / Expenses NIL NIL

For and on behaif of the Board of Directors

ol
(S.P.GUPTA)
{DIN-00204504)
Director

i -

{(KAVEEN GUPTA)
(DIN-00204805)
Director



SUN AERO LIMITED

CIN : U74B981)L 1993PLCO55759
Regd. Off: A-7, FIRST FLOOR, GEETANJALI ENCLAVE, NEW DELHI-110 017

PHONE # {91 11) 41515250 __e-mail; sunairhotels@amail.com

ANNEXURE-B
FORM NO. AOC-2
[FPursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014] for the year ended 31/03/2023.

FORM FOR DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS / ARRANGEMENTS ENTERED
INTO BY THE COMPANY WITH RELATED PARTIES REFERRED TO IN SUB-SECTION {1) OF
SECTION 188 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 INCLUDING CERTAIN ARMS LENGTH
TRANSACTION UNDER THIRD PROVISO THERETO

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transaction not at Arm’s Length basis:

Si No. Particulars Details
(@)  Name {s) of the related party & nature of relationship : N.A
(b)  Nature of contracts / arrangements / transaction : N.A
{c}  Duration of the contracts / arrangements / transaction : N.A
{d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction - N.A

including the vaiue, if any
(e) Justification for entering into such coniracts or arrangements or - N.A
transaction
(i Date of approval by the Board : N.A
(@) Amount paid as advances, if any : N.A
(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in General : N.A

meeting as required under first proviso to section 188

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or fransaction at Arm’s Length bhasis:

Sl. No. Particulars Details
(a} Name(s} of the related party & nature of relationship _ N.A
(k)  NMNature of contracts / arrangements / transaction _ NA
{c)  Duration of the contracts / arrangements / fransaction : N.A
(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction _

including the value, if any : N.A
{e) Date of approval by the Board : N.A
(fy  Amount paid as advances, if any : N.A

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

cil."g«-,.)j o ] 7
e i S [".' | -
(S.P.GUPTA) {(KAVEENGUPTA)
Place: New Delhi Director Director

Dated : 01/09/2023 ( DIN-00204504) { DIN-00204605)



Independent Auditor’'s Report

To the Members of Sun Aero Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Sun Aero Limited {"the Company"), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow
Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (herein referred as "the Financial Statements™).

fn our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"} in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Accounting Standards prescribed under section
133 of the Act read with the ( Accoutning Standards) Rules 2021("AS") and other accounting principies
generally accepted in india, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, its profit and cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics (CoE) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act an Rules made thereunder, we have fulfiied our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI'sCode of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Financial Statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of its report
{hereinafter called as "Board Report") which comprises various informations required under section 134(3)
of the Companies Act 2013 but does not inciude the Financial Statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statement does not cover the Board Report and we do not express any form of
assurance cenclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the Board Report and
in doing so, consider whether the Board Report is materially inconsistent with the Financial Statements or
our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

i, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Board
Report, we are required to report that fact, we have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
pesition, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the AS and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India . This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting poficies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent: and
design. impiementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records. relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
it
i



In preparing the financial st'éterﬁ'ehts,' 'm'an'a'gémeﬂt'is' respo'ns'ibie for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or o cease

operatiens, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financia! statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial
Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

a) ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that issufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The rigk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve colfusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

b)  Obtain an understanding of internal conirol relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
operative effectiveness of Company's internal control systems.

c) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

d)  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on theaudit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may castsignificant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. if
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such disciosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion, Qur conciusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up fo the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause theCompany to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e} Evaluate the overall presentation, siructure and content of the Financial Statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fairpresentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that, individually orin aggregate,

makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Financial

Statements maybe influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the

scope of our audit work and in evaluating the resuits of our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any

identified misstatements in the Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including anysignificant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought fo bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards. N
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

This report as annexure A include a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 & 4 of the
Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 issued by the Central Government in terms of sub-section
(11) of section 143 of the Act, to the extent applicable to the company

1.

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

(a)

(b)

(g)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

in our opinion proper books of account as required by faw have been kept by the Company so far
as ft appears from our examination of those books:

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss and the statement of cash flows dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules,
2021,

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2023
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March
2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act:

With respect {o the adeguacy of the internal financial controls over financiat reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B”; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

()  The Company did not have pending litigations on its financial position in its financial

sfatements.

(i  The Company did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts

including derivative contracts.

(i) There were no amounts, reguired to be transferred, to the investor Education and

Protection Fund by the Company.,

{iv) a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested {either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person or entity, including foreign entities (Intermediaries), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall whether, directly or
indirectly, fend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company (Uitimate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee,
security or the fike on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b} The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign
entity (Funding Parties), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shail, whether directly or indirectly. lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsocever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the fike on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

1



¢) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the representations under sub-ctause (i) and (i) of Rule 11{e), as provided under {a)
ana (b), contain any material misstatement.

(vi a) The Company has neither dectared nor paid any dividend during the year.
b} The Board of Directors of the Company have not proposed dividend for the year.
For ANIL SO0D & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.004985N

e b
(ANIL SO0D)
5-318, Greater kailash-1 Partner
New Delhi -110 048 Membership No. 83839
Dated: 01/09/2023 UDIN:- 226039 20 1 v el Soy

Ty
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report
to the Members of Sun Aero Limited of even date)

()

(iv)

in respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment:

(a)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of property, plant and equipment. There is no Intangible assets during the
year ended 31/03/2023

The Company has a program of verification to cover all the items of property, plant and
equipment in a phased manner which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of
the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, property, plant and
equipment were physically verified by the management during the year. According to the
information and explanations given to us, no discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined by us, we report
that, the title deeds, comprising all the immovable properties are held in the name of the
Company.

The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment (including Right of Use
assets) during the year.

According fo the information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have been initiated
during the year or pending against the Company as at March 31, 2023, for holding any benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition} Act, 1988 (as amended in 2018) and rudes
made thereunder.

The inventory includes Shares, Mutual Funds and otrher securities were physicaily verified by the
management at reasonable intervals during the year. No discrepancy was noticed on physical
verification of inventory as compared to book rececrds in the books of account.

The Company has not availed /been sanctioned any working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores,
in aggregate, from Banks on the basis of security of current assets, therefore no requirement o file
quarteriy returns/statements by the Company with such banks.

The Company has not granted loans, provided guarantee(s) or security(ies) to companies, firms,
fimited tliability partnerships, and granted unsecured loans to its subsidiaries and associates, covered
in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act, in respect of which:

(a)

(b)

During the year, the Company has not provided loans to companies, firms, limited liahility
partnerships or any other parties during the year.

The Company has not made any investments, provided any guarantee or security to companies,
firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties during the year.

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of lcans either repayaisle on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
comptied with the provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of loans granted,
investmenis made and guaraniees and securities provided, as applicable.

)
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(v) Accerding to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has neither accepted any
amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of Section 73 to 76 of the Act and the
ruies made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3{v}
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{(vi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, maintenance of cost
records has not been specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

(vii) According to the information and exptanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(@) The Company has generally been regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues including
goods and service tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, duty of customs,
duty of excise, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities
except for a few instances of delay in deposits.

Accoerding to the information and explanations given, no undisputed amounts payable in respect
of above statutory dues were outstanding as at March 31, 2023, for a period of more than six
months from the date they become payable,

(b)  There are dues in respect of value added tax, income tax and excise duty which have not been
deposited as at March 31, 2023, on account of dispute are given below:

Name of the Nature of Dues | Amount (Rs.) Period to which the Forum Present
Statute {in Crore) amount relates where status as on

dispute is | the date of

pending this Report

income-tax Act, income-tax 14.67 FY 1995-.2000 High Court, ; Pending With
Dethi High Court

* Amounts are net of payments made and without considering interest for the overdue period, if
any, as may be levied if demand as raised is upheld,
# Exciuding interest and additional tax

{viiij According fo the information and explanations given to usthe company has not surrendered or
disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded in the books of account, in the tax assessments
under Income Tax Act as income during the year.

(ix} (a} The company has not taken any term loan /borrowed money during the vear.

(b) The Company has not been declared willful defauiter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

{c) The Company has neither borrowed any funds from financial institution or hank, nor issued
debenturesand does not have loans or borrowings from government. Accordingly, no comments
are called for on defauits in repayment of such dues.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short-
term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the
Company.

{e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, the company does not
have Subsidiary/Associate/Joint venture

(f)  According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company dose not have subsidiaries.

i



(x) (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. Hence, the reguirement to report on clause 3(x} {(a)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of fully or partiaily or
convertible debentures during the year under audit.

(x)) (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and expianations given to us, no
fraud by the Company or any fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the
year.

{b)  According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under section 143(12) of the
Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, with the Central Government.

(c)  According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year,

(xii) The Company is not a nichi company as per the provisions of the Act. Therefore, the requirement to
report on clauses 3(xii) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicabie to the Company.

{xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and
188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial
statements as required by the appilicabie accounting standards.

(xiv) (@) In our opinion, the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the
size and the nature of its business.
(b} We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit
repori, for the pericd under audit.

(xv) In our opinion, the Company has not entered into any non-cash fransactions with its directors or
persons connected with its directors and hence, requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) {&) No such orders have been passed by any authority. Further the Company had made an
appiication {0 Reserve Bank of India for vofuntary surrender of NBFC Certificatie No. N-14-03086
dated 16/12/2005 issued by Reserve bank of India, Delhi | the application is under still under
process and till date no Material order has received in this regard. Hence, reporting under clause
3{xvi) (a), (b} and {c) of the Order is not applicable.

(b} In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016} and accordingly, reporting under

clause 3(xvi) {d) of the Order is not applicable.

{xvii} The Company has noi incurred cash loss during the financial year under our audit. However has cash
loss of Rs. Rs. 4,44,037/- in the immediately preceding financial year ended on 31/03/2022.

(xviii, There has been no resignation by the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly, reguirement
to report on clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

L



{(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not
capable of meeting is liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of cne year from the balance sheet date. We, however, siate thal this is not an assurance as to
the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the
date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as
and when they fall due.

(xx) (a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) or other than
ongoing projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule Vi to the Act in compliance
with second proviso to sub-section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reperting under clause 3(xx)
{a) is not applicable for the year,
(b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects that are required to be transferred
to a special account in compliance of provision of Section 135(8} of the Act.

For ANIL SO0OD & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.004985N

(ANIL SOOD)

S-316, Greater kailash-1 Partner
New Dethi -110 048 Membership No. 83939

Dated: 01/09/2023 UDIN:- 2208 3035 26 2 M 2h Sy




ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

{Referred to in paragraph (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report to the Members of Sun Aero Limited of even date)
Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3
of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Sun Aero Limited {“the Company”)
as of March 31, 2023, in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management’'s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal contro! stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of internal
Financial Controls Over Financiai Reporting (the “Guidance Note) issued by the institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAl). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence fo respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial conirols over financial reporting of the
Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note issued by the
ICAI and the Standards on auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note reguire that we comply with
gthical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls cperated effectively in all material respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controts system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reascnabie
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

[



Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controis, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controis
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

fn our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given o us, the Campany
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial repoerting and such
internal financiaf controls over financial reperting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal controf stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the expianations given to us, the Company
has, in ali material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such
internat financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

For ANIL. SOOD & ASSCOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No,004985N

<l

(ANIL SO0OD)
5-316, Greater kailash-1 Partner
New Delhi -110 048 Membership No. 83939
Dated: 01/09/2023 UDIN:- 2022530 Ad » oA o e

o
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SUN AERG LIMITED
CIN : U74898DL1983PLCO55759

Regd. Office Address : A-7, Ist FLOOR, GEETANJAL] ENCLAVE, NEW DELHI - 110 017

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2023

(All amounts in thousand of ¥, unless otherwise stated)

sl Note 31/03/2023
No. Particulars No, Amount

I EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

(1} Shareholders’ Funds

(a) Share capital 3 700.00
(b} Reserves and surpius 4 27761105 2,78,311.05
(3} Current Liabilities
(a) Cther current liabiiities 5 121.00
TOTAL 2,78,432.05
. ASSETS
{1} Non-current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Eguipment
Tangible assets, not under lease 6 1,56,196.08
{b) Non Current Investment 7 0.00
{c} Long-term loans and advances 8 98,103.29
(d) BDeferred tax assets 9 446.45
(e) Ofther non-current assets 10 175.00 2,64,920.80
(2) Current Assets
(a} Inventories 11 20,161.90
(n) Cash and cash equivalents 12 3,349.36 23,511.26
TOTAL 2,78,432.05
Signiicant Accounting Policies 2 (&)

The accompanying notes are an integrat part of the financial statements.

AUDITORS REPORT
As per our separate report of even date attached
For ANIL SO0D & ASSOCIATES
Charlered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.004985N

el

{ANIL SOOD)
Partner
Place: New Delhi Membership No. 83939
Dated: 01/09/2023 UDIN:- 2 20 A3 2 G8G 2 ML ey

E/‘ ‘\,y\

31/03/2022
Amount

700.0C

275867 90  276,567.90

121.00

2,76,688.90

e ————— A Al

1.16,875.22
5,008.06
1,03,403.02
578.95

175.00 2,26,041.25

47, 753.41

2.804.24 50,647.65

2.76.688.90
0

(S.P.GUPTA)
Director
( DIN-00204504)

o by
RS

(KAVEEN GUPTA)
Director

(DIN-G0204805)
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SUN AERO LIMITED
CIN : U74899DL 1993PLC{55759
Regd. Office Address : A-7, ist FLOOR, GEETANJAL] ENCLAVE, NEW DELH| - 110 017

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023

(All amounts in thousand of & unless otherwise stated)

No, Particulars

I

VI.

Revenue

(a) Income from operations
(b} Other income

Total Revenue

Expenses

{b) Purchases of stock-in-trade

{c} Changes in inventories of Stock-in-trade
{d) Employee benefit expenses

{e) Other expenses

() Finance costs

{g) Depreciation

. Total Expenses

Profit / {loss) before tax (I - IV)
Tax expense

(&) Current tax

(h) Earlier years' tax

(c) Deferred Tax

Vil Profit / (loss) transferred to Balance Sheet (V - V1)

Vil Earnings per equity share (EPS)

(a) Basic
(b} Diluted

Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

FPlace; New Delhi
Dated: 01/08/2023

Note 31/03/2023 31/03/2022

No. Amount Amount
13 45,193.52 5,678.40
14 807.13 227.80
46,100.65 5,806.20
15 14,353.70 15,102.43
18 27,591.51 -9,481.86
17 963.32 373.70
18 394.05 352.24
18 0.00 3.73
20 879.18 374.00
43,971.75 B,724.24
2,128.80 -818.04

22747 -
24.77 -

133.50 385.74 -7.48 -7.48
1,743.16 -810.55

21 {In Rs.) (in Rs.)
24.90 {11.58)
24.90 {11.58)

2
AUDITCRS' REPORT
As per our separate report of even date attached N «j _,f -
For ANIL SO0D & ASSOCIATES (S.P.GUPTA)
Chartered Accountants Director

Firm Regn. No.0D4985N

UDIN:- 2305

e
eed |

(ANIL SO0OD)

Partner

Membership No. 83939

PRARG TR b ey

( DIN-00204504)

(KAVEEN GUPTA)

Birector
(DIN-00204505)
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SUN AERO LIMITED

Regd. Office Address : A-7, ist FLOOR, GEETANJALI ENCLAVE. NEW DELH! - 110 017

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023
{All amounts in thousand of 7, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net profit /(loss) before tax and after prior period expenses
Operating (loss) hefore working capital changes

- Depreciation

- Interest Paid

- Profit on Sale of Car

Movement in working capital:

-{Increase} / decrease in inventories

- {Increase) / decrease in foans and advances

- (Increase) / decrease in other Non Current Assels

= Incresgse / (docrcase) in current liabitilies and provisions
Cash {used in) operations

Direct taxes (paid)

Net cash (used in) operating activities

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
- Land Purchase

- Car Purchase

- Car Sold

- Sale of Invastment

Net cash (used in) investing activities

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
- Interest paid
Net cash from financing activities

Net increase / {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash sgqulvalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (E-D)

CONPONENTS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash in hand
With Banks - On current accounts

Significant Accounting Policies: Note No. 2

Place: New Delhi
Dated: 01/08/2023

AUDITORS' REPORT

(A)

(8)

(D}
(E)

As per our separate report of even date attached

For ANIL SO0D & ASSOQCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.004985N

anj‘.) f -

(ANIL 800D)
Partner

Y
?ﬁ!{:.‘ﬁ

i

Membership No. 83939

31/03/2023 31/03/2022

Amount Amount
2,128.80 -818.04
2,128.80 -818.04
679.18 374.00
373
- -227.78
27.591.51 -9.481.86
5,289.73 5.452 51
- 21.78
- -793.16
35,699 30 -5,468 83

-252.24 -
35,447.06 -5,4G8.83
-40,000.00 -1,416.00
- -5,719.22
1,010.00

5,008.06 -
-34,881.95 6,125 22
- -3.73
- -3.73
455,12 -11,597.78
2.894.24 14,492.02
3,349.36 2,884 24
45512 -11,597.78

31103/2023 ‘ 31/03/2022
668.21 790.29
2,681.15 2.103.95
3,349.36 2,894.24
-0 -0
_(;_:';j\t; f
(S P.GUPTA}
Director

{ DIN-00204504)

’\ \j

(KAVEEN GUPTA)
Director
(DIN-00204605)



SUN AERO LIMITED
Reqgd. Office Address [ A-7, Ist FLLOOR, GEETANJALI ENCLAVE, NEW DELHI - 110 017

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO ACCOUNTS
FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023

. ACCOUNTING CONVENTIONS

a)

b)

The financial statement of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Generaily Accepted
Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP)} to comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021
and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the 2013 Act™) as applicable.

The financial statements have ben prepared ¢n accrual basis under the historical cost convention basis.
The accounting policies adopted in preparation of the financial staiements are consistent with those
followed in the previous year.

. SIGNIFICANT ACCQUNTING POLICIES

A,

C.

Use of Estimates ;

The preparation of financial statements requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the
reported amount of assets and liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Difference between the actual results and estimates
are recognised in the pericd in which the results are known / materialised.

Tangible Property, Plant and Equipment;
a) Own Property, Plant and Equipment:

{iy Tangible Property, Plant and Equipment are staied at cost. Cost includes amounts added on
revatuation, less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Al cosis, including
expenditures and levies directly attributable to bringing the assets to their working condition for the
intended use. Net charges on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from exchange
rate variations attributable to the Property, Plant and Eguipment are capitalised.

(i) Land is stated at original cost of acquisition.

(i) Capital work-in-progress is stated at amount spent upto the date of Balance Sheet.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of Property, Plant and Equipment are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets, and are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

by Leased Assets:
(i) Operating Leases: Rentals are expensed with reference to lease terms and other considerations.
(i) Finance Leases: The lower of the fair value of the assets and present value of the minimum lease
rentals is capitalised as Properly, Plant and Equipments with corresponding amount shown as
lease liability. The principal component in the lease rental is adjusted against the lease liability and
the interest component is charged to the statement of profit and loss.

(ill) However, rentals referred to in {i) or {ii) above and the interest component referred to in (i} above
pertaining to the period uplo the date of commissioning of the assets are capitalized.

(iv) AY assets given on finance lease are shown as receivables at an amount equai to net nvestment
in the lease. Initial direct costs in respect of lease are expensed in the year in which such costs
are incurred. Income from lease assets is accounted by applying the interest rate implicit in the
lease to the net investment.

Intangible Assets & Amortisation:
Intangible Assets are recognised as per the criteria specified in Accounting Standard (AS-28) on "intangible
Assets" and are amortised over the usefu life of the underlying assets as folfows:

a) Leasehold land: over the period of lease.

b) Lump sum fees for technical know-how: over a period of six years in case of foreign technclogy and

. . . S AAY
three years in case of indigenous technology. % -




C 20
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of Property, Plant and Equipments are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets, and are recognized in
the staterment of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

. Depreciation and amortization:

a) Deprecigtion on tangible Property, Plant and Equipments is calculated on Straight Line Method
pursuant to the requirements of Schedule-il of the Companies Act, 2013 with effect from April 01,
20%4, by using the rates prescribed therein over the estimated useful lives of the Property, #lant and
Equipments as specified in Part 'C’, while fixing the residual values of the Property, Flant and
Equipments at 5% of their original cost, in respect of asseis which are used for full period in the year
and on prorata basis for assets acquired & put to use during the year.

n) Intangible Property, Plant and Equipments are amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful economic life in respect of assets which are used for full period in the year, and on prorata basis
for assets acquired / recognized and put to use during the year, If there is a significant change from
previous estimates in the expected patiern of economic henefits from the asset, the amortization period
and method are changed accordingly to reflect the changed patiern. However, no amortization
expense is provided on intangible assets derecognized during the year,

. Impairment of Tangible and Intangible Assets:

An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of assets exceeds its recoverable value. An
impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit and loss in the year in which an asset is identified as
impaired. The impairment loss recognized in prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a
change in the estimate of recoverable amount.

Borrowing Costs :

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as
part of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that takes necessarily substantial period of time o
get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to revenue in the period in which they
are incurred.

. Valuation of Investment:

a) Trade investments are the Investmenis made to enhance the Company's business interests.
invesiments are either classified as current or long-term based on Management's intention at the time
of purchase.

by Current invesiments are carried at the lower of cost and fair market value of each investment

¢} Long term investments are acrried af cost less provisions recorded to recognize any diminution, other
than temporary, in the carrying value of each investment.

d) Cost for gverseas investments comprises the Indian Rupee vaiue of the consideration paid for the
invesiment transiated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of investment.

. Investment Property:

An investment in fand or building, which is not intended to be occupied substantially for use by, or in the
operations of, the Company, is classified as an investment property. Investment properties are stated at
cost, net of accumuiated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any,

Depreciation on building component of investment property is calculated on a Straight Line Method basis
using the rates and useful lives prescribed in Schedule 1l to the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of such
investment properties which are used for full period in the year, and on prorata basis for assets acquired
and put fo use during the year. However, no depreciation is provided on the investment properties sold
during the year, but on disposal, the difference between its carrying amount and the net disposal proceeds
is charged or credited to the statement of profit and loss.

Valuation of inventory:
Inventories are stated at lower of cost or net realisable value wherever applicable. Cost is determined on
FIFC basis. 9
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Revenue Recoghition:
Ait incomes and expenses are accounted for on accrual and prudent basis. Revenue in respect of
insurance / other claims, interest, commission, etc. is recegnised only when it is reasonably certain that the
ultimate collection will be made. Expenses incurred for which benefit will accrue in the subsequent years
are declared in the balance sheet as deferred revenue expenses and amortised over the period in which
the benefit is expected to accrue.

Foreign Currency Transactions:

a) in accordance with the Accounting Standard AS-11 on "Effects of changes in foreign exchange rate” as
prescribed by the ICAL year-end balance of foreign currency transactions is transiated at the year-end
rates and the cerresponding effect is given in the respective accounts. Transactions denominated in
foreign currency are recorded at exchange rate prevailing at the time of transaction. However
transactions completed during the year are adjusted on actual basis.

b} In case of tems which are covered by forward exchange contracts, the difference hetween the year
end rate and rate on the date of the contract is recognized as exchange difference and the premium
paid on forward coniracts is recognized over the life of the contract.

¢} Non-monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost.

d) Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on setflement or on translation is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss except in cases where they relate to acquisition of
Property, Plant and Equipments, in which case they are adjusted to the carrying cost of such assets.

e) Difference in outstanding value of term loan in foreign currency as at the year end vis-a-vis the date of
obtaining loan is recorded in the books of account in a separate account called ‘Exchange Difference
(FC Lacn)' Account {o be approprited at the conclusion of the said term loan.

f) Difference in foreign exchange forward contracts is recognised as income / loss in the books of
account by spreading the same proportionately over the effective life of the contract.

Employee Benefits ;

a) All short-ferm employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for services rendered by the
employees during the year are recognised, at the undiscounted amount, as liability (accrued expense),
after deducting any amount already paid. Where the amount already paid exceeds the undiscounted
amount of the benefits, such excess is recognised as an asset {prepaid expense).

b) Company's contribution to Provident Fund, which is a defined contribution plan, is charged to the
statement of profit and loss.

¢y Gratuity liabifity is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation
on projected unit credit method made at the end of each financiat year.

d) Long terrn compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation. The actuarial
valuation is done as per projected unit method.

e) Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken {o the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred.

f)  Termination benefits are recognised as a liability immediately on incurrence of any such obligation.

. Provision for Current and Deferred Tax :

Provision for current tax is made after taking into consideration benefits admissible under the provisions of
the income Tax Act, 1961. Deferred tax resuiting from 'timing differences’ hetween taxabie and accounting
income is accounted for using the tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted as on the
balance sheet date. The deferred tax asset is recognised and carried forward only o the exient thal there
is a virtual certainty that the asset will be realised in future.

Provisions, Contingent Liahilities and Contingent Assets :
a} Provisions are recognised for {iabilities that can only be measured by using a substantial degree of
estimation, if;
{iy the Company has a present obligation as a resul of a past event,
{iiy a probable outflow of resources is expected to seitle the obligation, and
(iii) the amount of obligation can reliably be estimated.
Reimbursement expected in respect of expenditure required to seitle a provision is recognised only
when it is virtually certain that the reimburse{mfﬁnt will ultimately be received.
-4




4
b) Contingent Liahiity is disclosed in case of:
(i) a present obligation arising on past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation,
{#) a present obligation, when no reliable estimate is possibie, and
(i) a possible obliation arising from past events, where the probability of outflow of resources is not
remote.
c) Contingent Assets are neither recognised nor disclosed.
d) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

. Prior Period ltems :

Prior Pericd items are disciosed separately in the statement of profit and loss for the year, keeping in view
their materiality and the past method of accounting.

. Exceptional and Extra-ordinary items:

Exceptional and extra-ordinary items of the Company during the period are disclosed separately in the
statement of profit and loss for the year, as part of net profit.



SUN AERO LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023 (Contd...)

(All amounts in thousand of &, unless otherwise stafed)

3. SHARE CAPITAL

31/03/2023 31/0312022
Number Amount Number Amount
Authorised share capital:
Equity shares of Rs, 10/~ (PY Rs. 10/-) each 10,00,0C0 10,000.00 10.00.000 10,000,008
Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital:
Eguity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid-up 70,000 700.00 70,000 700.00
Total 70,000 700.00 70,000 700.00
Reconciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the repoiting period:
31/03/2023 31/03/2022
Number Amount Number Amount
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 70,000 700,00 70,000 700.00
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 70,000 700.00 70,000 700.60

Terms / rights attached to equity shares:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/~ per share. Each holder of equity
shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in indian rupees. The
dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual
General Meating.

During the year ended 31% March, 2023 the amount of per share dividend recognized as distribution to equity
shareholders was Rs. Nil (PY Rs. Nil.

In the event of fiquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets
of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of

equity shares held by the shareholders.

Equity Shares held by holding company. ultimate holding company and/or their subsidiaries / associates:

M/s Sunair Hotels Limited, the holding company

70,000 {PY 70,000} equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid-up

Details of shareholders hoilding more than 5% equity shares in the Company:

Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid-up

M/s Sunair Hotels Limited, holding company

(3500 shares are being held in the names of Six nominees
of Sunair Hoteis Limited and the balance shares are held
in the name of Sunair Hotels Limited)

Details of shares held by promoters in the Company

Name of the shareholder

Sunair Hetels Limited

(3500 shares are being held in the names of Six nominees
of Sunair Hotels Limited and the balance shares are held
in the name of Sunair Hotels Limited)

-, Total
Oy

31/03/2023 31/03/2022
Amount Amount
700.00 700.00
31/03/2023 31/03/2022
No. of No. of
Shares % of Shares % of
held Holding held Holding
70,000 100 70,000 100
31/03/2023 31/03/2022
No. of No. of
Shares % of Shares % of
held Holding held Hoilding
70,000 100% 70,000 100%
70,000 100% 70,000 100%




4, RESERVES & SURPLUS

Surplus / (deficit) in the statement of profit and loss
Opening Balance

Add:  Net Profit / (Net Loss) for the current year
Closing Balance

Total
5. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

a. Audit fee payable
b, TDS Payable

Oy

31/03/2023
Amount

2,765,867 80
1,743.18

2,77611.05

2,77,611.05

108.80
12.10

Total 121.00

310312022

Amount

2,76,678.45
-810.55

~275,867.90

2,75,867.90

108 80
12.10
121.00
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SUN AERO LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3ist MARCH, 2023 {Contd...)
(All amounts in thousand of ¥, unless otherwise stated)

7.

10.

1.

12.

NON CURRENT INVESMENT 31/03/2023
Amount
Muthoot Fincorp Limited (Non Convertible Market -
LinkedDebentures) -
EONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
31103/2023
Amount
A. Capital Advances
a. Unsecured, considered good 88,223.16
B. Others
a. Unsecured, considered good
-Income Tax Refundable 1,680.13
-GST Input Available 7,200.00
Total 98,103.29

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

31/03/2022
Amount

5,008.06
 5008.06

3170312022
Amount

1,02,223.16

1,179.88

_ 10348505

in line with the method recommended by the Acceunting Standard AS-22 on "Acounting for Taxes on Income"
there were no deferred tax as on as on 1st April, 2022 and 31st March, 2023, However components of

deferred tax liabilities as on those dates are given as under:

01/04/2022 For the Year Reversing 31/03/2023
A. Deferred Tax Assets
Depreciation 48.32 16.00 - 64.32
Business Loss c/f 42477 - 365.68 56.08
Unabsorbed Depreciation c/f 109.87 216.18 - 326.05
Total 579.95 232,18 36568 446 .45
Net Deferred Tax Assets 579.95 23218 -365.68 446.45
OTHER NMON-CURRENT ASSETS
31/03/2023 31/03/2022
Amount Amount
A. Staff Advance 175.00 175.00
Total 175.00 17500
INVENTORIES
31/03/2023 31/03/2022
Amount Amount
A. Stock-in-trade (Valued at Cost or NRV whichever is Less)
- Mutual Fund Units 20,161.90 47,753.41
Total (A} 20,161,890 47,7563.41
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
31/03/2023 31/03/2022
Amount Amount
a. Balances with banks
in current accounts with Scheduled Banks 2,681.15 2,103.65
(There are no earmarked balances,
margin money, security  against
borrowings, guarantees and other .
b. Cash on hand S 668.21 790,29
3,249.36 2,804 24



SUN AERO LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023 {Contd...}
(All amounts in thousand of T_unless otherwise stated)

13. INCOME FROM CPERATIONS

A. Sale of Products
Traded Goods
Income from Operations (Gross)
Less: Excise Duty
Income from Operations {Net)

Detaiis of Goods Sold
a. Shares & Mutual Funds

14. OTHER INCOME

A, Interest Income
- Others

Profit on Sale of Assets
Profit on Sale of Securities

Misc Income

Uow

15. PURCHASE OF STOCK-IN-TRADE

-Mutuai Funds

Total

31/03/2023
Amount

45 ,193.52

45,193.52

Total

45,193.52

45,193.52

45,193.562

31/03/2023
Amount

1.90

905.23
0.00

Total 907.13

31/03/2023
Amount

14,353.70

16. (INCREASE} / DECREASE IN INVENTORIES OF TRADED GOODS

Invenfories at the end of the vear
a. Mutual Funds

Inventories at the beginning of the vear
a. Mutual Funds

{Increase) / Decrease in Inventiories

17. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

A. Salaries, wages and bonus
B. Stalf Weifare Expenses

45,193.52

14,363.70

31/03/2022
Amount

5.678.40
5,678.40

5,678.40

5,678.40

5,678.40

31103/2022
Amount

227.78

. 002
227.80

31/03/2022
Amount

15,102.43

15,102.43

31/03/2023 31/03/2022  {increase)/
Amount Amount Becrease
31/03/2023
20,161.90 47,753.414 27.591.51
20,161.90 47.753.41 27,5691.51
31/03/2022
47,753 .41 38,271.55 -9.481.86
4775341 3827155 048180
-27,691.51 -9,481.86
31/03/2023 3103/2022
Amount Amount
937.20 389.60
o 16.12 4.10
' Total 953.32 373.70




SUN AERO LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023 {Contd...)
{All amounts in thousand of & _unless otherwise stated)

18.

19,

20.

21,

OTHER EXPENSES

Travelling & Conveyance
Communication Cost

Printing & Staticnery

Payment to Auditors

RQC Filing Fees

Vehicle Running & Maintenance Charges
Misc. Expenses

Property Tax

—ommUom»

Total

Details of Payment to Auditors
As Auditor:

Statutory Audit Fee

Tax Audit Fee

Total
FINANCE COST

a. Interest Paid on TDS
Total

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSES

Depreciation on Assets
Total

EARNING PER SHARE (EPS)

Total operations for the vear

Profit / (loss) after tax

Less: Dividends & dividend tax on other than equity shares
Net profit/ (foss) for calculation of Basic EPS

Net profit as above

Add : Dividends & dividend tax on other than equity shares

Add : Adjustmenis for the effects of dilutive potential equity shares
Net profit / {loss) for calculation of Diluted EPS

Weightad average number of equity shares in calculating Basic EPS
Effect of dilution:

Convertible preference shares (numbers)

Convettible bonds (numbers)

Stock option granted under ESOP

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating Diluted EPS

O
AR

{(a) Basic
(b Diluted

31/03/2023 3110312022
Amount Amount
15.40 3.28
16.04 3.98
15.48 3.38
142 78 164.56
30.01 3.58
171.84 167 .41
2.51 .45
- 15.62
394 .05 35224
60.50 82.28
60.50 82.28
121.00 164 .56
31/03/2023 31/03/2022
Amount Amount
- 3.73
- 3.73
31/03/2023 31/03/2022
Amount Amount
679.16 374.00
679.16 374.00
31/03/2023 31/03/2022
Amount Amount
1,743.16 -810,55
1,743.16 -810.55
1,743.16 -810.55
1,743.16 -810.55
70.000 70,000
70,600 70,000
24 .90 3
24.90 8)



SUN AERO LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023 (Contd...}
{All amounts in thousand of & _unless otherwise stated)

22,

23.

24.

Related Party Disclosure
Related Party disclosure in accordance with the Accounting Standard AS-18 on ‘Related Party
Disclosures” issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of india is given as under in respect of
related parties with whom transactions have taken place:
a) Related parties and their relationshp

1. Holding Company : Sunair Hotels Limited

2. Key Management Personnel

-Mr. 8 P, Gupta . Director
- Mr. Kaveen Gupta . Director
- Mr. Vipul Gupta : Director

3. Enterprises over which significant influence excercised
by Key Management Personnel
- Pushpanjali Trexim (P) Ltd. - Mr 8.P.Gupta and Mr Vipul Gupta Directors
& Shareholders
b} Transactions with the related parties

Enterprises over which Key
significant influence Management
exercised by Personnel
Key Management {including
Personnel refatives) Total
a) Balance outstanding on March 31, 2023
Enterprises over which Key
significant influence Management
exercised by Personnel
Key Management (inciuding
Personnel relatives) Total
Particulars {Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)
Advances given 215.38 Nil 215.38
(P.Y. 345.38) (P.Y. NH) (P.Y. 345.38)

Debts due by firms or companies in which directors are interested - Rs. NIL (PY Rs. NiL). Maximum
amount ouistanding at any time during the year Rs. NIL (PY Rs. NIL).

Dues to Micro, small and medium enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

in ferms of Schedule 1l of the Companies Act, 2613 and notification number GSR 719(g), the company
had requested ifs various suppliers, who may be registered under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2008, to furnish the relevant registration ceriificate under thalt Act and
cenfirmation regards them being under the said category. From the date of receipt of confirmed details
and information from the said parties the outstanding on account purchase made/services obtained from
such suppliers including the dispuied amounts due fo them, were ascertained and reflecied in the
financials as due to Micro & Small Enterprises. The details in respect of the parties that could be identified
as Micro and Small enterprises as per the MSMED Act on the basis of the information available with the
management are given below:

31/03/2023 31/03/2022
Amount Amount

{fy The principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown

separately) remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each

acceunting year.

-Principat amount due to micra and small enferprises - -

-Interest due on above - -
iy The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the

MSMED Act 2008 along with the amounts of the payment made to

the supplier beyond the appointed day during gach accounting year.

€370



SUN AERO LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023 (Contd...)

(i) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in
making payment {which have been paid but beyond the appointed
day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under
the MSMED Act 2006. -

{iv) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above
are actually paid to the small enferprise for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expendiiure under section 23 of the
MSMED Act 20086.



SUN AERO LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023 (Contd...)
(All amounts in thousand of &, unless otherwise stated)

25. Segment Reporting

The business segments of the Company have been identified in terms of the Accounting Standard AS-17
on “Segment Reporting” issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of india, taking into account the

organisational structure and different risk and return involved in those segments.
repcrtable business segmenis of the company are as under:

a)
b)

investment Business
Real Estate

Accordingly, the

The accounting policies adopted for segment repotting are in line with the following additional policies of
the Company, However, the following additional policies have been adopted for Segmeant Reporting:

a) Revenue and expenses have been identified {o a segment on the basis of relationship to operating
business activities of the segmeni. However, revenue and expenses, which relate to the enterprise as
a whele and cannot be allocated to a particlar segment on reasonable basis are disclosed separately

as "unallocable™.

Segment assets and liabilities resuiting from the operating activities of a segment or directly
atiributable / aliocable to the segment on a reasonable basis are so allocated.

Particulars
Segment Revenue
- Revenue

Net Sales / Income from Operations (A}

Segment Expenses
Allocable Expenses
-Operating / Administration Expenses

(B)
Segment Result A-B
Less : Depreciation
Profit before Taxation
Less : Tax Expense for the year
Profit after Taxation

Segment Assets (including Misc.
expenditure and debit balance of Profit
& Loss Alc)

Segment Liabilities (including
term liabilities)

iong

Total Carrying Amount of fixed assets

Total Depreciation on fixed assets

Portfolio Unallocable Total Amount
Manageme Real Estate {Amount) (Rs)

46,098.75 - 1.80 46,100.65

46,098.75 - 1.90 46, 100.65

41,945 .22 - 2,026.53 43,292 58

41,945.22 - 2,026.53 43,292.558

4,153.53 - -2,024.63 2.808.06

679.16

2.128.90

385,74

. 1.74316

20,161.90 - 25827016 2,78,432.05

- 1.10,111.50 46,084 .56 1,56,196.08

- - B79.16 67816

The business segments of the Company, viz., Investment and Real Estate are located at one
geographical place only and accordingly the geographical segment is not applicable to the Company.

< q



SUN AERO LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ist MARCH, 2023 {Contd...}
{All amounts in thousand of & unless otherwise stated)

26. Ratio
As at As at o
Measure | 31 31 o
S. Noj| Particulars Varianc Reason for variance
s March | March
2023 | 2022 €

1 |Current Ratio Times 194.31 1 418.58 ~54%|The ratio is Decreased during the current year
due to Decreased in the value of current assets
during the year as compared to previcus year.

2 1Debi-Equity Ratio Times N.A, MN.A. - N.A. )

3 {Debt service coverage|Times N.A. N.A. - The change in ratio is mainly due to the following

ratio reasons:

a. The profits available for debt service has
increased in the current year as compared 10
previous year.

b. There has been a decrease in the amount of
debt in the current year as compared to previous
year due to the repayments of debt in the current
year.

4 |Return on equity ratio Percenta 0.01 -0.00 -314%|The ratio is increased during the current year due

ge to increase in the profit earned during the year as
compared to previous year.

5 llnventory turnover ratio  |Times 1.24 0.13 845%{This ratio has increased due to increase in the
cost of goods sold during the year. This increase
is in consistent with the increase in the revenue
earned during the year.

6 [Trade receivables|Times N.A N.A - The ratio is increased during the current year due

furmnaever ratio to increase in the cradit sales during the year as
compared o previous year.

7 |Trade payables furnover{Times N.A N.A - The ratio has Increased due to low purchases

ratio made in credit by the Company in the current
year. This increase in purchases in consistent
with the increase in revenue.

8 [Net capital turnover ratio |Times 1.83 0111 1619%|The ratic is increased during the current year due
to increase in the net profit during the year as
compared to previous year.

g |Net profit ratio Percenta C.c4 -0.14 ~127%INLA,

ge
10 [Return on capital|[Percenta .01 -0.00 -380%IN.A.
employed ge
11 [Return on investment Percenta | N.A NA - N.A.
ge
S. NoJ Ratios Numerator Denominator

1 |Current ratio Current assets Current liabilities

2 |Debt-equity ratio Total deht = long ferm Shareholder's equity

3 Debt  service coverage|Earning for debt service = Net|Debt service = Interest payments + principal repayments

ratio profit hefore taxes + non-cash

4 |Return on equity ratio Net profits after taxes — Average shareholder's equity

5 Inventory turnover ratio  [Cost of goods sold Average inventory = {Opening + closing balance / 2)

6 Trade receivablesiNet credit sales Average accounts receivables

turnover ratio

2 Trade payabies turnoveriNet credit purchases Average trade payables

ratio

o |Net capitai tumover ratio |Net sales Average working capital (i.e. total current assets fess total

current liabilities)

9 |Net profit ratio Net profit Net sales

10 Return on capitaliEarning before interest and|Capital employed = Tangible net worth + total debt +

employed taxes (EBIT) deferred tax liability

11 {Return on invesiment income generated from Time weighted average investments

Lo




SUN AERO LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023 (Contd...}
(All amounts in thousand of & unless otherwise stated)

27. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES & COMMITMENTS {to the extent not provided for)
3110312023 31/63/2022

Amount Amount

(D) Contingent Liabilities

A. Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debis Nil Nit

B. Guarantees Nil Nil

C. Bills of exchange discounted with banks Nil Nii

. Tax demand disputed in appeals 1,486,661.40 1,46,651.40
(i) Commitments

A. Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on

capital accounts and not provided for Nil il
B. Uncalled fiability on shares and other investments partly paid Nil Nil
C. Other commitments NIl Nil

28, Gratuity & Other Post-employment Benefits
No provision has been made in the accounts in respect of future payments of gratuity as per the payment of
Gratuity Act, 1972 since the terms of engagement with the employees do not entail any such obligation cn part
of the employer.

29, EXCEPTIONAL AND EXTRA-ORDINARY ITEMS
No exceptional or extra-ordinary items of revenue nature occurred during the year (PY Nil}. Hence no
disclosure of the same has been made in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

30. Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees.

31. PREVIOUS YEAR FIGURES
Previous year figures have been regroupedirecast wherever considered necessary.

ol i
For ANIL SOCD & ASSOCIATES (S.P.GUPTA)

Chartered Accountants Director

Firm Regn. No.004885N { DIN-G0204504)
(ANIL S00D) a bl

Partner {KAVEEN GUPTA)

Place: New Deihi Membarship No. 83839 Director

Dated: 01/09/2023 UDIN:- (2 an@ 39 90 caniz fy oy ™ (DIN-00204805)







Independent Auditor's Repoit

To the Members of Sunair Hotels Limited

Report on the Audit of the consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Sunair Hotels Limited (hereinafter referred
to as the "Holding Company™) and its subsidiary (Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the
Group™), which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies (hereinafter referred to as “the
consclidated financial statements™).

In cur opinion and to the best of our information and according i¢ the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section
133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021("AS") and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of their consclidated statement of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2023, of consolidated profit and its consclidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We canducted our audit of the consolidated financial statemeants in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143 (10) of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those Standards are further describad in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Coensolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAl) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consclidated financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfiled our other ethical
responsibiliies in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consoiidated
financial statements.

Information Other than the consoclidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures
to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder's information, but does
not inciude the consolidated Financial Statements and our auditor's report therean.

Our opinion on the consolidatedfinancial statementsdoes not cover the other information and we de not express any
form of assurance conclusionthereon.

In connection with our audit of the consclidated financial statements, our responsibility is fo read the other
information and, in doing sec, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of cur audit or otherwise appears to be materially
missiated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is amaterial misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact, we have nothing o report in this regard.
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the
Group are respensible for maintenance of adeguate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding the assets of each company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and the design, implemenfation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting recerds, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the consclidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

Ly g



In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the
Group are responsible for assessing the ability of each company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting uniess management

either intends to liquidate the Companyor to cease operations, or has no realistic atternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for overseeing the
financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as z whole
are free from materia! misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered materia! if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professionat judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit, We also:

a)  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a hasis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resuiting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internat control.

2} Obtain an understanding of internal financial controis relevant to the audit inorder to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)i) of the Act, we are also responsinfe for
expressing aur opinion on whether the Company has adeguate internal financial controis system in place and
the operative effectiveness of such controls.

¢} Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reascnableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management,

dy  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
theaudit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
castsignificant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadeguate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or condifions may cause theCompany to cease to continue as a going concern.

e) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated Financial Statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

f)  Obtain sufficient appropriate evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the group to express an opinicn on the consclidated financial statements, We ave
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of financial statements of such
antities included in the financial consolidated financial staterments.

Materiglity is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated Financial Statements that individually or in
aggregate, makes it probabie that the economic decisions of a reasenably knowledgeable user of the consolidated
Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (1) planning
the scopeof our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work: and (if) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the Standalone Financial $Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal contro! that we
identify during our audit. Ly



We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated Financial Statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report untess law or reguiation preciudes
pubiic disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances. we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect {o our refiance on the work
done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements / financial information ceriified by the
Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 {“the Order”), issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of
report of the other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of the subsidiary
incorperated in India we give in the "Annexure-A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3(xxi) of
the Crder.

2. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

{a)  Woe have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

(0} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those
books and the reports of the other auditars.

{c) The Consclidated Balance Sheet, the Gonsolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Consolidated
Cash Flow Statement deait with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account
maintained for the purpese of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

{d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act. read with Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021

()  On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on
March 31, 2023 taken cn record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the
statutory auditors of its subsidiary company, none of the directors of the said Group companies is
disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the
Act.

(f)  With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Group and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure-B which is based on the
auditor's reports of the Company and its subsidiary. Qur report expresses an unmodified opinion on the
adeqguacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of those
companies.

g)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:
In our opinion and to the best of our infermation and according to the explanations given o us, the
remuneration paid / provided by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the
orovisions of section 197 ofthe Act. s
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{hy  with respect to the other matters to be in'c'luded. in the Audémr‘s Report in accordance with Ruie 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given o us:

(i}~ The Consolidated Financial Statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on its
Consclidated financial position of Group in respect of claims and demands which are being
contested as mentioned in Refer Note 41.

{i)  the Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable {osses.

(i) there were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding company and its subsidiary incorporated in india during the year
ended 31st, March, 2023,

fv)  a)

The respective managements of the Holding Company and its substidiary companies, which are
incorporated in india, whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, have
represented to us and fo the other auditors of such subsidiary respectively that, to the best of
their knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate)
have been advanced or foaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or in kind of funds) by the Company or any of such subsidiaries tc or in any other
person or entity, Including foreign entity (intermediaries), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly fend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company or
any of such subsidiary {Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company, which are
incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, have
representad to us and to the other auditors of such subsidiary raspectively, that, to the best of
their knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the agagregate)
have been received by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries from any other person
or entity, inciuding foreign entity (Funding Parties), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company or any of such subsidiary shali, directly or indirectly, lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the fike on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

¢} Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasunable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b},
contain any material misstatement.
V) a) The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.
b} The Board of Directors of the Company have not proposed any dividend for the year.
For ANIL SOQD & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.004985N
(ANIL SO0OD)
5-318, Greater Kailash-1 Partner

New Delhi -110 048
Dated. 02/08/2023

Membership No. 83939 ‘
PGSR AL M D T




Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the Consolidated Financial Statements of

Sunair Hotels Limited

(Referred to in paragraph 1, under ‘Report on Other L.egal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our Report of

even date)

In Terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of accounts
and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state

that:

There has been no such qualifications or adverse remarks by any auditor in their respective reports, hence the
aforesaid clause 3(xxi) is not applicable in the case of the Company,

S5-316, Greater Kailash-1
New Delhi -110 048
Dated: 02/09/2023

For ANIL SOOD & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.004885N

”‘ {_.:; } P
(ANIL S00D)
Partner
Membership No, 83939
UDIN: 2zl $iYe

oy T
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Opinion

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Sunair Hotels Limited (hereinafter
referred to as “the Holding Company”) as of and for the year ended 31 March 2023, we have audited the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company and such
companies incorporated in india under the Companies Act, 2013 which is its subsidiary company, as of that
date. In our opinion, the Holding Company and such companies incerporated in India which is its subsidiary
company have, in all material respects, adequate internat financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023, based
on the internat financial controls with reference fo consolidated financial statements criteriz established by such
companies considering the essential components of such internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financigi Contrels Over Financial Reporting issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of india
{the “Guidance Note).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controis
based on the internal control with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements based on criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (1CAIN.
These responsibiiities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence o
company's poficies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internat financial controls with reference to the
Consclidated Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Centrols over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internaf financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit invoives performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference fo consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. QOur audit of internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls withreference to consclidated financial statements. assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluatingthe design and operating effectiveness of the internal controls based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, inciuding the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors of the
refevant subsidiary company in terms of their report is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system with reference to consolidated financial statements.

g



Meaning of internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's inlernal financial control with reference o consolidated financial slalements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financiat reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1)
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reascnable assurance that fransactfions are recorded as
necessary o permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principies,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company, and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controlswith reference to consolidated financial statements |
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with
reference to consclidated financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control with reference to consclidated financial statements may become inadeguate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For ANIL SO0D & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.004985N

</
(ANIL SOOD)

$5-316, Greater Kailash-1 Partner
New Delhi -110 048

Dated: 02/0%/2023




SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
CIN: U74899D1.1977FPLC008495

REGD OFFICE: A-7, Ist FLOOR, GEETANJALI ENCLAVE, NEW DELHI - 110 017

e-mail: sunairhotels@gmail.com Website- www.hotelimetdethi.com

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2023

{Alt amounts in thousand of  unless otherwise stated)

AS AT AS AT
Sl Note 31103/2023 31/03/2022
No. Particulars No. Amount Amount
. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
{1) Shareholders' Funds
{(a) Share capital 3 3,87,500.00 3.97,500.00
(b} Reserves and surplus 4 15,54,285 45 18,51,785.45 14,65,603.03 18,63.003.03
{2} Non-current Liabilities
{a) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 5 1,58,169.02 1,39,798.75
{b) Other long-term labiities 6 90,415.00 91,131.00
{c) Long-term provisions 7 16,5652.10 2,65,136.12 15,877.31 2,46,807.06
(3} Current Liabhilities
(a) Trade payables 8 24,823.83 15,170.90
{(b) Other Current Liabilities 9 97,110.64 83,632.46
(¢) Short-term provisions 10 13,418.40 1,35,352.97 8,561.82 1,07,365.18
TOTAL 23,52.274.53 22.17175.28
. ASSETS
(1) Non-current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Eguipment
(i} Tangible assets 11 13,73,778.01 13,39,102.94
{b} Non-current investments 12 6,10,266.18 47291962
Deferred Tax Asset {net) 13 446.45 579.92
{c) Leng-term loans and advances 14 1,21,735.28 1,32,3156.34
{d) Other non-current assets 15 12,928.36 7,45 376.27 15,526 38 6,21,341.25
(2) Current Assets
(a) Inventories 18 92,709.22 1,18,300.08
(b} Trade receivables 17 31,788.68 16,203.51
{c) Cash and bank halances 18 44 270,79 35,444.89
{d) Shori-term loans and advances 19 53,566.65 78,240.50
{e) Other current assets 20 10,784.91 2,33,120.25 7.841.60 2,58,731.08
TOTAL 23,52,274.53 22,17.175.28
Significant Accounting Policies 2 0 0
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
AUDITORS' REPORT o
As per our report of even date T i
For ANIL SOOD & ASSOCIATES (S.P.GUPTA) (KAVEEN GUPTA)
Chartered Accountants Chairman Executive Director
Firm Regn. No.004985N (DIN-00204504) (DIN-00204605)
(ANIL. SOOD) Sod i) e
Partner {VIPIN JAIN) (NEMHA RAJPUT)
Company Secretary

Place-New Dethi Membershlp No 83939 Chief Financiat Officer

Dated: 02/09/2023 UDIN ;a0 l0 v M.No.-FCS 8984

GV
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(M No. A-26118)



SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
CIN: U74899DL1977PLC0O08495
REGD OFFICE: A-7, Ist FLLOOR, GEETANJALI ENCLAVE, NEW DELHI - 110 017
Webhsite- www.hoteimetdelhi.com

e-mail: sunairhotels@gmail.com

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023

21N Note 31/03/2023 310312022
No Particulars No. Amount Amount
i, Revenue
(&) Income from operations 21 6,72,620.05 302,924 17
(b} Other Income 22 32,656.96 26,035.88
1. Total Revenue 7.056,177.02 3,28,060.05
{tl. Expenses
{a) Cost of materials consumed 23 38,543.38 13,735.36
(b} Purchase of Stock 24 14,353.70 15,102.43
{c) Change in inventary 25 27,591.51 -6,481.86
(d) Cost of utilities and hospitality services 26 903.41 481.65
{e) Employee benefit expenses 27 93,434.41 50,757.34
(fi Other expenses 28 3,65,732.70 2,07.132.99
(g} Finance costs 29 59.3C 146.88
{h) Depreciation and amortization expenses 30 35,4584.95 36,101.68
{iy Expendiure on CSR Activity 3% 806.20 1,683.30
IV. Total Expenses 5,66,879.55 TUYYE 86077
V. Profit/ {loss) before exceptional item and tax {ll - IV) 1,38,297 .47 W‘IS 290.28
Less : Exceptional item -
VL. Profit/ (Joss) before tax (IV - V) 1,38,297.47 1?2"9""0“2’8
Vil. Tax expense/{saving)
{a} Current tax 17,909.63 -
{b) Deferred tax 18,503.77 14,011.25
{c) Earlier Years Taxes 2477 36,438.17 93.12 14,104.37
VIl Profit / (ioss) for the year (V - V1) 1,01,859.3C -814.08
IX. Prior period adjustments - o
X. Profit{ {loss) transferred to Balance Sheet (VI - VI 1,01,859.30 -814.08
Xl Earnings per equity share (EPS) 32
(@) Basic 2.56 {0.02)
{(b) Diluted 2.56 (0.02)
Significant Accounting Policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
AUDITORS' REPORT ol
As per our report of even date o e
For ANIL SO0D & ASSOCIATES {S P.GUPTA) (KAVEEN GUPTA)
Chartered Accountants Chairman Executive Director

Place-New Dethi
Daled: 02/09/2023

{All amounts in thousand of ¥, unless otherwise stated)

Firm Regn. No.004985N

(ANIL SO0D)
RPariner

Membershlp No. 83939

UDIN @ 25083 eiAs

(AT
LA

(DIN-00204504)

(VIPIN JAIN)

(DIN-00204605)

~
i

(NEMA RAJPUT)

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

ihe MNo-FCS 8984

{M No. A-26116)



REGD OFFICE: A-7, Ist FLOOR, GEETANJALI ENCLAVE, NEW DELHI - 110 017

e-mail: sunairhotels@gmail.com Website- www.hotelmetdelhi.com

SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
CIN: U74899DL1977PLCO008495

Sl

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023
{All amounts in thousand of ¥, unless otherwise stafed)

No. Particulars
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit /{lass) before tax and after prior period expenses

A.

Adjustments for:

- Inferest Income
- Dividend Received

- Depreciation

- Profit (Loss) on sale of Asseis

- Interest Expense

Operating (loss) before working capital changes
Movement in working capital;

-{Increase) / Decrease in inventories

-(Increase} / Decrease in Debtors

-{Increase) / Decrease in Short Term Loans & Advances
<{Increase) / Decrease in Other Current assets
~(Increase) / Decrease in Other Non Current assets
-(Increase) / Decrease in Long-term ioans and advances
-Increase / (Decrease) in Trade payables

-Increase / {Decrease) in Other long-term liabilities
-Increase / {Decrease) in Long-term provisicns
-Increase / {Decrease) in Sundry Liabilities

-Increase / (Decrease) in Other Provisions

Cash (used in) operations

Direct taxes (paid)

Net cash (used in) operating activities (A)

CASH FLLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Investments
Purchase of Fixed Assets

Sale of Assels

Dividend received

Net cash (used in) investing activities {B)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Interest Income

Increase / {Repayment) of Term Loan
Net cash from financing activities (C)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {(A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (D)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (E}
Net increase / {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (E-D)

COMPONENTS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash in Hand

FDRs with Banks

Balances with Banks

310312023 31/03/2022
Amount Amount

1,25,185.82 13.069.91
-42 14 -145 58

-2.30 -87 43
35,454 85 36,10168
-963.51 -740.84
87.36

1,568,642 81 48,285 08
25,590.86 -13,892 .45
-15,584.71 -10,482.90
25 373.95 -5,038.80
-2.,943.31 -2,523.90
2,598.02 2178
10,580.06 6.,887.53
9.653.02 8,489.30
-716.00 250.00
67479 79.50
13,.478.18 2,319.70

4 8586 .58 2,418.08
2,33.204.25 36,822.91
17,908.63 -93 11
2.,15,284.62 36,729.80
-1,37,346.57 -18,479.76
-70,371.83 -23.774 51
1,205.23 2.892.04
2.30 87 43
-2,06,510.86 -38,274.79
42.14 145 59

- -87.36

42.14 58.24
8.825.90 -2,486.75
35,444,389 37.831.64
44.270.79 35,444 89
8,825.90 -2,486.75

31/03/2023 3110312022

3,216.28 3,435 47

- 831.29
41,054.49 31,178 14
44,270.79 35,444.89




SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
CIN: U74899DL.1977PLC008495

REGD OFFICE: A-7, Ist FLOOR, GEETANJALI ENCLAVE, NEW DELHI - 110 017
) e-mail: sunairhotels@gmail.com

Website- www.hotelmetdelhi.com

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023
{All amounts in thousand of ¥_unless otherwise stated)

1R 31/03/2023 31/03/2022
No. Particulars Amotint Amount
Significant Accounting Policies: Note No, 2 0 (0)
AUDITORS' REPORT e |
As per our report of even date By e
For ANIL SO0D & ASSOCIATES {(S5.P.GUPTA) (KAVEEN GUPTA}
Chartered Accountants Chairman Executive Director
Firm Regn. No.004985N (3IN-00204504) (DIN-00204605)
and . Ted { - o 1:"3]5 ff R
(ANILJSCI)DD) (VIF;iN‘JAIN) (NEHA RAJPUT)
Flace-New Delhi Partner Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Dated: 02/09/2023 Membership No. 8393g

M.No.-FCS 8984 (M. No. A-26116)



SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
REGD OFFICE: A-7, Ist FLOOR, GEETANJALI ENCLAVE, NEW DELHI - 110 017

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO ACCOUNTS
FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023

1. ACCOUNTING CONVENTIONS
a) The Consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP) to comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Companies {Accounting Standards)
Rules 2021 and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the 2013 Act") as applicable,

b} The Consolidated financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis under the historica! cost
convention basis. The accounting policies adopted in preparation of the financial statements are
consistent with those followed in the previous year.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A. Use of Estimates ;
The preparation of Consolidated financial statements requires estimates and assumptions to be made that
affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the reported
amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Difference between the actua! results and
eslimates are recognised in the period in which the resuls are known / materialised.

B. Tangible Property, Plant and Equipment:
a) Own Property, Plant and Equipment:

() Tangible Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost. Cost includes amounts added on
revaluation, less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. All costs, including
expenditures and levies directly attributable to bringing the assets to their working condition for the
intended use. Net charges on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from exchange
rate variations attributable to the Property, Plant and Equipment are capitalised.

(i) Land is stated at original cost of acquisition.

(i) Capital work-in-progress is stated at amount spent upto the date of Balance Sheet.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of Property, Plant and Equipments are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets, and are
recoghized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

b) Leased Assets:
(i} Operating Leases: Rentals are expensed with reference to lease terms and other considerations.
(i} Finance Leases; The lower of the fair value of the assets and present value of the minimum lease
rentals is capitalised as Property, Plant and Equipments with corresponding amount shown as
lease liabitity. The principal component in the lease rental is adjusted against the lease liability and
the interest component is charged to the statement of profit and loss.

(#) However, rentals referred to in (i) or (i) above and the interest component referred to in (i) above
pertaining to the period upto the date of commissioning of the asseis are capitalized.

(iv) All assets given on finance lease are shown as receivables at an amount equal to net investment
in the lease. Initial direct costs in respect of lease are expensed in the year in which such costs
are incurred. Income from lease assets is accounted by appiying the interest rate implicit in the
lease to the net investment.

C. Intangible Assets & Amortisation;
Intangible Assets are recognised as per the criteria specified in Accounting Standard (AS-26) on
"Intangible Asseis" and are amartised over the useful life of the underlying assets as follows:

a) Leasehold land: over the period of lease.

by Lump sum fees for technical know-how: over a pericd of six years in case of foreign technology and
three years in case of indigenous technology. W%
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Gains or losses arising from derecognition of Property, Plant and Equipments are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets, and are recognized
in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

. Depreciation and amortization:

a) Depreciation on tangible Property, Plant and Eguipments is calculated on Straight Line Method
pursuant to the requirements of Schedule-ll of the Companies Act, 2013 with effect from April 01,
204, by using the rates prescribed therein over the estimated usefut lives of the Property, Plant and
Eguipments as specified in Part 'C', while fixing the residual vaiues of the Property, Plant and
Eguipments at 5% of their original cost, in respect of assets which are used for full period in the year
and on prorata basis for assets acquired & put to use during the year.

b) Intangible Property. Plant and Equipments are amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful economic life in respect of assets which are used for full period in the year, and on prorata basis
for assets acquired / recognized and put to use during the year. If there is a significant change from
previous estimates in the expected pattern of economic benefits from the asset, the amortization
period and method are changed accordingly to refiect the changed pattern. However, no amortization
expense is provided on intangible assets derecognized during the year.

Impairment of Tangible and Intangible Assets:

An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of assets exceeds its recoverable value, An
impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit and ioss in the year in which an asset is identified as
impaired. The impairment loss recognized in prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a
change in the estimate of recoverable amount.

Borrowing Costs :
Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised
as part of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that takes necessarily substantial period of
time to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to revenue in the period in
which they are incurred.

. Valuation of Investment:

a) Trade investments are the investments made to enhance the Company's business interests.
Investments are either classified as current or long-term based on Management's intention at the time
of purchase.

by Current investments are carried at the lower of cost and fair market vaiue of each investment
individually.

c) Long term investments are carried at cost less provisions recorded to recognize any diminution, other
than temporary, in the carrying value of each investment.

d) Cost for overseas investments comprises the Indian Rupee value of the consideration paid for the
investment translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of invesiment.

. Investment Property:

An investment in land or building, which is not intended to be occupied substantially for use by, or in the
operations of, the Company, is classified as an investment property. Investment properties are stated at
cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation on building component of investment property is calculated on a Siraight Line Method basis
using the rates and useful lives prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of such
investment properties which are used for full period in the year, and on prorata basis for assets acquired
and put to use during the year. However, no depreciation is provided on the investment properties sold
during the year, but on disposal, the difference between its carrying amount and the net disposal proceeds
is charged or credited to the statement of profit and loss.

Valuation of lnventory;

inventories are stated at lower of cost or net realisable value wherever applicable. Cost is determined on
. . AR

weighted average hasis. '




3
J. Revenue Recognition:
All incomes and expenses are accounted for on accrual and prudent basis. Revenue in respect of
insurance / other claims, interest, commission, etc. is recognised only when it is reasonably certain that
the ullimale collection will be made., Expenses incurred for which benefit will acerue in the subsequent
years are declared in the balance sheet as deferred revenue expenses and amortised over the period in
which the benefit is expected to accrue.

K. Foreign Currency Transactions:

a) in accordance with the Accounting Standard AS-11 on "Effects of changes in foreign exchange rate”
as prescribed by the ICAI, year-end balance of foreign currency fransactions is translated at the year-
end rates and the corresponding effect is given in the respective accounts. Transactions denominated
in foreign currency are recorded at exchange rate prevailing at the time of transaction. However.
transactions completed during the year are adjusted on actual hasis.

b) In case of items which are covered by forward exchange contracts, the difference between the year
end rate and rate on the date of the contract is recognized as exchange difference and the premium
paid on forward contracts is recognized over the life of the coniract,

¢} Non-monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost.

d) Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on seftlement or on translation is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss except in cases where they relate to acquisition of
Property, Plant and Equipments, in which case they are adjusted to the carrying cost of such assets.

e) Difference in outstanding value of term loan in foreign currency as at the year end vis-a-vis the date of
obtaining lcan is recorded in the books of account in a separate account calted 'Exchange Difference
(FC Loan) Account to be approprited at the conclusion of the said term loan.

f) Difference in foreign exchange forward contracts is recognised as income / loss in the books of
account by spreading the same proportionately over the effective life of the contract,

L. Empioyee Benefits ;

a) All short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for services rendered by the
employees during the year are recognised, at the undiscounted amount, as liability {accrued expense),
after deducting any amount already paid. Where the amount already paid exceeds the undiscounted
amount of the benefits, such excess is recognised as an asset (prepaid expense).

b) Company's contribution to Provident Fund, which is a defined contribution plan, is charged to the
statement of profit and loss.

¢) Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial vaiuation
on projected uni{ credit method made at the end of each financial year.

d) Long term compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation. The actuarial
valuation is done as per projected unit method.

&) Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred.

f} Termination benefits are recognised as a liability immediately on incurrence of any such obligation.

M. Provision for Current and Deferred Tax :
Provision for current tax is made after taking into consideration benefits admissible under the provisions of
the Income Tax Act, 1961. Deferred tax resulting from 'timing differences' between taxable and
accounting income is accounted for using the tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted
as on the balance sheet date. The deferred tax asset is recognised and carried forward only to the extent
that there is a virtual certainty that the asset will be realised in future.

N. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets :

a) Provisions are recognised for liabiities that can only be measured by using a substantial degree of
estimation, if;
(i} the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event,
(it a probable ouiflow of rescurces is expected fo settle the obligation, and
(i} the amount of obligation can reliably be estimated.
Reimbursement expected in respect of expenditure required to settle a provision is recognised only
when it is virtually certain that the reimbur\'s)‘efment wilf ultimately be received.




by Contingent Liability is disclosed in case of:
(i} a present obligalion arising on past events, when it is not probable that an outtiow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation,
(ii) a present obligation, when no reliabie estimate is possible, and
(i) a possible obliation arising from past events, where the probability of outfiow of resources is not
remote.
¢} Contingent Assets are neither recognised nor disclosed.
d) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

. Prior Period ltems :
Prior Period items are disclosed separately in the statement of profit and loss for the year, keeping in view
their materiality and the past method of accounting.

Exceptional and Extra-ordinary ltems:
Exceptional and extra-ordinary items of the Company during the period are disclosed separately in the
statement cf profit and loss for the year, as part of net profit.

=

ey



SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023 (Contd..
(Al anrounts in thousand of T, unless otherwise stated)

3. SHARE CAPITAL

31/03/2023 31/03/2022
Number Amount Number Amount
Authorised and issued share capital:
Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 4.00,00,000 4.00,000.00 4,00,00,000 4.00,000.00

Subscribed and paid-up share capital:

Eguity shares of Rs, 10/- each fully paid-up 3,97,50.000 3,97,500.00 3,97,50.000 3,97 500.00
Total 3,97,50,000 3,87,500.00 3,97 .50,000 3.97.500.00

Recongiliation of the equity shares outsianding at the beginning and af the end of the reporting period:
31/03/2023 31/03/2022
Number Amount Number Amount

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 3,97,50,000 3,97,500.00 3,97,50,000 3,87,500.00
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 3,97,50,000 3,97,560.00  3,97.50,000 3,87,500.00

Terms [ rights attached to equity shares:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/ per share. Each holder of
equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees.
The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing
Annual General Meeting.

During the year ended 31st March, 2023 the amount of per share dividend recognized as distributions to equity
shareholders was Rs. Nil (PY Rs. Nil).

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entifled to receive remaining
assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion fo the
number of equity shares held by the shareholders,

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the Company:

as on date 31/03/2022
No. of No. of
Shares % of Shares % of
held Holding held Holding
Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid-up
a. Columbia Trading Co. Lid. 22.80.176 5.73% 22,800,178 5.73%
h. Kaveen Gupta 32,91,000 8.28% 32,411,600 8.15%
c. S.P.Gupta §2,59,790 23.30% 61,400,020 15.45%
d. Star Light Credit India Ltd. 42 57 500 10.71% 42,57,500 10.71%
e. Vipul Gupta 29,91,000 7.53% 29,16,000 7.34%
f. VLS Finance Limited* 95,94, 824 24 14% 95,094,824 24.14%
(* Under dispute)
Details of shares held by promoters in the Company
as on date 31st March, 2022
Shares % of Shares % of
Name of the shareholder held Holding held Holdin
Ananya Gupla & Kaveen Gupta 5,30,006 1.34% 4.80,000 1.21%
Mrs. Babita Gupta 17.80,000 4 48% 17.30,000 4 35%

Mr. Kaveen Gupta . 32,981,000 8.28% 32,41,000 8.15%



Kaveen Gupta {(HUF)

Mrs. Monisha Gupta

Mr. S.P. Gupta

Mrs. Sheel Gupta

S.P. Gupta (HUP)

Mr. S.P. Gupta & Sheel Gupta
Mr. Vipul Gupta

Columbia Trading Co. Lid.

4,65,000
14,715,000
92,59,790
17,08 150
16,31.600

5,22,600
29.81,000
22,80,176

117%
3.56%
23.30%
4.29%
4.10%
1.32%
7.53%
5.73%

4,65,000
13.40,000
51,40,020
16,17.,500
16,31,600

5,22,600
29,116,000
22,80,176

1.17%
3.37%
15.45%
4.07%
4. 10%
1.32%
7.34%
573%



SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARGH, 2023 (Contd g
(All amounts in thousand of ¥, unless otherwise stated)

4. RESERVES & SURPLUS

A. Capital Reserves

Opening Balance
Closing Balance (A)

B. Other Reserves
General Reserve

Opening Balance
Closing Balance (B)

C. Surplus / (deficit) in the statement of profit and loss

Opening Balance

Add . Net Profit / (Net Loss) for the current year

Amourt available for Appropriations

lLess: Appropriations
Closing Balance {C)

Total (A+B+C)

5. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)

31/03/2023 31/03/2022
Amount Amount

80,000.00 80,000.00
80,000.00 80,000.00
30.00 30.00
30.00 30.00
13,85,473.03 13,86,507 49
1,01,855.30 -814.08
14.87,332.33 13.85,693.41
13,076 88 220.38
14.74,255.45 138547303
15,564,285 .45 14,65,503.03

I line: with the method recommended by the Accounting Standard AS-22 on "Acounting for Taxas an Income”
components of deferred tax assets and #iabilities as on 1st April, 2022 and 31st March, 2023 are given as under;

A. Deferred Tax Assets
a. Gratuity Provision
b. Prov. For Leave Encashment
c
d

Prov. For Bonus (Good work reward)
Unabsored Depreciation
e. Unabsored Business l.osses

Total (A)

B. Deferred Tax Liabilities
a. Depreciation

Total (B)

01/04/2022 For the Year Reversing 31/03/2023
4,895.67 1,054 .61 - 5095028
1,117.15 414 54 29115 1.240.54

369.94 975.03 50583 839.34
9,132.01 - 9,132.01 -
7,980.29 - - 7.,989.29

23,504.06 2,444 17 992879 16,019.44
1,63,302.81 10,885.66 - 1.74,188.46
1,63,302.81 10,885.66 - 1,74,188.46
1,39,798.75 8,441.48 -8 82879 1,58,169.02

Net Deferred Tax Liabilities {B-A)

Peferred tax asset has been recognised and carried forward since there is a reasonable certainty that sufficient

future taxable income shall be available against which the same can be realised.

6. QTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES

Others

Security Deposit
a. Security Deposits

31/03/2023 31/03/2022
Amount Amount
90.415.00 $1,131.00
90,415.00 91,131.00




SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023 (Conid...)
(All amounts in thousand of & unfess otherwise stated)

7. LONG TERM PROVISIONS

31/03/2023 318312022
Provision for Employee Benefits Amount Amount
a. Gratuity 12,829.62 12,291.68
b. Leave Encashment (Hotel) 3,722 48 3,585.63
16,552.10 15,877.31
8. TRADE PAYABLES
Particulars 31/03/2023 31/03/2022
Amount Amount
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - 34.85
(refer note below)
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 24,823.93 15,136.05
small enterprises (refer note 41)
24,823.93 15,170.90
Particulars{QOutstanding from invoice date 31/03/2023 3110372022
Amount Amount
" (i) MSME
Less than 1 year - 34.85
1-2 years - -
2-3 years - -
More than 3 years - -
- 34.85
{iiy Others
Less than 1 year 24 726.71 14,896 85
1.2 years 36.31 5.0C
2-3 years - 234 .20
More than 3 years 60.91 -
24,823.93 15,136.05
{ii} Bisputed dues-MSME
Less than 1 year - -
1-2 years - -
Z2-3 years - -
More than 3 years - -
{iv) Disputed dues-Others
Less than 1 year - -
1-2 years - -
2-3 years - -
More than 3 years - -
24,823.93 __15,170.90

(This space has beeir lnteationally fff blank)



SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023 (Contd...)
{Afl amounts in thousand of T, unless otherwise stated)

9. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

31/03/2023 31/03/2022
Amount Amount
a. Duties & Taxes Payables 8,798.65 5,205.23
h. Advance Sub-License fee 81,809.64 73,536.76
c. Other Payables 6,502.35 4.890.47
Total 97.110.64 83,632 .48
10. SHORT TERM PROVISIONS
31/03/2023 31/03/2022
Amount Amount
A. Provision for Employee Benefits
a. Salary & Wages Payable 5,526.73 3,951.45
b. LTA payable - 13.71
c. Goocd-work Reward payable 3,348.31 1,736.37
e. Provision for Gratuity 3.671.21 2.2895.02
f. Provision for Leave Encashment 872,16 13,418 4G 565.28 8,561.82

Total 13,418.40 8.5661.82

(This space bas been futentionalfy &f? blanks)
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SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARGH, 2023 (Contd...)
{All arnounts in thousand of ¥ unless otherwise stated)

13. DEFERRED TAX ASSET (NET}
[n ling with the method recommended by the Accounting Standard AS-22 on "Acounting for Taxes on
Income" components of deferred tax assets and liabilities as on 1st April, 2022 and 31st March, 2023 are
given as under:

01/04/2022 For the Year Reversing 31/03/2023

A Deferred Tax Assets

a. Depreciation 48.32 16.00 - 64.32
h. Business Loss cff 42177 - 365.68 56.08
c. Unabsorbed Depreciation off 108.87 216.18 -

Total (A} 578.95 23218 365.68

B. Deferred Tax Liabilities
a. Depreciation - . .

Total {B) - - - -

Net Deferred Tax Asset (A-B) 579.95 -232.18 -365.68 446.45

Deferred tax asset has been recognised and carried forward since there is a reasonable ceriainty that
sufficient future taxable income shall be available against which the same can be realised.

14. LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

31103/2023 31/03/2022

Amount Amount

A. Capital Advances

Unsecured, considered good

a. Greater Noida Industrial Development Authority 550.00 550.00

Total {A} 550.00 550.00

B. Other Loans & Advances

Unsecured, considered good

a. Income Tax Refundable 2512712 22,707 18

b. Cash Seized by |.T. Department 3,000.00 3,000.00

c. Other Advances 93,058.16  1,06,058.16

Total {(B) 1,21,185.28  1,31,765.34

Total (A+C) 1,21,735.28 1,32,315.34
Details of loans & advances to directors or other officers, etc.
Other Officers of the Company

Total -

(¥ iis spuiwe has oen fnrentianally leff blank



SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023 (Contd...)

{All amounts jn thousand of & unless otherwise stated)

15. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

31/03/2023 31/03/2022
A. Security Deposits Amount Amount
Unsecured, considered good
a. Security deposit to service providers 2,406.05 2.406.05
b, Security deposit for let-cut properties 3,120.00 3,120.00
¢. Security deposit with Government Agencies for utilities 7,227.31 7.,227.31
B. Others
a. Commitment Charges (Recoverable) - 2.043.86
b. Financial Charges (Recoverable) - 554.16
c. Staff Advance 175.00 175.00
Total 12,928.36 15,526 37
16. INVENTORIES
31/03/2023 31/03/2022
Amount Amount
A. Raw Materials & Components (Valued at cosf)
Food 1,468.27 702.29
Beverage 3,065.89 3.642.80
Tobacco - -
QOperating Equipments 68,015.16 66,201.58
72,547.32 70,546.67
B. Stock-in-trade {Valued at Lower of Cost & NRV)
Debt Funds 20,161.80 47,753 41
20.161.90 4775341
Total (A) 02,709.22  1,18,300.08

(Vhis space has beew Intontionally off hiank}




SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023 (Contd.,.!

(Al amounts in thousand of & unless otherwise stated)

17. TRADE RECEIVABLES

a} Undisputed trade receivables

- considered good

- which have significant increase in credit risk
- which are credit impaired

b) Disputed trade receivables

- cansidered good

- which have significant increase in credit risk
- which are credit impaired

Below table represents the trade receivables ageing:
Particulars

{i) Undisputed trade receivables - considered good
LLess than 6 months
6 months - 1 year
1-2 years
2-3 years
More than 3 years

(i} Undisputed trade receivables - considered doubtful
Less than 6 months
6 months - 1 year
1-2 years
2-3 years
More than 3 years

31/03/2023 314/03/2022
Amount Amount

31,788.68 16,203.94
31788068 16,20§§i
30,531.03 16,148.60
1,257.85 817
- 1.02
- 4515
31,788.68 18,203.94
31,788.68 16,203.94

No frade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or

jointly with any other person,

(This space has been intentionally lefl blank)



SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023 (Cc

(All amounts in thousand of &, unless otherwise stated)

18. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

A. Cash and cash equivalents

a. Balances with banks
Current Account with Scheduded Banks
There are no Earmarked Balances, Margin Money, Security
against borrowings, Guarantees and Other Commitments
included in the balances above (PY N#)

Cheques, drafts on hand
Cash on hand (including Imprest)
Total{A)
B. Other bank balances
a. Barnk deposits with original maturity of more than 12
months but within 12 months from balance sheet date

b. Bank deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months
but less than 12 months
Total(B)

Total (A+B)

19. SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
unsecured, considered good

Other |oans & Advances

A. Advance License Fees (NDMC) (Prepaid)

B. Advance (Staff & Consultants)

C. Prepaid Expenses (Hotel) (Licence fee L3 & L5)
D. Advance for assets

Details of loans & advances to directors or other officers, etc. : Nil. (P.Y. NiL)

20. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

A. Other Taxes Recoverable
i. GST input
ii. Export incentive

(Thix apace bas boen fnteittianally (o} bk )
5.9

31/03/2023 31/03/2022
Amount Amount
41,054.49 31,178.14
3,218.28 343547
44.270.79 34,613.60
- 831.29
- 831.29
44 ,270.79 35,444 89
31/03/2023 31/03/2022
Amount Amount
17,172.40 16,354.66
815.00 805.00
10,113.95 3,221.59
25465.30 58,559.36
53,566.65 78,84062
31/03/2023 31/03/2022
Amount Amount
10,784 .91 391018
10,784.91 /84165




SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023 (Contd...})

{All amounts in thousand of €, unless otherwise stated)

21. INCONME FRONM OPERATIONS

31/03/2023 31/03/2022
Amount Amount Amount Amount
A. Sale of Products
Debf Funds 45,183.52 5.678.40
8. Sale of Services
Facilities and Services Charges for Hotel Complex
Rooms 4,16,303.32 1,61,671.22
Food & Beverage
Food 76,741.73 28,206.28
Beverage 17.,82G.66 5671.97
Tobacco 0.00 5.04
Banguet Fees 5618.26 806.57
Other Operating Departments 10,099.07 863.49
Services Charges Recelved 1,329.81 2.162.95
Sub License Fees 99,414.69 6,27, 426.54 97,859.26 2.97 24577
Income from Operations (Gross) 6,72,620.05 3,02.82417
l.ess: Excise Duty - -
Income from Operations (Net) 67,26,20,054 30,29,24 171
22. OTHER INCOME
A. Interest from Bank Deposits 42.14 14561
B. Scrap sale 361.52 54 24
C. Income From Travel Desk 600.00 -
D. Guest Transport Charges & Tour 1,651.00 217,94
£. Capital Gain on Sale of Mutuat Funds 14,588.32 9,673.89
F. Dividends received on share / Mutual Funds 2.30 87.43
G. Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets 0963.51 740.84
H. Gain / (Loss) on Foreign Exchange Curr. Fluctuation 17.07 5.40
I, Miscellaneous Income 13,729.74 9,964.51
J. Sale of Duty Credit - 3,931.48
K. Interest on Income tax refund B801.37 82054
L. Other Charges Recovered - 393499
Totai 32,556.96 26,035.88
23. COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
Materials Consumed
Inventory at the beginning of the year 4,345.09 4 544 94
Add ; Purchases 38,730.45 13,535.52
43,075.54 18,080 45
Less: Inventory at the end of the year 4,532.16 4,345.09
Cost of Raw Materiai Consumed 38,543.38 13,735.36
Detaiis of Materials Consumed
A. Food 35,052.14 12,299.28
B. Beverages 3.491.24 1,433.75
C. Tabacco - 2.33
38,543.38 13,735.36

* Cost of operating equipments consumed is directly
booked as an expense under its relevant expenditure

head. WL



SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023 (Contd...)
{All amounts in thousand of Z_uniess otherwise stated)

24, PURCHASE OF STOCK-IN-TRADE

31-03-2023 31-03-2022
Amount Amount
Debt Funds 14,353.70 15,102.43
14,353.70 TT15,102.43

25. (INCREASE) / DECREASE |N INVENTORIES OF TRADED GOODS
31-03.2023 31-03-2022  (Increase)/

Amount Amount Decrease

Inventories at the end of the year 31-03-2023
Debts Funds 20,161.9¢ 47 753.41 27,591.51
20,161.90 47,753.41 27 591 51

Inventories at the heginning of the year 31-03-2022
Debts Funds 47,753 41 38,271.55 -9.481 86
47,753 .41 38,271.55 -9.481 86

increase / (Decrease) in Inventories -27,581.51 2,481.86 -37.073.38

(e spetce e doew Intentioiatly kit blant)
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26. COSY OF UTILITIES ANB HOSPITALITY SERVICES

31/03/2023 31/03/2022
Amount Amount
A. Laundry Cost 773.94 491.65
B. Health Club 129.47 -
903.41 49165
27. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
3110372023 31/03/2022
Amount Amount Amount Amount
A. Salaries, wages and bonus 73,738.46 37.503.36
B. Directors Remuneration 5,400.00 6.,900.00
C. Contributions to:
a. Provident Fund 4,161.47 2.309.73
b. ESI 690,31 439.57
c. Other Funds 1,443 55 6,295.33 618.40 3,367.70
D. Gratuity Fund Contributions 3,621.59 1,380.83
E. Staff Welfare Expenses 4,250.63 1,512.85
F. Exgratia Paid 128.40 02.50

93,434.41 50,757.34

(Thix spece bets been intentionalfy &} blank)
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28. OTHER EXPENSES

31/03/2023
Amount Amount
a. Power & Fuel 67.556.15
b. Rent 2,486.00
c. Repairs & Maintenance
i. Plant & Machinery 15,590.81
ii. Buildings 27,394.16
jiii. Others 34,768.27 77.753.24
d. Insurance 2,621.38
e. Advertising & Sales Promotion 1,155.42
£, Communication Cost 551.27
g. Printing & Stationery 2.813.59
h. Legal & Professional Fees 85,378.30
i. Payment to Auditors 546.43
I.  Licence fee 26,690.33
k. Internet Expense 1,024.20
. Bangue! Expenses 2,853.11
m. Guest Supply & Relation Expenses 8,433.56
n. Llinen 980.24
0. Flowers & Decoration 36.18
p. Laundry & Dry Cleaning 193.48
g. WUniform 339.88
r.  Guest Supplies 9,418.83
s.  Commission on Rooms 31,724 .41
t.  Cleaning Supply 1,318.14
v. Music & Entertainment 420.60
w.  Kitchen Utensils 28.67
x. Local Transportation & Vehicle Maintenance 2,357.04
y. Guests Entertainment & Business Prometion 766.82
z.  Credit Card Charges 1,898.32
aa. Security Services 3,757.66
ab. 3TT Paid -
ac. AGM & Conference Charges 13.64
ad. Membership Fees & Subscription 40.55
ae. Misc Expenses 3,134.28
af. Director Traveling 8,243.66
ag. RO.C Fee 123.05
ag. Manpower Quisourced 10,751.88
ah, Sitling Fees -
ai. Postage/Courier/Telegram 50.57
aj. Rate & Taxes 166.31
Total 3,65,732.70
Details of Payment to Auditors
As Auditor:
- Audit Fee 325.00
- Tax Audit Fee 78.65
Total 403.65

31/03/2022

Amount

15,124.30
13,592.46

10,200.83

Amount
4153813
3,132.00

38,917.58
2,369.48
181.67
496.48
887.14
56,148.27
568.21
22,952.28
880.42
779.55
4.5650.53
24828
5.00
122.41
B87.75
3.807.70
16,613.37
73C.40
312.50
0.75
600.562
21715
715.04
3,389.10
13.63
13.15
64.30
509.57
2,822.33
3772
2.428.17
170.00
52.08
778.35

2,07,132.99
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29. FINANCE COST

a. Interest on Taxes
b, Bank Charges
Total

30. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSES

Depreciation on Assets
Total

31/03/2023
Amount

59.30
59.30

31/03/2023
Amount
35,454 95
35,454 .95

31. DETAILS OF EXPENDITURE ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Year Ended March 31,

3110312022
Amount

87.36

5953

146.88

31/03/2022
Amount
36,101.68

~36,101.68

Year Ended March 31,

2023 2022
{a} Gross Amount reguired to be spent by the
company during the year 806.13 1,683.30
808.13 1,683.30
Yet to be Yet to be
{b) Amount spent during the year on: In Cash paid incash InCash paidincash
(iy On purposes other than (i) above
- Contribution for Medical Relief 1o poor
- Abhinandan Jan Kalyan Society 806.20 1,683.30
Total (A): 806.20 - 1,683.30 -
(c) Contribution paid to trust controlled by the related party
~N.A N.A - N.A -
Total (B): - - - -
Total (A+B): 806.20 - 1,683.30

(Vhes space her been intestionally fefl hlank

[RERS
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32. EARNING PER SHARE (EPS)

31032023 31/03/2022

Amount Amount
Total operations for the year
Prefit / {oss) after tax 1,01,859.30 -814.08
Less: Dividends & dividend tax on other than equity shares - -
Net profit / {loss) for caiculation of Basic EPS 1.01,859.30 1408
Net profit as above 1.01,859.30 814 08
Add : Dividends & dividend tax on other than equity shares - -
Add : Adjustments for the effects of dilutive potential equity shares - -
Net profit / (foss) for calcufation of Diluted EPS 1,01,850.30 81408
Weighted average number of equity shares in calcufating Basic EPS 3,97,50,000 3,97,50,000

Effect of dilution:
Convertible preference shares {numbers) - -
Convertible bonds (numbers) -
Stock option granted under ESOP -
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating Diluted 3,97 50,000

(a) Basic 2.562 (0.02)
(by Diluted 2.562 (0.02)

33. Gratuity & Other Post-empioyment Benefits
The Company does not have a defined benefit gratuity plan. However, every employee who has completed five years or
more of service gets gratuity on departure at 15 days' salary (last drawn basic salary) for each completed year of
service or part thereof in excess of six months on projected unit method.

The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognised in the profit and foss account and
amounts recognized in the balance sheet.

. Gratuity
31/03/2023 31/03/2022
1. Change in present value of obligation Amount Amount
a) Present value of cbligation as at the beginning of the period 14,586.70 14,390.81
h) Acquisition adjustment - -
c) Interest cost 1,042.21 963.50
d) Past service cost ~ -

&) Current service cost 1,411.00 1,279.00
f) Curtailment cost / (Credit) - -

g Settelement cost / {Credit) -

hy Benefit paid - .

£} Actuarial (gain) / L.oss on obligation -539.08 -2,046.61
i} Present value of obligation as at the end of the period 16,500.83 14,586.70

2. Changes in fair value of plan assets
a) Fair vaiue of plan assets at the beginning of the period
by Acquisition adjustment
<) Expected return on plan assetis -
d) Contribution -
&) Benefits paid
i Actuarial gain / {{oss) on plan assets
g) Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period

3. Fair value of plan assets
a) Fair vaiue of plan assets at the beginning of the period -
k) Acqguistion adjustment
c) Actual return on plan assets [REASY
dy Contributions -
e) Benefits paid




10.

f) Fair value of plan asseis at the end of {he period
g) Funded status
h) Excess of actual over estimated return on plan assets

Actuarial gain / losses recoanized

&) Actuarial gain / {loss) for the period- obligation

by Actuarial (gain} / loss for the period- plan assets

¢) Total {gain} / loss for the period

d) Actuarial (gain) / loss recognized in the period

e) Unrecognized actuarlal (gains) losses at the end of the period

) Experience Adjustment on Present Value of Obligation-Loss/(Gain)

The amounts to be recognized in the balance sheet and related analysis

a) Present value of ohiigation as at the end of the period
by Fair Value of plan assets at the end of the Period

¢y Funded status / Difference

d) Excess of acfual over estimated

e) Unrecognized actuarial {gains) / losses

f) Net assets / (liability) recognized in balance sheet

Expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss
a) Current service cost

b} Past service cost

c) Interest cost

d) Expected return on plan assets

e} Curtailment cost / {Credit)

fi Settlement cost / {credit)

g} Net actuarial {gain) / loss recognized in the period

h) Expenses recognized in the statement of profit & losses

Reconciliation statement of epenses in the statement of profit & loss
a) Present value of obligaticn as at the end of the pericd

b} Present value of obligaticn as at the beginning of the period

¢) Benefit paid

d} Actual return on plan assets

e} Acquisition adjustment

fy Expenses recognized in the statement of profit & losses

Amount for the current period

a) Present value of cbligation as at the end of the pericd
) Fair value of plan assets

¢} Surpius / (Deficit)

d) Experience adjustment on plan abilities (loss) / gain
e) Experience adjustment on plan assets (loss) / gain

Movement in the liability recognized in the balance sheet
a) Opening net liabifity

b) Expense as ahove

¢} Benefits paid

d) Actual return on plan asseis

e) Acquisition adjustment

fy Closing net liability

Major categories of plan assets {as percentage of total plan assets)

a) Government of India Securities
b} State Government Securities

¢) High quality corporate bonds

dy Equity shares of listed companies
e} Property

fi Special deposite scheme

g} Funds managed by insurer

i} Bank halance (For Gratuity)

-16.500.83

5398.08
-639.08
-638.08

-201.56

16,500.83

-16,500.83

-16,500.83

1.411.00

1,042.21

-539.08
1,914.13

16,500.83
14,586.70

1,914.13

16,500.83
-16,500.83
539.08

13,197.08
1,814.13

15,111.19

-14.586.70

2,046.61

-2,046.61
-2,046.61

-1,654.77

14.586.70
-14.586.70

-14,586.70

1.279.00

963.50

-2,0456.61
19589

14,586.70
14,390 81
G

195.8¢9

14,586.70
-14,586.70
2,046 .61

13.001.17
195.89

13.197.06




11. The principal assumption used in determining gratuity

G.

below:

ay Discount rate
b} Rate of return on Plan Assets
¢) Balary Escalation
2% PUAL for FY 2022-23 and 4% PA. thereafter

Leave Encashment

a) Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the period
b} Acguisition adjustment

c) Interest cost

d) Past service cost

e} Current service cost

fi Curtailment cost / (Credit)

g} Settelement cost/ (Credit)

h} Benefit paid

i) Actuarial (gain) / Loss on obligation

j} Present value of obiigation as at the end of the period

Changes in fair value of plan assets

a)y Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the pericd
1) Acquisition adjustment

¢} Expected return on plan assets

dy Contribution

e) Benefits paid

f) Actuarial gain / {loss) on pian assets

gy Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period

Fair value of plan_assets

a) Fair value of pian assets at the beginning of the period
b) Acquistion adjustment

c) Actual return on plan assets

d) Contributions

e) Benefits paid

fy Fair vaiue of plan assets at the end of the period

g} Funded siatus

h) Excess of actual over estimated return on plan assets

Actuarial gain / losses recognized
a) Actuarial gain / (loss) for the period- obligation

b) Actuarial {gain) / loss for the period- plan assets
¢) Totai {gain) / loss for the period
d) Actuarial (gain) / loss recognized in the period

&) Unrecognized actuarial (gains) losses at the end of the pericd
f) Experience Adjustment on Present Vaiue of Obligation-Loss/(Gain)

The amounts to be recognized in the balance sheet and reiated analysis

a} Preseni value of obligation as at the end of the period
b} Fair Value of plan assets at the end of the Period

¢} Funded status / Difference

d) Excess of actual over estimated

e} Unrecognized actuarial {gains) / losses

f) Net assets / (liability) recognized in balance sheet

Expense recognized in the statement of profit and foss
a) Current service cost

b) Past service cost
c) Interest cost

obhligation for the Company's plans are shown

31/03/2023 31/03/2022
Amount Amount
7.45 7.15
0.00 C.00
A% 2%
31/03/2023 310312022
Amount Amount
4.150.91 4 267 26
296.58 285.70
584.44 767.88
-437.29 -1,169.94
4,594 64 4,150.91
-4 594 64 -4 150,91
-437 29 -1,169 94
-437 29 -1,169.94
-437.29 -1,169.94
-337.14 -1,014 21
4,594 64 4,150.91
-4 584 G4 -4, 150 91
4 594 64 4,150 91
584 44 767 B8
296 58 28570
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d) Expected return on plan asseis

@} Curtaiiment cost / (Credit)

f)y Setilement cost/ (credit)

g) Net actuarial {gain) / loss recognized in the pericd

h) Expenses recognized in the statement of profit & losses

Reconcitiation statement of epenses in the statement of profit & loss
a} FPresent value of obligation as ai the end of the period

b} Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the period

c) Benefit paid

d) Actual return on plan assets

e) Acguisition adjustment

f} Expenses recognized in the siatement of profit & losses

Amount for the current period

a) Present value of obligation as at the end of the period
by Fair value of plan assetsas at the end of the pericd

Gy Surpius / (Deficit)

d) Experience adjustment on plan ligbilities (loss} / gain
e) Experience adjustment on plan asseis (loss) / gain

Movement in the liability recognized in the balance sheet
a) Opening net liability

) Expense as above

c) Benefits paid

d) Actual return on plan assets

e) Acquisition adjustment

fy Closing net Hiability

Major cateqgories of plan assets {as percentage of total plan assets)
a) Government of India Securities

by State Government Securities

¢} High quality corporate honds

d) Equity shares of listed companies

&) Property

f) Special deposite scheme

a) Funds managed by insurer

h} Bank balance (For Gratuity}

-437 .29

-1,165.94

443,73 -116.38
4,594.64 4,150.91
4,180.91 4,267.26

44373 -116.36
4,594.64 4,150.91
-4,504 64 -4,150.91

437.29 1,169.94
4,150.91 4,267.26

443.73 ~116.36
4,594.64 4,150.91

The principaf assumption used in determining leave encashment obligation for the Company's plans are

shown below:

a) Discount rate
by Rate of return on Plan Assets
¢} Salary Escalation
Yo 2% P for FY 2022-23 and 4% P.A, thereafter

31/03/2023 31/03/2022
Amount Amount
7.55 715
4%** 2%

The estimates of fulure salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority,
promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market. Previous year figures

have not been given since those are not fully available.
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34. Segment Reporting

The business segments of the Company have been identified in line with the Accounting Standard AS-17 on "Segment
Reperting” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, taking into account the organisational structure
and different risk and return of these segments. The Company's reportable business segments consists of the

a) Hotel Busingss

2)
c)

Commercial Cenire
Portfolio Management

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the foliowing additional policies for segment
reporting -

a) Revenue and expenses have been identified to a segment on the basis of relationship to operating business
activilies of the segment. Revenue and expenses, which relaie to enterprise as a whole that cannot be allocated
to a segment on reasonable basis, have been disclosed separately under the column “unallocable”

b) Segment assets and liabilities represent assets and liabilities in respective segments. Assets and liabilities that
cannot be allocated to a segment on reasonabie basis have been disclosed under the column “unaliocable”.
Hotel Commercial Portfolio Total
Particulars Business Business Management Amournt
Segment Revenue
- Revenue inciuding other income 5981,171.71 99,414,698 14,590.62 7.065,177.02
Net Sales / Income from Operations (A) 59117171 99 414 69 14,580.62 7.05177.02
Segment Expenses
Allocable Expenses
-Consumption of Stores, Provisions
& Beverages and Purchase of Mutuat Funds 81,382.00 - - 81,362.00
-Employee benefit expenses 93,434.41 - - 93,434.41
-Operating / Administration Expanses 3,565,732.70 - - 3,55,732.70
-Finance Cost 59.30 - - 59.30
-Expenditure on CSR Activity 808.20 - - 806.20
{B) 5,31,424.60 - - b 31424 .80
Segment Result {A-B) 59,747 11 8941469  14,580.62 1,73752.42
Less : Depreciation 35,454 .85
Profit before Taxation 1,38297.47
Less: Tax Expense for the year 36,438.17
Profit after Taxation ~1,01.859.30
Segment Assets {including Misc,
expenditure and debit balance of
Profit & Loss Alc) 23,43,148.23 9,128.31 235227453
Segment Liabilities {including long
term liabilities) 3,14,356.08 86,130.00 - 4,00,489.08
Total Carrying Amount of fixed assets 13,73,778.01 - 13.73,778.01
Total Depreciation on fixed assets 35,238.97 215.98 - 36,454 65

The business segments of the Company viz., hotel business and commercial centre are both located at one
geographical place only and accordingly the geographical segment is not applicable to the company
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(All amounts in thousand of & unless otherwise stated)

35. Related Party Disclosure
Related Party disclosure in accordance with the Accounting Standard AS-18 on “Related Party
Disclosures” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india is given as under in respect of
refated parties with whom transactions have taken place:

a) Related parties and their relationshp
1} Subsidiary Companies 1 Sun Aero Limited

2) Associate Companies / Firms : Pushpanjali Trexim Pvt. Limited
: Urban LifeStyle Pvi. Ltd.
: Unigque LifeSiyle Pvt. Lid.

3) Key Management Personnel

-Mr. 8. P. Gupta : Chairman
- Mr. Kaveen Gupta : Whole Time Director
- Mr. Vipul Gupta : Whole Time Director

4)  Relatives of Key Management Personnel

S.P Gupta (HUF) : Mr. S.P Gupta is Karta of HUF
Kaveen Gupta (HUF) : Mr. Kaveen Gupta is Karta of HUF
Vipul Gupta (HUF) : Mr. Viput Gupta is Karta of HUF
Mrs. Monisha Gupta : Wife of Mr. Vipul Gupta
Key
Associate  Managemen
Companies t Personnel Relative of
Particulars (Rs.) (Rs.) KMP (Rs.} Total
a) Rent -CY 72.00 2,424.00 - 2,486.00
-PY 72.00 3,060.00 - 3,132.00
b) Directors’ Remuneration -CY - 5,400.00 - 5,400.00
-PY - 6,800.00 - 6,900.0C

Balance outstanding on March 31, 2023
Amount Payable -CY 21,538.16 Nii - 21,538.18
Y 34,538.16 Nif - 34,538.16

(This space has beew intentionafly kft bland)
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36. Ratio
As at As at o
S. No, Particulars Measures | 31 March | 31 March Vari;nce Reason for variance
2023 2022

1 |Current Ratio Times 172 2.39 -28%|The ratio is decreased due to increase in
Liability.

2 {Debt-Zquity Ratio Times N.A. N.A. N.A. |The ratio is not applicable since no
borrowings during the current year and
previous year.

3 |Debt service|Times N.A. N.A. N.A. {The change in ratio is mainly due to the

coverage ratio foilowing reasons:
a. The profits availabie for debl service hasg
increased in the current year as compared {o
previous year.
b. There has been a decrease in the amount
of debt in the current year as compared to
previcus year due to the repayments of debt
in the current year.

4 |Return on equity ratio {Percentage 0.05 -0.00 100% | The ratic is increased during the current year
due fo increase in the profit earned during
the year as compared {o previous year.

5 Hnventory turnover Times 0.37 0.20 82%(This ratio has increased due fo increase in

ratio the cost of goods sold during the year. This
increase is in consisient with the increase in
the revenue earned during the year.

6 {Trade receivables! Times 28.03 27.63 1% | The ratio i8 increased during the current year

lurnover ratio due to increase in the credit sales during the
year as compared to previous year.

7 iTrade payables|{Times 1.94 1.24 -568%|The ratio has decreased due to low

turnover ratio purchases made in credit by the Company in
the current year. This increase in purchases
in consistent with the increase N revenue

8§ {Net capital turnoveriTimes 6.88 2.03 239%|The ratic is i e with previous comparative

ratio year.

9 {Net profit ratio Percentage 0.15 -0.00 100% | The ratio is increased during the current year
due to increase in the profit earned during
the year as compared {¢ previous year,

10 iReturn  on  capital]Percentage 0.06 0.01 801%|This ratio has increased due to increase in

employed the profits earned by the company in the
current year.

11 {Return on investment |Percentage 0% 0% NA|Since there are no investments, this ratio 15
not applicable.

S. No Ratios Numerator Denominator

1 {Current ratic Current assets Current liabilities

2 iDebt-equity ratio Total debt = long term horrowings +  {Shareholder's equity

3 Debt serviceilzarning for debt service = Net profit{Debt service = Interest payments + principal repayments

coverage ratio before taxes + non-cash operating

4 Return on equity ratio [Net profits after taxes — preferencelAverage shareholder's equity

dividend (if any} :
5 inventory turnoverjCost of goods sold Average inventory = {Opening + closing ba
ratlo e e ey e e
8 Trade receivables|Net credit sales Average accounts receivabies
turnover ratio
7 Trade payables|Net credit purchases Average frade payables
wrnover ratio




8 Net capilal lurnover|Net sales Average working capital (i.e. total current assets less
ratio total current liabilities)

9 INet profit ratio Net profit Net sales

16 Return  on  capital|Zarning before interest and taxes|Capital employed = Tangible net worth + tofal debt +
employed (EBIT) deferred tax liability

11 Return on investment |income generated from investments |Time weighted average investments
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37.

38,

39.

40.

Sundry Debtors / Creditors, if any, are not reconciled due to non-receipt of corresponding stalements of
account from them. Necessary adjustments, if any, in the books of account wifl be made at the time of
reconciliation of the same.

In terms of Schedule il of the Companies Act, 2013 and notification number GSR 719{(e), the company
had requested its various suppliers, who may be regisiered under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006, to furnish the relevant registration certificate under that Act and
confirmation regards them heing under the said category. From the date of receipt of confirmed details
and information from the said parties the outstanding on account purchase made/services obtained fram
such suppliers including the disputed amounts due to them, were ascertained and reflecied in the
financials as due to Micro & Small Enterprises, The details in respect of the parties that could be identified
as Micro and Small enterprises as per the MSMED Act on the basis of the information available with the
managemerndt are given below:

31/03/2023 31/03/2022
Amount Amount
{iy The principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown
separately) remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of
each accounting year,
-Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises - 34.85
-Interest due on above - -

() The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16
of the MSMED Act 2008 aleng with the amounts of ithe payment
made to the supplier beyond the appeinted day during each - -

(i) The amount of interest due and payable for the pericd of delay in
making payment {(which have been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the vear) but without adding the interest
specified under the MSMED Act 2006. - -

{iv) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even
in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues
as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose
of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of
the MSMED Act 2006. - -

EXCEPTIONAL AND EXTRA-ORDINARY ITEMS
No exceptional or extra-ordinary items of revenue nature occurred during the year (PY Nil). Hence no
disclosure of the same has been made in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Applications filed by the Company and VLS Finance Lid (& registered shareholder of the Company) u/s 34
of the Arbitration and Reconciliation Act 1996, chaflenging the Award therein given are pending for
disposal since the year 2015 by the Hon’ble Delhi High Court as on the date of signing of these annual
financial statements. Similarly, the second petition for enforcement of the said Award filed by VI.S Finance
Lid in the Hon'bie Delhi High Court is also pending adjudication as an undertaking has been given by VLS
Finance Ltd not to press the execution tilf the original cross petition are decided. The earlier such petition
filed by VLS Finance Lid was dismissed by the Hon'ble Dethi High Court on 16/08/2017. The award
contained directions to the Company / its directors to refund to VLS Finance Ltd the forfeited security
deposit of Rs, 8 Crores in terms of the MOU dated 11/03/1995 with due interest. However, as per legal
opinion received by the Company no such amount is refundable particularly when the Hon'ble Company
Law Board vide its order dated 04/09/2013 has dismissed the Company Pefition of VLS Finance Lid and
decided in favour of the Company. -
ey

SFIO has filed a petition ufs 241{2) along with sections 248 and 339 of the Companies Act, 2013 before
the Hor'ble NCLT against the Company and others which is also pending adjudication. Similarly, SFIO



has aiso filed a complaint on the same subject as is befere the Hon'ble NCLT in the court of the iearned
ASJ (Special Court) Dwarka New Delhi, aiso still pending as on this date.

In the FiRs filed by the State on the complaints of VLS Finance Ltd. against the Company and others,
charges have been framed by the learned Trial Court where proceedings including revisions are still
pending at different stages.

The Company Petitions No. CP-35(ND}2010 and CP-38(ND)2018 filed against the Company and others
have been withdrawn by the Petitioners after reaching a settlement before the Hon'ble NCLT, resulfing into
their closuire.

41, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES & COMMITMENTS (to the extent nof provided for)
31/03/2023 31/03/2022
Amount Amount
() Contingent Liabilities
A Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts Nil Nil
B. Guarantees INil Nil
C. Bills of exchange discounted with banks MNil Nil
0. Tax demand disputed in appeals 1,46,651.40 1,46,651.40
£. Others (%) 80,000 (M 80,000 ()
{*) The amount represents forfeitable security deposit, which
is not due as per the legal opinion received by the
Company. OMP and Enf(c) have been filed in the
matter.Refer to Note No. 40 as above.
(#) Commitments
A, Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on 1.500.00 3,900.0G
capital accounts and not provided for
B. Uncalled liability on shares and other investments partly paid Nil Nil
C. Cther commitmenis Nit Nil

43.

44,

45.

For ANIi. SO0D & ASSOQCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.004985N

The Code on Social Security, 2020, {Code) relating to employees benefits during employment and post-
employment benefits received President assent in September, 2020. The Code has been published in the
Gazelte of India. However, the data on which the Code will come into effect has not been notified and the
final rules/interpretation have not yet been issued. The Company will assess the impact of the Code when
it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code beccmes effective.

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousnad rupees.

PREVIOUS YEAR FIGURES
Previous figures have been regrouped / recast wherever considered necessary.
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